Licensing Sub Committee
Agenda
Tuesday, 22 March 2022 6.30 p.m.
The Council Chamber, Town Hall, Mulberry
Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG
Contact for further enquiries:
Farhana Zia, Senior Democratic Services Officer, farhana.zia@towerhamlets.gov.uk
020 7364 0842 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG
http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee

Public Information
Viewing or Participating in Committee Meetings
The meeting will be broadcast live on the Council’s website. A link to the website is
detailed below. The press and public are encouraged to watch this meeting on line.
Please note: Whilst the meeting is open to the public, the public seating in the meeting
room for observers will be extremely limited due to the Covid 19 pandemic restrictions.
You must contact the Democratic Services Officer to reserve a place, this will be
allocated on a first come first served basis. No one will be admitted unless they have
registered in advance.

Meeting Webcast
The meeting is being webcast for viewing through the Council’s webcast system.
http://towerhamlets.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Electronic agendas reports and minutes.
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be
found on our website from day of publication.
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for
the relevant committee and meeting date.
Agendas are available on the Modern.Gov, Windows, iPad and Android
apps.

London Borough of Tower Hamlets
Licensing Sub Committee
Tuesday, 22 March 2022
6.30 p.m.
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.
1.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 7 - 8)
Members are reminded to consider the categories of interest, identified in the Code of
Conduct for Members to determine: whether they have an interest in any agenda item
and any action they should take. For further details, see the attached note from the
Monitoring Officer.
Members are also reminded to declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity
and the agenda item it relates to. Please note that ultimately it is the Members’
responsibility to identify any interests and also update their register of interest form as
required by the Code.
If in doubt as to the nature of an interest, you are advised to seek advice prior the
meeting by contacting the Monitoring Officer or Democratic Services.

2.

RULES OF PROCEDURE (Pages 9 - 18)
To note the rules of procedure which are attached for information.

3.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S) (Pages 19 - 46)
To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee held on 8th
and 22nd February 2022.

4.

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

4 .1

Licensing Act 2003 Application for a new Premise Licence for Organic Grocery
Store, 284-286 Poplar High Street, London, E14 0BB (Pages 47 - 112)

Licensing Objectives:
 Public Nuisance
Representations by:
 Local Resident

4 .2

Licensing Act 2003 Application for a new Premise Licence for St Peter's Church
Crypt, St Peter's Close, London, E2 7AE (Pages 113 - 190)

Licensing Objectives:
 Public Nuisance
 Crime & Disorder
Representations by:
 Local Resident
4 .3

Licensing Act 2003 Application to Review the Premise Licence for (Parnell MiniMarket) 117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT (Pages 191 - 286)
Licensing Objectives:
 Prevention of Children from harm
Representations by:
 Trading Standards
 Metropolitan Police
5.

EXTENSION OF DECISION DEADLINE: LICENSING ACT 2003
The Sub Committee may be requested to extend the decision deadline for applications to be
considered at forthcoming meetings due to the volume of applications requiring a hearing. Where
necessary, details will be provided at the meeting.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1
DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS AT MEETINGS– NOTE FROM THE
MONITORING OFFICER
This note is for guidance only. For further details please consult the Code of Conduct for
Members at Part C, Section 31 of the Council’s Constitution

(i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)
You have a DPI in any item of business on the agenda where it relates to the categories listed in
Appendix A to this guidance. Please note that a DPI includes: (i) Your own relevant interests;
(ii)Those of your spouse or civil partner; (iii) A person with whom the Member is living as
husband/wife/civil partners. Other individuals, e.g. Children, siblings and flatmates do not need to
be considered. Failure to disclose or register a DPI (within 28 days) is a criminal offence.
Members with a DPI, (unless granted a dispensation) must not seek to improperly influence the
decision, must declare the nature of the interest and leave the meeting room (including the public
gallery) during the consideration and decision on the item – unless exercising their right to address
the Committee.
DPI Dispensations and Sensitive Interests. In certain circumstances, Members may make a
request to the Monitoring Officer for a dispensation or for an interest to be treated as sensitive.

(ii) Non - DPI Interests that the Council has decided should be registered –
(Non - DPIs)
You will have ‘Non DPI Interest’ in any item on the agenda, where it relates to (i) the offer of gifts
or hospitality, (with an estimated value of at least £25) (ii) Council Appointments or nominations to
bodies (iii) Membership of any body exercising a function of a public nature, a charitable purpose
or aimed at influencing public opinion.
Members must declare the nature of the interest, but may stay in the meeting room and participate
in the consideration of the matter and vote on it unless:
 A reasonable person would think that your interest is so significant that it would be likely to
impair your judgement of the public interest. If so, you must withdraw and take no part
in the consideration or discussion of the matter.

(iii) Declarations of Interests not included in the Register of Members’ Interest.
Occasions may arise where a matter under consideration would, or would be likely to, affect the
wellbeing of you, your family, or close associate(s) more than it would anyone else living in
the local area but which is not required to be included in the Register of Members’ Interests. In
such matters, Members must consider the information set out in paragraph (ii) above regarding
Non DPI - interests and apply the test, set out in this paragraph.
Guidance on Predetermination and Bias
Member’s attention is drawn to the guidance on predetermination and bias, particularly the need to
consider the merits of the case with an open mind, as set out in the Planning and Licensing Codes
of Conduct, (Part C, Section 34 and 35 of the Constitution). For further advice on the possibility of
bias or predetermination, you are advised to seek advice prior to the meeting.
Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992 - Declarations which restrict
Members in Council Tax arrears, for at least a two months from voting
In such circumstances the member may not vote on any reports and motions with respect to the
matter.

Page 7

Further Advice contact: Janet Fasan, Monitoring Officer, Tel: 0207 364 4800.
APPENDIX A: Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule)
Subject
Employment, office, trade,
profession or vacation

Prescribed description
Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation
carried on for profit or gain.

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided
within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by the Member in carrying out duties as a member,
or towards the election expenses of the Member.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or
a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest)
and the relevant authority—
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or
works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the
relevant authority.

Licences

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where—
(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and
(b) either—
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that
body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class,
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 8

Agenda Item 2

LICENSING COMMITTEE

RULES OF PROCEDURE
GOVERNING APPLICATIONS FOR
PREMISES LICENCES
AND OTHER PERMISSIONS
UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

Date Last Reviewed:
Reviewed By:
Approved By:
Date Approved:
Version No.
Document Owner:
Post Holder:
Date of Next Scheduled Review:

14th June 2016
Senior Corporate and Governance Legal
Officer
Licensing Committee
14th June 2016
1
Paul Greeno
Senior Corporate and Governance Legal
Officer
31st March 2018

Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 1
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017

Page 9

1.

Interpretation

1.1

These Procedures describe the way in which hearings will be conducted under
the Licensing Act 2003, as set out in the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings)
Regulations 2005 (as amended) (‘the Hearings Regulations’). The Procedures
take into account the Licensing Act (Premises Licences and Club Premises
Certificates) Regulations 2005.

1.2

Except where otherwise stated, references in this Code are to the Licensing
Committee and its Sub-committees and the expression ‘Licensing Committee’
should be interpreted accordingly.

1.3

The Hearings Regulations provide (Regulation 21) that a Licensing Authority
shall, subject to the provisions of those Regulations, determine for itself the
procedure to be followed at a hearing.

1.4

These Procedures, therefore, set out the way in which Licensing Committee
Meetings will be conducted under the Licensing Act 2003, following the
requirements of the Hearings Regulations.

1.5

Proceedings will not be rendered void only as the result of failure to comply
with any provision of the Hearings Regulations (Regulation 31) save that in any
case of such an irregularity, the Licensing Committee shall, if it considers that
any person may have been prejudiced as a result of the irregularity, take such
steps as it thinks fit to cure the irregularity before reaching its determination
(Regulation 32).

2.

Composition of Sub-Committee

2.1

The Sub-Committee will consist of three (3) members and no business shall be
transacted unless three (3) members of the Licensing Committee are present
and able to form a properly constituted Licensing Sub-Committee. In such
cases the Chair shall have a second or casting vote.

3.

Procedure

3.1

The hearing shall take place in public save that the Licensing Committee may
exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it considers that, on
balance, it is in the public interest to do so. The parties and any person
representing them may be excluded in the same way as another member of
the public. Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit
to the Licensing Committee in writing, any information which, they would have
been entitled to give orally had they not been required to leave. Where there
are a number of items on the agenda, the adjournment of that item for a short
period, whilst another item is heard, may allow this process to be carried out
effectively.

Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 2
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017

Page 10

3.2

The Chair will begin by asking the parties to identify themselves and confirm
whether or not they are represented.

3.3

The Licensing Committee should always satisfy itself that sufficient notice of
the hearing has been given to all parties and if not satisfied, then the Licensing
Committee should take such steps as it thinks fit to deal with that issue before
reaching its determination and this could include adjourning that application to
a later date.

3.4

The Licensing Committee will then consider any requests by a party for any
other person to be heard at the hearing in accordance with the Regulations.
Permission will not be unreasonably withheld provided proper notice has been
given.

3.5

The Chair will then explain how the proceedings will be conducted, and
indicate any time limits that may apply to the parties to the application. In
setting time limits, the Licensing Committee will take into account the
importance of ensuring that all parties receive a fair hearing, and the
importance of ensuring that all applications are determined expeditiously and
without undue delay. Further the Licensing Committee must have regard to
the requirement to allow each party an equal amount of time.

3.6

If a party considers that any time limit is not sufficient then they should
address the Licensing Committee and which will determine accordingly.

3.7

If any party has informed the Authority that they will not be attending or be
represented at the hearing or any party does not give notice that they will not
be attending but fails to attend and is not represented, the Licensing
Committee may proceed in their absence or adjourn the hearing if it considers
it to be necessary in the public interest. An adjournment will not be
considered where due to the operation of the Hearing Regulations it would not
be possible to adjourn.

3.8

If the Licensing Committee adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must
specify the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned and
why it is considered necessary in the public interest.

3.9

If the Licensing Committee holds the hearing in the absence of a party, it will
consider at the hearing the application, representation or notice given by that
party.

3.10 The Chair will invite an Officer of the Licensing Section to present the report by
briefly summarising the application and the number and type of the
representations as set out in the papers circulated. The Officer will also advise
of any discussions held with the parties; any amendments made to the
application; any representations withdrawn; and any agreed conditions that
the Licensing Committee is being asked to consider. The Officer shall not give
Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 3
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017

Page 11

any opinion on the application or ask the Committee to make an inference
based on such an opinion.
3.11 Members of the Licensing Committee can then ask questions of clarification of
the Licensing Officer or seek legal advice from the Legal Adviser to the
Licensing Committee if they require in respect of matters raised during the
presentation by the Licensing Officer.
3.12 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee will then give any relevant legal
advice that the Licensing Committee need to take into consideration.
3.13 The Chair will then ask the applicant or their representative, if present, to
present a summary of the nature and extent of the application. This should be
brief, avoid repetition of material already available to the Licensing Committee
in the Officer’s report or otherwise, and include any reasons why an exception
should be made to the Council’s Licensing Policy, where appropriate, and
respond to the written representations received. The submission may be
followed by the evidence of any person who has been given permission by the
Committee to give supporting evidence on behalf of the applicant or who has
made a representation in favour of the application.
3.14 The application is to be presented within the time limit that has been set.
3.15 Where an applicant is unrepresented and having difficulty in presenting their
application then the Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask
questions of the applicant so that the relevant points are addressed and
clarified for the Licensing Committee.
3.16 Members of the Licensing Committee may ask questions of the person
presenting the case after their address as well as any other person who has
spoken in support of the application. Members can also ask questions of the
applicant as well as any other person present for the applicant who they
consider can assist.
3.17 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask questions for the
purpose of clarifying points for the Licensing Committee.
3.18 The Chair will then ask the persons who have made representations against
the application to address the Licensing Committee within the time limit that
has been set. They should not repeat what is already set out in their
representations or notice or raise new matters. In their address they should
provide clarification on any points previously requested by the Council. The
submission may be followed by the evidence of any person who has been
given permission by the Committee to give supporting evidence.
3.19 Members of the Licensing Committee may then ask questions of the persons
making representations against the application and any other person who has
Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 4
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017

Page 12

spoken in support of such representation. Members can also ask questions of
any other person present who they consider can assist.
3.20 The Legal Adviser to the Licensing Committee may ask questions for the
purpose of clarifying points for the Licensing Committee.
3.21 Petitions will be treated as representations provided they meet the
requirements for relevant representations set out in the Licensing Act 2003.
Members should proceed with caution when relying upon petitions used as
evidence due to the structure and wording used.
3.22 The Licensing Committee will disregard any information given by a party, or
any other person appearing at the hearing, which is not relevant to:
a)

their application, representation or notice; and

b)

the promotion of the licensing objectives or the crime prevention
objective where notice has been given by the police.

3.23 The Chair will intervene at any stage of the hearing to prevent repetitious or
irrelevant points being raised.
3.24 Cross examination of any party or any other person allowed to appear will not
be allowed unless specifically permitted by the Chair.
3.25 There is no right for any party to sum up but they may be permitted to do at
the discretion of the Chair and within time limits prescribed by the Chair.
3.26 The Licensing Committee will consider its decision in private save that the Legal
Adviser and Democratic Services Officer will remain with them.
3.27 The Licensing Committee will normally return to open session to announce its
decision but in cases where the prescribed time limit allows for a later
determination and it is appropriate to determine the matter within that time
then the Chair will advise the parties present that the decision will not be
announced then but that the determination will take place within the
prescribed time limit and that written notification will be dispatched to all
parties advising then of the determination.
4.

Exclusions

4.1

In addition to any exclusion under paragraph 3.1 above, The Licensing
Committee may require any person attending the hearing who in their opinion
is behaving in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may refuse to
permit the person to return; or allow them to return only on such conditions as
Licensing Committee may specify.

Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 5
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017

Page 13

4.2

Any person so excluded may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the
Authority in writing, any information which, they would have been entitled to
give orally had they not been required to leave.

Part 5 – Codes and Protocols - Page | 6
Version 1 – Date 03/04/2017

Page 14

Guidance for Licensing Sub-Committee Meetings.
(1)
Attendance at Meetings.
All meetings of the Sub- Committee are open to the public and press to attend. On rare
occasions, the Sub-Committee may retire to consider private business that will be
clearly marked on the agenda as such. The press and public will be excluded for those
confidential items only. We try to keep confidential reports to an absolute minimum.
We request that you show courtesy to all present and please keep mobile phones on
silent. Meetings can reach full capacity and seats are allocated on a first come first
come served basis.
(2)
Licensing Sub-Committee Role and Membership.
In summary, the Sub - Committee will consider and determine applications to grant,
vary or review a license submitted under the Licensing Act 2003 where representations
have been made. The full terms of reference can be found on the Committee webpages
(see below). The Licensing Sub - Committee will consist of 3 Members of the main
Licensing Committee. Meetings are normally held in the Town Hall Council Chamber.

Licensing Sub- Committee Webpages
To view go to the Committee and Member Services web page:
www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee - ‘agenda, reports, decisions and minutes’, then
click on ‘Licensing Sub- Committee’.
The pages include:


Terms of Reference for the Licensing Sub -Committee.



Meeting dates, agendas and minutes.



Agenda timetable including agenda publication dates. (To view click ‘browse
meetings and agendas for this committee’, then ‘show agenda management
timetable’).

(3) Access to Committee Papers.
The agenda for Sub - Committee meetings is published five clear (working) days before
the Sub - Committee meeting on the Committee webpages (except for certain types of
applications where special rules apply). All Committee papers (i.e. agendas, reports,
minutes and decisions) are published on the website and also available on iPad and
Android tablet apps downloadable for free from their respective app stores.
(4) Who can speak at Licensing Sub- Committee meetings?
Only interested parties may address the Sub-Committee (those who have made a valid
representation) and the applicant and their representatives. Although the SubCommittee may allow other persons to present the interested parties evidence or to
give supporting evidence. If you are planning to attend the hearing to address the
Page 15
committee, you are advised to contact the Committee officer - see the Committee

pages and agenda front page for contact details. Speakers are advised to arrive at the
start of the meeting in case the order of business is changed. Speakers will be called to
speak by the Chair at the appropriate time. If speakers are not present by the time their
application is heard, the Committee may consider the item in their absence.
(5) What can be circulated?
Should you wish to submit any material, please contact the Committee/Licensing
Officer as soon as possible. The Sub-Committee may accept information at the hearing,
however this is only with the agreement of all parties present.
(6) How will the applications be considered?
The Sub-Committee will normally consider the items in agenda order subject to the
Chair’s discretion. The hearing procedure is detailed at the end of this guidance.
(7) How can I find out about a decision?
You can contact Democratic Services the day after the meeting to find out the
decisions.
(8) Queries on reports.
For any questions, please contact the Officer named on the front of the report.
Typical Seating Plan for Licensing Sub - Committee Meetings in the Town Hall
Council Chamber.
Public Seating

Objectors
Benches

Public Seating
Public Seating
Public Seating
Public Seating

Applicants
Benches

Page 16

Sub-Committee
Members
Chair
Legal Officer
Committee Officer
Licensing Officer

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE HEARING PROCEDURE
All interested parties to the hearing must notify Democratic Services within
prescribed timescales that they intend to attend and/or be represented at the hearing
and whether any witnesses will be attending on their behalf. The meeting will be in
the form of a discussion led by the Sub Committee, cross examination of either party
will not be permitted.
The Chair will allocate an equal amount of speaking time to each party. Where there
is more than one representation raising the same or similar grounds, those parties
should consider nominating a single representative to address the Sub-Committee on
their behalf at the hearing.
The hearing will proceed as follows (subject to the discretion of the Chair).
1. Chair will introduce him/herself and ask Members, officers, and all interested
parties present at the meeting to introduce themselves.
2. Licensing Officer to present the report.
3. Committee Members to ask questions of officer (if any).
4. The Applicant to present their case in support of their application (including any
witnesses they may have).
5. Committee Members to ask questions of applicants and their witnesses or ask for
points of clarification.
6. The relevant Responsible Authorities in attendance will present their case and
their reasons for representation (including any witnesses they may have).
7. The Objectors/Interested Parties in attendance will present their case and their
reasons for objecting (including any witnesses they may have).
8. Committee Members to ask questions of Responsible Authorities, objectors and
their witnesses or ask for points of clarification.
9. Applicant (with exception and with permission of the Chair) can ask questions of
the other parties to the hearing and their witnesses.
10. Interested Parties to the hearing (with exception and with the permission of the
Chair) can ask questions of the applicant/other parties to the hearing and their
witnesses.
11. Chair’s closing remarks
12. Sub-Committee retire from the meeting with the Committee Officer and Legal
Officer and consider their decision.
13. The Sub-Committee will return to the meeting and Chair announces the decision
together with the reasons for the decision and any right to appeal.
14. A Decision letter will be sent to all interested parties confirming the decision
made.

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3
LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS
MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 8 FEBRUARY 2022
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG
Members Present:
Councillor Eve McQuillan (Chair)
Councillor Amina Ali
Councillor Kevin Brady

Officers Present:
–
–
–

Jonathan Melnick
Corinne Holland
Simmi Yesmin

(Principal Lawyer-Enforcement)
(Licensing Officer)
(Democratic
Services
Committees, Governance)

Officer,

Representing applicants

Item Number

Role

Gregorio Carullo
Dario Truden
Sheila Esposito
Alex Brander

3.1
3.1
3.1
3.2

(Applicant)
(Applicant)

Representing objectors

Item Number

Role

Howard Redgewell
Jane Earl
Surenda Panchal
Raj Jani

3.1
3.1
3.2
3.2

(Resident)
(Resident)
(Licensing Agent)
(Premises Licence Holder)

(Designated Premises Supervisor)

(Trading Standards Officer)

Apologies

1.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made.

2.

RULES OF PROCEDURE

Page 19

1

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

The rules of procedure were noted.

3.

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

3.1

Application for a New Premises Licence Tondo Pizza Ltd Unit 2
Hermitage Court London E1W 1NR
At the request of the Chair, Ms Corrine Holland, Licensing Officer, introduced
the report which detailed the application for a new premises licence for Tondo
Pizza Ltd, Unit 2 Hermitage Court, London E1W 1NR. It was noted that
objections had been received from local residents in relation to the prevention
of public nuisance. It was also noted that conditions had been agreed with
responsible authorities and those agreed with Licensing Services had been
omitted from the report and were therefore circulated at the meeting for
reference.
At the request of the Chair, Ms Shelia Esposito, Proposed Designated
Supervisor addressed the Sub-Committee on behalf of the Applicant and
explained that the premises had been opened since 16th December 2021 with
no complaints or issues at the premises. She said she had personally emailed
all the objectors to try and address their concerns by explaining that there
would be no drinks allowed outside the premises, and all alcoholic drinks
would only be served to customers seated at a table and ancillary to a meal. It
was noted that in order to appease the objectors they would stop the sale of
alcohol one hour before closing time and there would be no deliveries of
goods late in the evening.
Ms Esposito told the Sub-Committee that there were 24 covers at the
restaurant and there would be no increased footfall in the area as the
customers were local residents. She said they currently did not offer a
takeaway delivery service and if they were to consider this in the future this
would be done using bicycles to avoid causing noise nuisance. She
highlighted that the CCTV conditions as proposed by the responsible
authorities would be adhered to and she as the DPS would be in charge of
training staff and the premises would operate the Challenge 25 policy. It was
noted that they had installed a new oven which did not generate noise or
smoke, the premises was fully insulated and therefore noise or smell would
not emanate from the premises.
Ms Esposito explained that there had been one complaint made since
opening, where there had been a hole in the wall, and this had been rectified
immediately by the applicant. Other than this she confirmed that there had
been no complaints regarding the premises. In conclusion, Ms Esposito said
that it was a family run business mainly attracting local residents and families
and that the premises would be closing at 11pm seven days a week and did
not envisage serving alcohol would not negatively affect the area.
Members then heard from Mr Howard Redgwell, local resident, who
expressed his concerns around the likely increase in noise and public

Page 20

2

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

nuisance if a licence were to be granted. He also raised concerns about the
terms of the lease and questioned whether the applicant was operating within
the terms of his lease. He believed that the applicant was sub-leasing the
premises and therefore without direct contact with the company for
commercial units there would be a lack of control and therefore urged the
Sub-Committee to be mindful of how residents have been affected in the past
due to public nuisance when considering the application.
Members also heard from Ms Jane Earl, local resident, who also expressed
similar concerns of increased noise nuisance and public nuisance and raised
issues of additional traffic in the area, late night noise and disruption. She
acknowledged the efforts made to reduce the hours of operation. She also
highlighted the fact that currently there was no plan for delivery service;
however, if this was added later on, this could possibly change the character
of the business. Ms Earl also raised concerns around planning consent and
thus a premises licence would evade some of the rules.
Upon the Chair’s request the Legal Officer confirmed that Planning and
Licensing were two separate regimes and that any licence granted would not
obviate the need to comply with planning controls.
In response to questions from Members the following was noted;
-

-

That the restaurant was a small premises and since opening there
have been no problems or complaints.
The restaurant was fully insulated, and there would be no music played
at the premises.
That smoking or drinking would not be permitted outside the premises,
this would be monitored by staff and customers would be informed of
this practice.
That there was a pub in close proximity and it was more likely that the
pub would give rise to noise nuisance and public nuisance rather than
the restaurant itself.

Concluding remarks were made by both parties.

The Licensing Objectives
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing
Objectives, the Home Office Guidance and the Council’s Statement of
Licensing Policy and in particular to have regard to the promotion of the four
licensing objectives:
1.
2.
3.
4.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;
Public Safety;
The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and
The Protection of Children from Harm.

Consideration

Page 21

3

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

The Sub-Committee considered an application by Tondo Pizza Ltd. for a new
premises licence to be held in respect of Unit 2, Hermitage Court, Wapping High
Street, London, E1W 1NR (“the Premises”). The licence sought the sale by retail
of alcohol as follows:
Monday to Friday

12:00 hours to 15:00 hours
18:00 hours to 23:00 hours

Saturday

12:00 hours to 17:00 hours
18:00 hours to 00:00 hours

Sunday

12:00 hours to 17:00 hours
18:00 hours to 23:00 hours

These were also the times at which the Premises would be open to the public.
The application attracted ten representations from local residents. The Licensing
Authority had made a representation, which had been withdrawn following the
agreement of conditions.
The Sub-Committee heard from Sheila Esposito on behalf of the applicant. She
informed the Sub-Committee that there would be no consumption of alcohol
outside. Alcohol would only be sold and consumed inside and with meals. The
alcohol offering would be beer and wine. The terminal hour for licensable activity
would be reduced by one hour so that sale of alcohol would cease at 22:00 hours
Sunday to Friday and at 23:00 hours on Saturday.
As to the issues raised by the objectors the Sub-Committee was told that the
Premises were small, with only 24 covers. They had been open for two months
already and had no problems. The equipment used was modern so that there
would be no noise or smell. The patrons tended to be local residents. They were
not currently doing deliveries, but if they did so subsequently those would be by
cycle in order to minimise the possibility of noise disturbance. CCTV was in place
and staff would be trained and the Premises were insulated in respect of both
noise and smells.
The Sub-Committee heard from two residents, Howard Redgwell and Jane Earl.
Mr. Redgwell confirmed that the applicant had written to him, which was
appreciated, but it had not addressed his concerns. His oral representation
focused on the requirements of the lease and that there had been issues
surrounding the enforcement of the leases by the commercial operator. He
suggested that the applicant ought to arrange with the commercial operator to
address the various measures in his written representation.
Ms. Earl told the Sub-Committee that she was concerned about late-night traffic
and noise late at night. She was also concerned about whether or not the
applicant had planning permission.
During questions the applicant explained that there was no additional traffic
resulting from their use of the Premises thus far. As far as preventing patrons
from causing a nuisance outside by smoking, for example, Ms. Esposito stated
that patrons would not be permitted to leave to smoke.

Page 22

4

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

During concluding remarks Mr. Redgwell observed that the Premises would have
difficulty stopping people from smoking and, if patrons did leave temporarily, the
noise would travel upwards. He suggested it would be unbearable from spring to
autumn. Ms. Earl suggested that it would be of assistance if the licence could be
regularly reviewed.
This application engages the licensing objective of the prevention of public
nuisance. The Sub-Committee took account of all the information provided to it at
the hearing and in the written representations. Whilst the Sub-Committee
appreciated the concerns of those making representations it was not satisfied
that the representations justified the refusal of the application. Many of the
representations raised the same issues with regard to the lease or planning
permission. Several also suggested conditions to be imposed if the licence were
to be granted and were also specifically concerned with the impact of noise after
23:00 hours.
Whether or not planning permission was required or had been obtained was not a
matter with which the Sub-Committee could be concerned. Similarly, lease
enforcement issues, were they to arise, were not relevant to the licensing
objectives. The Sub-Committee welcomed the reduction in the terminal hour,
which ensured that the Premises were within framework hours and noted that
even if the licence were to be refused, this decision could not prevent the
applicant from operating the restaurant.
The Sub-Committee took account of the fact that the Premises were now open
and had been operating without issue for the last two months. Neither Mr.
Redgwell nor Ms. Earl suggested that the matters about which they were
concerned, especially the noise, had occurred. Further, the small number of
covers suggested that there was unlikely to be noise disturbance. The SubCommittee was satisfied that such impact as there might be on the licensing
objectives would be mitigated by the reduction in hours and the agreed
conditions. The Premises were food-led and would remain so unless and until a
variation to amend the conditions was made and granted.
The decision is therefore to allow the application with the amendments to the
hours for licensable activity and the conditions agreed with the Licensing
Authority.

Accordingly, the Sub Committee unanimously;
RESOLVED
That the application for a new Premises Licence for Tondo Pizza Ltd, Unit 2
Hermitage Court, London E1W 1NR be GRANTED with conditions.
Sale of alcohol (on and off sales)
Monday to Friday from 12:00 hours – 15:00 hours then 18:00 hours – 22:00
hours
Saturday & Sunday from 12:00 hours – 17:00 hours then 18:00 hours – 22:00
hours
The opening hours of the premises

Page 23

5

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

Monday to Friday from 12:00 hours – 15:00 hours then 18:00 hours – 23:00
hours
Saturday & Sunday from 12:00 hours – 17:00 hours then 18:00 hours – 23:00
hours
Conditions
1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as
per the minimum requirements of the Tower Hamlets Police Licensing
Team. All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal
identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV
system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable
activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and
time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately
upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31day period.
2. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of
the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises
are open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or
authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the
absolute minimum of delay when requested.
3.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises and be available on request
to the Police or an authorised officer. It must be completed within 24 hours
of any incident and will record the following:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)

all crimes reported to the venue;
all ejections of patrons;
any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
any incidents of disorder;
all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons;
any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning
equipment;
any refusal of the sale of alcohol;
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

4. Loudspeakers shall not be located in the entrance lobby or outside the
premise building
5. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to
respect the needs of local residents and businesses and leave the area
quietly.
6. Patrons permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises,
e.g. to smoke, shall be limited to 8 persons at any one time.
7. The external area shall not be used after 22:30 hours, except for patrons
permitted to temporarily leave and then re-enter the premises, e.g. to
smoke, and shall be limited to 10 persons at any one time.

Page 24

6

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

8. No noise generated on the premises, or by its associated plant or
equipment, shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted
through the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.
9. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised
photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or
proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.
10. The supply of alcohol at the premises shall only be to a person seated
taking a table meal there and for consumption by such a person as
ancillary to their meal.
11. The supply of alcohol shall be by waiter or waitress service only.
12. Sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall only be supplied
with, and ancillary to a take-away meal.
13. Every third party courier delivery box shall be labelled with the words “Age
Restricted Product”.
14. The premises licence holder will ensure that an age verification policy will
apply whereby all delivery drivers/riders will be trained to ask any
customer to whom alcohol is delivered, who appears to be under the age
of 25 years to produce, before being sold alcohol, identification being a
passport or photocard driving licence bearing a holographic mark or other
form of identification that complies with any mandatory condition that may
apply to this licence.
15. Alcohol shall only be delivered to a residential or business address and
not to a public place.
16. All off sales to be in sealed containers.
17. A warning shall be displayed on the digital platform on which an order is
placed informing customers that they must be aged 18 or over to make a
purchase of alcohol and notifying customers that the rider will carry out
age verification on delivery. The customer will be required to declare that
he or she aged 18 or over. If the rider is not satisfied that the customer is
aged 18 or over any alcohol in the order will be withheld.
18. The Licence holder shall notify the Licensing Authority of the digital
platform(s) used for the sales of alcohol and any changes to those
platforms.

3.2

Application to Review the Premises Licence for (Old Ford Mini Market)
389 Old Ford Road, London E3 2LU

At the request of the Chair, Ms Corrine Holland, Licensing Officer, introduced
the report which detailed the application for a review of the premises licence
for Old Ford Mini Market, 389 Old Ford Road, London, E3 2LU. It was noted

Page 25

7

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

that the review had been brought by Trading Standards and was based on the
licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention
of public nuisance. Ms Holland brought the Sub-Committee’s attention to an
error in the report and confirmed that during the inspection of the premises
260 Benson & Hedges cigarettes and 80 Marlboro cigarettes were suspected
of being counterfeit and not 260/80 packs as detailed in the report. It was also
noted that the premises had had a licence since 2005 and that the premises
licence holder and DPS, Mr Raj Jani, took over the licence in 2019.
At the request of the Chair, Mr Alex Brander explained that the grounds of
review concerned the storage and supply of illegal tobacco products on the
premises contrary to the licensing objective of the prevention of crime and
disorder, as well as the supply of alcohol after licensable hours.
Mr. Brander told the Sub-Committee that on 19th October 2021 a routine
inspection had been caried out at the Premises. Under the counter were
found 260 Benson and Hedges cigarettes, which were suspected of being
counterfeit, and 80 Marlboro Gold cigarettes which were suspected of being
illicit due to non-compliance with certain packaging and labelling
requirements. Mr. Jani was present at the time of the inspection and admitted
during the inspection that he knew the cigarettes were counterfeit.
It was noted that during the course of the inspection one of the officers was
accosted by a member of the public. The member of the public appeared to
be under the influence of alcohol. During the inspection Mr. Jani took a can of
beer and gave it to another member of the public outside the premises.
Ten days later, on 29th October 2021, Licensing Officers carried out a test
purchase at the Premises and a can of Carlsberg lager was sold at 23:12
hours. The sale was made outside licensable hours, which ceased at 23:00
hours and therefore this was a breach of licensing conditions.
Mr Brander concluded that the premises licence holder had a blatant
disregard for complying with the law or the conditions of the licence and
therefore Trading Standards were seeking a revocation of the premises
licence for failing to uphold the licensing objectives of crime and disorder and
the prevention of public nuisance.
Members then heard from Mr Surenda Panchal, Licensing Agent on behalf of
the premises licence holder. He told the Sub-Committee that the premises
had been licensed since 2005 and that Mr. Jani had taken over the Premises
in 2019 as the premise licence holder and DPS. He explained that there had
been no problems at the premises prior to these incidents. Mr. Jani was said
to have been running licensed premises since 2017, that he had trained staff,
had a due diligence defence, and said that staff may have made a mistake.
Mr Panchal, further explained that there was no evidence of sales of the
cigarettes and that they were left under the counter for Mr Jani to check. The
account given was that somebody who supplied other goods offered Mr. Jani
cigarettes. He said that he would need to check them first. However, while he
was abroad, this person dropped the cigarettes off. His father, who was

Page 26

8

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

working there at the time, told him and Mr. Jani had said to him to leave them
under the counter until his return.
Mr Panchal acknowledged that Mr Jani was at fault by keeping them at the
premises but there was no intention to sell as he wanted to check their
authenticity first.
Mr Panchal explained that the sale of alcohol outside hours was a mistake
and misunderstanding on Mr Jani’s part because when the late-night levy was
introduced, a minor variation was applied for to reduce the terminal hour to
23:00 hours. It was later realised that the licence could have allowed alcohol
sales to 23:59 hours and they tried to get that authorisation back but had not
done so during the period in question. Mr Panchal apologised to the SubCommittee on behalf of Mr Jani for not communicating this message to staff.
Mr Panchal explained that following the inspections by officers, lots of
improvements had been made at the premises and then questioned why
officers had not gone back to visit the premises or conducted any further test
purchases to check whether Mr Jani was complying with the conditions of his
licence.
Mr Panchal explained that Mr Jani was a good and responsible operator and
was very sorry for the breaches and urged members to consider a suspension
of the licence in this instance rather than revocation of the premises licence.
In response to questions the following was noted;
-

-

That according to Mr. Jani’s account, the cigarettes had been dropped
off that same day the seller visited the premises and that he had not
had time to check them. However earlier on in the hearing, it had been
said that Mr Jani was unaware of the box of cigarettes and did not
realise that they were there as he was abroad when they were
delivered.
Mr Panchal told the Sub-Committee that as soon as Mr. Jani found out
the cigarettes were counterfeit he did not wish to sell them.
It was accepted that it was a coincidence that during the two visits
made by officers, the two breaches had occurred.
That payment for the cigarettes had not been made as Mr Jani wanted
to check quality of the products first.
That it was normal to have different wholesaler representatives visit the
premises and sell goods and products.
That according to Mr Panchal the day the cigarettes were dropped off
to the shop, was the same day the officers had come to inspect the
premises.

Concluding remarks were made by both parties.

The Licensing Objectives

Page 27

9

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing
Objectives, the Home Office Guidance and the Council’s Statement of
Licensing Policy and in particular to have regard to the promotion of the four
licensing objectives:
5.
6.
7.
8.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;
Public Safety;
The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and
The Protection of Children from Harm.

Consideration

The Sub-Committee considered an application by Alex Brander, on behalf of
Tower Hamlets Trading Standards, for a review of the premises licence held
by Raj Singh Jani in respect of Old Ford Mini Market, 389 Old Ford Road,
London, E3 2LU (“the Premises”). The review was based on the licensing
objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public
nuisance.
Mr. Brander told the Sub-Committee that on 19th October 2021 a routine
inspection had been caried out at the Premises. Under the counter were
found 260 Benson and Hedges cigarettes, which were suspected of being
counterfeit, and 80 Marlboro Gold cigarettes which were suspected of being
illicit due to non-compliance with certain packaging and labelling
requirements. Mr. Jani was present at the time of the inspection and admitted
during the inspection that he knew the cigarettes were counterfeit.
During the course of the inspection one of the officers was accosted by a
member of the public. During the inspection Mr. Jani took a can of beer and
gave it to another member of the public outside the premises.
Ten days later, on 29th October 2021, Licensing Officers carried out a test
purchase at the Premises and a can of Carlsberg lager was sold at 23:12
hours. Licensable activity should have ceased at 23:00 hours.
On behalf of the licence holder the Sub-Committee was told that the Premises
had been licensed since 2005 and that Mr. Jani had taken over the Premises
in 2019. There had been no problems at the Premises prior to these incidents.
Mr. Jani was said to have been running licensed premises since 2017, that he
had trained staff, had a due diligence defence, and that the staff may have
made a mistake.
With regard to the cigarettes the Sub-Committee was told that there was no
evidence of sales. The account given was that somebody who supplied other
goods offered Mr. Jani cigarettes. He said that he would need to check them
first. While he was abroad, this person dropped the cigarettes off. His father,
who was working there at the time, told him and Mr. Jani said to leave them
under the counter until his return.

Page 28

10

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

When this was explored further by members, Mr. Jani’s account was that they
had been dropped off that same day, around 10:00 hours, and that he had not
had time to check them. Earlier in the course of the hearing, however, he had
said that he was unaware of the box of cigarettes and did not realise that they
were there. Mr. Jani’s agent told the Sub-Committee that as soon as Mr. Jani
found out the cigarettes were counterfeit he did not wish to sell them.
As regards the alcohol sale, the Sub-Committee was told that the Premises
previously held a later licence. However, when the late-night levy was
introduced, a minor variation was applied for to reduce the terminal hour to
23:00 hours. It was later realised that the licence could have allowed alcohol
sales to 23:59 hours and they tried to get that authorisation back.
This application engages the licensing objective of the prevention of crime
and disorder and, to a lesser extent, the prevention of public nuisance. The
Sub-Committee understands that its function is not to determine guilt or
innocence but to determine what measures would be appropriate to ensure
the promotion of the licensing objectives.
The Sub-Committee found the licence holder’s explanations to be wholly
unconvincing. It is noted that Mr. Jani was also the DPS and therefore held a
position of responsibility. As far as the cigarettes were concerned, the SubCommittee considered that these was not likely to be samples that had been
dropped off. Even if they were, however, Mr. Jani’s accounts were
inconsistent with one another. Despite admitting at the time that he knew the
cigarettes to be counterfeit and illicit, he also asserted that he did not know
that they were present or he had no time to check them. Regardless of which
account is in fact true, they should not have been present on the Premises.
Combined with the fact that he was not getting them from a usual supplier and
that, by his own account, he had said he’d need to check them first, he at
least had suspicions about the items yet nonetheless chose to keep them on
the Premises and under the counter, where there was an obvious risk of their
being sold. If that is not correct, however, he clearly had some suspicion as to
their provenance and took no measures to address that.
In this context the sale of alcohol outside permitted hours is less serious.
However, the Sub-Committee understood that the variation to avoid being
caught by the late-night levy had been made some time ago and the licence
holder must have known what the permitted hours were. The Sub-Committee
considered it reasonable to infer that this was unlikely to be an isolated
incident.
The Sub-Committee carefully considered all the options open to it. It did not
consider that doing nothing, imposing conditions, or removing the DPS would
suffice either alone or in combination. Mr. Jani’s agent submitted that this was
not a case that warranted revocation and that the Sub-Committee could
suspend. The Sub-Committee was not satisfied that this would address
matters. Leaving aside the confused accounts, it was not clear that the licence
holder really accepted any responsibility. He had only been operating the
Premises for two years and the Sub-Committee considered it reasonable to
infer that these issues had existed prior to 19th October 2021. The Sub-

Page 29

11

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 08/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

Committee has paid particular regard to paragraphs 11.26 to 11.28 of the
statutory guidance and notes that some problems may occur despite the best
efforts of management. This is not such a case. The use of the Premises for
the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco is something to be taken particularly
seriously and justifies revocation even at first instance. The Sub-Committee is
satisfied that revocation is the only appropriate and proportionate step that will
suffice to promote the licensing objectives.
Accordingly, the Sub Committee unanimously;
RESOLVED
That the application for a review of the Premises Licence for Old Ford Mini
Market, 389 Old Ford Road, London E3 2LU be GRANTED with the
revocation of the premises licence.

4.

EXTENSION OF DECISION DEADLINE: LICENSING ACT 2003
Nil items.

The meeting ended at 8.30 p.m.

Chair, Councillor Eve McQuillan
Licensing Sub Committee

Page 30

12

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS
MINUTES OF THE LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE
HELD AT 6.30 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 22 FEBRUARY 2022
THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG
Members Present:
Councillor Peter Golds (Chair)
Councillor Shad Chowdhury
Councillor Rajib Ahmed
Officers Present:
–
–
–

David Wong
Corinne Holland
Simmi Yesmin

(Legal Services)
(Licensing Officer)
(Democratic
Services
Committees, Governance)

Officer,

Representing applicants

Item Number

Role

Paddy Whur
Dean James
Archie Mcintosh
Marcus Lavell
Rosie Craig

4.1
4.1
4.1
4.2
4.2

Stephanie Webb

4.2

(Legal Representative)
(Applicant)
(Management)
(Legal Representative)
(Designated
Premises
Supervisor)
(Head of Corporate Affairs)

Representing objectors

Item Number

Role

PC Barry Leban
PC Mark Perry
Gurkan Oluc
Rory Malone
Hugh Lungmuss
Luke Houston

4.1
4.1
4.2
4.2
4.2
4.2

(Metropolitan Police)
(Metropolitan Police)
(Resident)
(Resident)
(Resident)
(Resident)

Apologies
None.

Page 31

1

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022
1.

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest made.

2.

RULES OF PROCEDURE
The rules of procedure were noted.

3.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S)
The minutes of the meetings held on 11th and 25th January were agreed and
approved as a correct record.

4.

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

4.1

Application for a New Premises Licence for (Oval Cafe) 11-12 The Oval,
London E2 9DU
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Licensing Officer, introduced the
report which detailed the application for a new premises licence for Oval Café,
The Oval, London E2 9DU. It was noted that objections had been received
from the Metropolitan Police in relation to the prevention of public nuisance,
the prevention of crime and disorder and public safety.
At the request of the Chair, Mr Paddy Whur, Legal Representative on behalf
of the Applicant explained the premises did have a premises licence which
dissolved on 1st October 2020 due to an administrative error. Therefore, a
new licence was being sought for the same hours as the previous licence, by
the same owners who also own the building which is part of the Pickle Factory
(a licensed venue). It was noted that the premises were licensed in 2014 and
variations were applied for during 2015 and 2018 which were not objected to.
Mr Whur referred to appendix 1 of the report on page 50 of the agenda which
detailed the previous licence and explained that an identical licence was being
sought. He explained that the premises are very small with a capacity of 50
people, and was adjoined The Pickle Factory which was a licensed venue and
had the same licensable hours as applied in the application. It was noted that
an application would not have been required had there not been an
administrative lapse in the licence.
He said the venue would be used for corporate events offering food and
drinks. It was stated that six years of successful trading with the same
management and same conditions should demonstrate to the Sub-Committee
that granting a premises licence would not undermine the licensing objectives.
He expressed his disappointment that objections were made as there was no
evidence of breaches of conditions, and the statistics of crime and disorder
that were referred to by the police related to area and ward statistics and did
not relate specifically to the premises.

Page 32

2

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

Mr Whur corrected the representation made by the Police by insisting that the
application was not in respect of additional premises but an application in
respect of existing premises. He believed that the objection made by the
Police was unsubstantiated as there was no evidence of crime and disorder
linked to the premises. He concluded that there have been no issues whilst
trading over the past years, an administrative error was the reason why a new
licence was being sought, and it was the same operators and same hours as
in relation to the previous licence. It was noted that as requested by Trading
Standards Services, the Applicant was happy to operate a Challenge 25
policy in place of the Challenge 21 policy, a historic condition on the previous
licence.
Members then heard from PC Barry Leban, Metropolitan Police, who
explained that he was objecting on the grounds of crime and disorder, public
nuisance and public safety. He stated that the premises was a night club and
would be affected by patrons from The Pickle Factory, which had a capacity of
500, and the Oval Space which had a capacity of 1000 and those patrons
would be using this premises. He explained that The Oval was a small area
which had high levels of anti-social behaviour.
He referred to a recent incident on 20th February 2022, where there were 80100 people loitering in the area and causing disturbance.He acknowledged
that he could not link it to the Oval Space, but it was in the same area. He
also referred to an incident when the police had been called by Mr Ross
Melinn, Manager of the Oval Space, to help assist with a high risk event with
900 guests. A search of the guests disclosed a weapon in a form of a
screwdriver.
PC Leban highlighted that during December 2021 – January 2022, 629
reports of crime were reported in St Peters Ward, of which 191 offences were
against a person, although these incidents were not connected to the Oval
Space. However, additional licensed premises in his view would contribute to
the crime and disorder and public nuisance in the area.
PC Mark Perry, Metropolitan Police, said that it was a small venue, and that
the Police were not out to target late night venues, but another licensed venue
in this particular area where high levels of anti-social behaviour are
experienced. PC Perry considered that granting the application would lead to
a strong probability of increased activity by nitrous oxide canister sellers, and
more public nuisance outside the venue.
In response to questions the following was noted;
-

-

That the Oval Café was a separate entity and had a different ownership
to Oval Space, but the management team were a shared resource
between those premises, and the applicant Mr Dean James sat on the
board of directors for the Oval Space.
That the Pickle Factory had a capacity of 250 and not 500 as stated by
the Police.
The premises were separate from the Pickle Factory, hence a separate
licence was required. However, both the buildings were adjoined

Page 33

3

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

-

-

-

-

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

together, and currently the premises were being used as a breakout
area for patrons attending the Pickle Factory.
That the applicant was of the view that it was not a new licence, but
merely a reinstatement of the previous one which had lapsed.
There was no evidence of crime and disorder linked to the premises
during the time it had operated previously.
That there were no objections to the previous licence.
Questions were raised why framework hours could not be applied as it
had been suggested that the venue would be used for corporate
events.
It was confirmed that there were no crimes or public nuisance directly
linked to the premises but there were high level of crimes and disorder
in the local area.
That The Oval was an ideal place for people to congregate after
attending late night venues, as there was an illegal food van where
people congregated to eat late at night.
It was noted that there was no evidence of crime and disorder that the
police could link to the premises.
Assertions on the part of the applicant were made that the Police were
treating the applicant unfavourably.

PC Perry and PC Leban both confirmed that the statistics of crime and
disorder in the area were not specifically linked to the Pickle Factory or The
Oval Space. They maintained that any representation they made was
impartial, and as Police Officers gave their expert opinion on and the basis of
which it was their view that on the balance of probability, additional premises
in that particular area would likely lead to an increase in public nuisance and
crime and disorder.
Concluding remarks were made by both parties.

The Licensing Objectives
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing
Objectives, the Home Office Guidance and the Council’s Statement of
Licensing Policy and in particular to have regard to the promotion of the four
licensing objectives:
1.
2.
3.
4.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;
Public Safety;
The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and
The Protection of Children from Harm.

Consideration
The Sub-Committee considered an application for a new premises licence in
respect of Oval Café, 11-12 The Oval, London E2 9DU (“the Premises”). The
application sought to permit the sale of alcohol and the provision of regulated
entertainment by way of recorded music and the provision of late night

Page 34

4

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

refreshments. The application attracted objections from the Metropolitan
Police relating to the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and
disorder, promoting public safety and preventing public nuisance.
The Sub-Committee noted that the premises did previously have a licence
which had lapsed due to an administrative error.
The Sub-Committee noted a comment by the police during the meeting that
whilst their concerns arose from crime and disorder in the area, the police
accepted that there was no evidence of that being linked to the Oval Café.
The Sub-Committee noted comment by the police that their concerns were
based upon professional opinion. However, decisions of the Licensing SubCommittee must be based upon evidence, and in the absence of direct
evidence linking the Oval Cafe to crime and disorder, public nuisance, and
issues of public safety, the Sub-Committee was satisfied that granting the
application would not undermine the above licensing objectives.
The Sub-Committee appreciated that the police had concerns about the
applicant regarding separate premises. However, those premises were not
the subject of this application, which had to be considered on its own merits.
In light of the concerns raised by the police in relation to the area generally,
the Sub-Committee considered it reasonable and proportionate to include as
conditions of the premises licence, those set out below, in addition to the
conditions which are in any event mandatory.
The Sub-Committee could not grant the full range of hours sought for the sale
of alcohol and the provision of late night refreshment, because the terminal
hour for licensable activities cannot be the same as the time for closing to the
public, otherwise issues can arise with late orders when closing the premises
to the public.
Therefore, Members made a decision and the decision was unanimous.
Members granted the application in part with conditions.
Accordingly, the Sub Committee unanimously;
RESOLVED
That the application for a new Premises Licence for Oval Café, 11-12 The
Oval, London E2 9DU be GRANTED with amendments and conditions.
Sale of Alcohol (On Sales only)
Monday to Thursday from 12:00 hours to 23:30 hours
Friday and Saturday from 12:00 hours to 00:00 hours (midnight)
Sunday from 12:00 hours to 22:30 hours
The Provision of Late Night Refreshments (indoors)

Page 35

5

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

Monday to Thursday from 23:00 hours to 23:30 hours
Friday and Saturday from 23:00 hours to 00:00 hours (midnight)
The Provision of Regulated Entertainment – indoors (Recorded Music)
Thursday from 23:00 hours to 23:30 hours
Friday and Saturday from 23:00 hours to 00:00 hours (midnight)
Sunday from 23:00 hours to 22:30 hours
Non-standard timings
New Years Eve, above licensable activities from 08:00 hours to 03:00 hours
to 03:00 hours on New Year’s Day.
Opening Hours
Monday to Thursday from 00:00 hours to 00:00 hours (midnight)
Friday and Saturday from 08:00 hours to 00:30 hours (the following day)
Sunday from 08:00 hours to 23:00 hours
Conditions

1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system
as per the minimum requirements of the Tower Hamlets Police Licensing
Team. All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal
identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV
system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable
activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises. All
recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and
time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately
upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31
day period.
2. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of
the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises
are open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or
authorised council officer with copies of recent CCTV images or data with
the absolute minimum of delay when requested.
3. When the designated premises supervisor is not on the premises, any or
all persons authorised to sell alcohol will be authorised by the designated
premises supervisor in writing. This shall be available on request by the
Police or any authorised officer.
4. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised
photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or
proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.

Page 36

6

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

5. The premises will be serve only seated patrons, and the premises shall be
supervised by a floor manager and an S.I.A accredited door supervisor
after 21:00hrs until the premises close to the public.
6. That an incident report book be kept to record all incidents of crime and
disorder associated with the premises.
7. Deliveries shall be only from 08:00hrs to 19:00hrs Monday to Saturday.
8. The café shall be strictly adults only after 18:00hrs.
9. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted
through the structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance
10. A Noise Limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a
level determined by and to the satisfaction of an acoustic consultant who
is a member of the Institute of Acoustics so as to ensure that no noise
nuisance is caused to local residents or businesses.
a. The operation panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured by a key
or password to the satisfaction of the acoustic consultant and access
shall only be by persons authorised by the Premises Licence Holder.
b. No alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should
be effected without prior agreement with an acoustic consultant.
c. No additional sound generating equipment shall be used on the
premise without being routed through the sound limiter device.
11. At times when this premises operates with the (Pickle Factory), 14 The
Oval, London E2 9DT, then following Pickle Factory Conditions shall
apply.
a. Any private hire shall be internally risk assessed in advance.
b. Cab service shall be offered to all guests leaving the building.
c. Deliveries shall take place Monday to Saturday, from 08:00 hours to
19:00 hours and Sundays, from 09:00 hours to 12:00 hours.
d. SIA accredited staff shall be deployed in a pattern and numbers
agreed by the DPS and the Police.
e. Toilets shall be checked at least every 30 minutes at peak times to
detect and discourage drug use during events. Records of these checks
shall be kept.
f. A barricade is to be used outside the entrance to the venue when
events are on to facilitate the effective queuing of people wishing to gain
entry.

Page 37

7

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

g. All members of Management and Staff shall be briefed as to the
operation of ‘Challenge 25’ and ‘Don’t Do Drunk’ Policies, with the
related paperwork acknowledged and signed. This also applies to all
new starters and trial shift applicants.
h. An incident book shall be kept and maintained every day the premises
is open.
i). The incident book shall contain the names and numbers of SIA
accredited security staff, their time on duty and time off duty.
ii). The incident book shall also record any refusals of entry, refusals of
sale of alcohol and any incidents of disorder, incidents of crime or other
incidents of note.
iii). The incident book shall be signed off by the duty manager at the end
of each day.
i. To be a member of the local “pub watch” and to send representatives
to all related meetings.
j. All flat surfaces in the toilet areas shall be removed or covered over to
prevent and deter drug use. Toilet seat covers shall be removed from all
toilets.
k. All security staff shall wear their identification badges and high
visibility tabards clearly marked “Security”.
l. A joint strategy between the Oval and the Pickle Factory for managing
customers arriving and leaving their respective venues shall be
completed and agreed by Police.
m. Prominent notices will be placed throughout the venue asking
customers to mind their property and report any suspicious incidents.
n. Safety checks will be carried out monthly prior to opening and all
incidents will be recorded in a log book which will be available for
inspection by authorised officers.
o. Floor staff will be allocated tasks around the venue to be completed
every 15 minutes to ensure no trip hazards are present.
p. All sweeps of the venue will be recorded in a nightly log.
q. Prominent signs will be displayed to ensure guests are quiet leaving
the venue.
r. Front of house staff will monitor guests entering or leaving the venue
to ensure moderate behaviour.

Page 38

8

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

s. Bottling out from premises will be forbidden between 22:00hrs and the
following morning at 09:00hrs
t. A Challenge 25 policy shall be in operation. A log shall be kept of all
challenges made by staff.

4.2

Application for a New Premise Licence for Gopuff, 89 Hemming Street,
London, E1 5BW
At the request of the Chair, Ms Kathy Driver, Licensing Officer, introduced the
report which detailed the application for a new premises licence for Gopuff, 89
Hemming Street, London E1 5BW. It was noted that objections had been
received from local residents in relation to the prevention of public nuisance
and the prevention of crime and disorder.
At the request of the Chair, Mr Marcus Lavell, Legal Representative on behalf
of the Applicants explained that they were seeking a 24-hour sale of alcohol
licence for an online delivery only, app based business selling groceries to a
specific catchment area.
He acknowledged the concerns raised by residents, and said that the external
activities and observations made by residents from other delivery companies
should not be used against these premises. It was noted that the current
premises were 6000sqft, with an adequate delivery collection space, and an
internal waiting lobby area for delivery drivers. He explained that the delivery
drivers were directly employed by the company, and therefore assurances
could be given that drivers would be under direct control by the business and
would work and adhere to company policies.
It was noted that the premises would gererate 24 hours activity and would be
operating with an electric fleet of bikes which would not generate noise
nuisance. It was also noted that the sale of alcohol would accompany some of
the orders placed. He said that there would be no negative impact, but a
positive effect as there would be more control over operation of the premises
by way of conditions offered.
Members then heard from Mr Gurkan Oluc, Mr Rory Malone, Mr Luke
Houston and Mr Hugh Lungmuss, local residents who expressed concerns
around public nuisance and issues of public safety arising from delivery
drivers. Particular examples were given of bad behaviour, littering and noise
nuisance. It was noted that the premises were situated near a densely
populated residential area and in close proximity to properties designed for
disabled residents, wheelchair users etc and young families.
Experiences were shared about occasions where delivery drivers have
blocked pavements not allowing wheelchair users and people with buggies
the access to the pavement. It was also mentioned that the same operators
operated from another site in Dunbridge Street, where similar concerns were
experienced too. Residents also described occasions when there has been

Page 39

9

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

gridlocked traffic at nights with delivery mopeds and bikes using the
pavements to drive through causing a danger to local residents.
It was noted that the area was a residential area, with young families, and
disabled residents, and if a licence was granted, there was a likely risk that
there would be trouble with access and egress, increase in traffic flow,
congestion and public nuisance in particular noise nuisance. In general, the
residents believed that the premises were not the appropriate location for the
nature of the type of business in question.
In response to questions the following was noted;
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

That the premises could continue operating a 24-hour delivery service
of products other than alcohol without being required by the Law to
have a premises licence.
It was noted that the venue was a mixed-use site and a suitable venue
for the nature of the business in question.
Page 153 of the agenda showed plans of where the bikes would be
kept when not out on delivery. This area was inside the gated area and
not on the pavement.
That the drivers had a waiting area where they would wait and pick up
orders for delivery.
There would be control over the behaviour of drivers directly employed
by the business, unlike other services who use third party delivery
companies.
Delivery drivers would be directly employed by the company and be
bound by their contract and conditions.
That Gopuff started operating in France and Spain in 2013 and started
operating in England in 2020-2021.
That drivers would be given adequate training and would be subject to
corrective actions and dismissal if any breaches are made. They would
be required to stay inside the premises onsite when they are not
making deliveries.
A robust set of conditions was proposed and detailed in the
supplemental agenda.
The applicants were happy to have a condition to restrict the times for
when deliveries of goods are made at the premises.
It was believed that the number of deliveries would increase if alcohol
was available to order.
That contact details of the manager/area manager could be made
available to residents to directly report any complaints or issues and
that this could be made as a condition of the licence.
That if the licence is granted, and drivers are seen to congregate or
smoke outside the premises causing disturbance, then the licence
holder would be in breach of the licensing conditions, the premises
licensee can be fined/prosecuted, and the premises licence reviewed.
Drivers would be trained for the delivery of age restricted products and
these were detailed in the supplemental agenda.
That it was a unique business, in that as it was not open to the public to
attend in person, it would not be attracting people to the area or cause
an increase in footfall.

Page 40

10

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

Concluding remarks were made by both parties.

The Licensing Objectives
In considering the application, Members were required to consider the same
in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended), the Licensing
Objectives, the Home Office Guidance and the Council’s Statement of
Licensing Policy and in particular to have regard to the promotion of the four
licensing objectives:
1.
2.
3.
4.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder;
Public Safety;
The Prevention of Public Nuisance; and
The Protection of Children from Harm.

Consideration
The Sub-Committee considered an application for a new premises licence in
respect of Gopuff, 89 Hemming Street, London E1 5BW (“the Premises”). The
application sought to permit the sale of alcohol (off sales) Monday to Sunday
24 hours per day. The application attracted objections from some thirty local
residents. These were predominantly concerned with the licensing objectives
of the prevention of public nuisance and, to a lesser extent, the prevention of
crime and disorder.
The Sub-Committee noted the concerns of local residents about increased
noise nuisance particularly late at night, issues of additional delivery traffic in
the area, and more congestion. The Sub-Committee also noted residents’
concerns about the existing levels of noise nuisance and anti-social behaviour
in the area impacting the quality of life of local residents, and the additional
noise disturbance likely to result from the 24-hour supply of alcohol. The SubCommittee also noted, however, that some of the issues complained of, such
as road traffic contraventions or drug users loitering in the area, were not
linked to the Premises and were not within the control of the Premises. The
fact that the Premises would not be open to the public would not attract
people to the area seeking to buy alcohol from the Premises.
The Sub-Committee welcomed the efforts made by the Applicant in offering
robust conditions, and also agreeing to a condition to restrict the timings for
the delivery of goods to the premises. It was also noted that all delivery
drivers will be employed directly by the company, which gave Members
assurance that the Applicant would have direct control regarding delivery
drivers compliance with licence conditions relating to deliveries and the
conduct of delivery drivers.
The Sub-Committee appreciated the concerns expressed by residents.
However, the Sub-Committee recognised that as the premises were already
providing a delivery service in respect of non-alcoholic products, an aspect of
the business which is outside the scope of licensing regulation, the Sub-

Page 41

11

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

Committee’s powers in relation to residents’ concerns were limited to the
proposed supply of alcohol. A refusal of the application would not prevent the
Applicant from operating its existing deliveries of non-alcoholic products and
refusal would, in any event, not be proportionate.
The Sub-Committee was particularly concerned with the potential impact of
the operation of the Premises outside of framework hours and late into the
evening and the early hours. The area itself is mostly residential and there are
no other late-night premises in the immediate vicinity. There were only three
licensed premises nearby; one was under the railway bridge, which was
adjacent to the Premises, and closed at 21:00 hours, and two were in
Dunbridge Street, which was on the other side of the railway bridge. Of those,
one was a 24-hour petrol station. The impact of those premises upon the
residents of Hemming Street was thus limited to an extent.
However, the proximity of these Premises to residential properties did, in the
Sub-Committee’s view, give rise to a greater risk of noise disturbance late at
night. Some of the residents made specific reference to drivers congregating
outside the business. Although a condition was offered up in that regard, it
would not affect any drivers finishing their shift who then decided to remain in
the area. There was also the possibility of drivers and riders playing music on
their mobile phones and other devices whilst outside and upon leaving the
Premises. The Sub-Committee also noted the concerns regarding traffic
congestion and considered that at the later hours there was further risk of
noise disturbance to residents such as from drivers sounding their horns
Whilst the Sub-Committee accepted that the Premises carry on nonlicensable activity (subject to planning permission) outside of the framework
hours, it considered there to be a real risk that orders placed late at night were
predominantly going to be for alcohol and that the availability of alcohol risked
increasing the number of orders placed later in the evening and thus lead to
more delivery driver and rider traffic to and from the Premises late at night
with an inevitable impact upon the local residents.
The Sub-Committee had regard to paragraphs 10.13 to 10.15 of the Statutory
Guidance, which addresses hours for trading and which notes that “Licensing
authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate opening
hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsible authorities.” Obviously, such decisions must be based on the
merits of individual applications. Further, paragraph 10.15 is clear that whilst
shops, supermarkets and stores should normally be free to sell alcohol
throughout their hours of trading, this can be restricted where there are good
reasons for doing so based on the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee
also had regard to section 14 of the Statement of Licensing Policy, in
particular paragraphs 14.8-14.10.
The Sub-Committee considered that as far as its powers would permit, its
decision would seek to mitigate the likely impact upon residents of the
addition of alcohol to the range of products delivered by the Applicant, with
particular regard to the licensing objective of preventing public nuisance, for
the reasons set out above. The Sub-Committee therefore felt that whilst it was
appropriate to grant the application, it was also appropriate and proportionate

Page 42

12

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

to reduce the hours permitted for licensable activity to the Council’s
framework hours.
Therefore, Members made a decision and the decision was by a majority
vote. Members granted the application with amendments and conditions.
Accordingly, the Sub Committee by a majority vote;
RESOLVED
That the application for a New Premises Licence for Gopuff, 89 Hemming
Street, London E1 5BW be GRANTED with amendments and conditions.
Sale of Alcohol (off sales only)
Monday to Thursday from 06:00 hours to 23:30 hours
Friday and Saturday from 06:00 hours to 00:00 hours (midnight)
Sunday from 06:00 hours to 22:30 hours
Hours premises are open
Monday to Sunday from 00:00 hours – 24:00 hours (24 hours a day)
Conditions
1. All staff will be fully trained in their responsibilities with particular regard
to the promotion of the licensing objectives regarding the sale of
alcohol, and will be retrained every six months, with recorded training
records kept for inspection.
2. Members of the public shall not be allowed on the premises at any
time.
3. The licence and premises are to fulfil internet generated sales for
delivery and no direct sales shall take place to the general public from
the site.
4. A CCTV system is in operation for the warehouse, to provide security
and identify any person or persons causing or likely to be causing
trouble. All images are stored for a period of 31 days after which they
can be erased or saved at the request of the police. All existing security
measures will remain in operation. All staff will be fully trained in the
operation of the CCTV system to ensure it is operational during all the
hours of trade. Images will be made available to the police or
authorised licensing officer from the Council on request.
5. A Challenge 25 age verification scheme will be used. ID will be
required for deliveries to customers who do not appear to be at least 25
years old. They will be required to prove that they are at least 18 years
of age, by way of photographic ID, either a passport or driving licence.
The card used for purchase will also be checked against the ID

Page 43

13

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

provided. If there is any doubt by staff as to the age of the person or
persons taking delivery, then the delivery of alcohol will not be made,
and a full refund will be issued. Postal/ carriage deliveries will only be
made once a verified payment method has been established, and the
customer has confirmed they are 18 years of age or over when making
the purchase.
6. No idling of vehicles that are awaiting access to the premises or waiting
to pick up a delivery.
7. Alcohol shall only be delivered to a residential or business address and
not to a public place.
8. Only electric or pedal powered vehicles shall be used by delivery
drivers/riders delivering products sold from the Premises, to customers.
9. Delivery drivers waiting to collect customers’ orders for delivery, shall
not be allowed to congregate outside the Premises (save in the event
of a fire drill of fire evacuation) and shall be required by the Premises
Licence Holder to wait inside the Premises.
10. No deliveries of goods to the premises shall take place between 19:00
hours and 07:00 hours the following day except for fresh bakery
delivery.
11. A direct telephone number for the manager at the premises shall be
publicly available at all times the premises is open. This telephone
number is to be made available to residents and businesses in the
vicinity.
12.

All potential customers must verify on the payment page of the website
that they are at least 18 years of age. If the applicant is in any doubt as
to the age of the customer, they will only deliver the alcohol if the
owner of the card that made the payment is present at the delivery
address for the purpose of age verification. Orders will only be
despatched to bona fide addresses.

13. All sales of alcohol for delivery must be paid for by credit card, debit
card (pre- paid or otherwise) or electronic payment.
14. Details of the order (including the type, amount of alcohol, name and
address of the customer and delivery address if different) must be
included with the order. The detail shall be shown on the electronic
receipt provided to the customer.
15. All delivery drivers and riders must allow any police or authorised local
authority officers to inspect any alcohol.
16. Deliveries only made to those over the age of 18 years.

Page 44

14

LICENSING SUB COMMITTEE, 22/02/2022
4.3

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED)

Application for Temporary Event Notice for Cabbys Rum Bar, Arch 411
St Pauls Way, London E3 4AG
This application was withdrawn by the Applicant prior to the meeting.

5.

EXTENSION OF DECISION DEADLINE: LICENSING ACT 2003
Nil items.

The meeting ended at 9.15 p.m.

Chair, Councillor Peter Golds
Licensing Sub Committee

Page 45

15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4.1
Committee:

Date

Licensing Sub Committee

22/03/22

Classification

Report No.

Agenda Item No.

Unrestricted

Report of:
David Tolley
Head of Environmental Health & Trading
Standards

Title:
Licensing Act 2003 Application for a new Premise
Licence for Organic Grocery Store, 284-286 Poplar
High Street, London, E14 0BB

Originating Officer:
Corinne Holland
Licensing Officer

Ward affected:
Poplar

1.0 Summary
Applicant:

Suleyman Solak

Name and
Address of Premises:

Organic Grocery Store
284-286 Poplar High Street
London
E14 0BB

Licence sought:

Licensing Act 2003
Sale by retail of Alcohol (off sales)

Objectors:

Resident

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections
then adjudicate accordingly.
LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97)
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT
Brief description of "background paper"

Tick if copy supplied for
register

File
Section 182 Guidance
LBTH Licensing Policy

If not supplied, name and telephone
number of holder

Corinne Holland
020 7364 3986

Page 47

3.0 Background
3.1 This is an application for a new Premise Licence for Organic Grocery
Store, 284-286 Poplar High Street, London, E14 0BB.
3.2 The applicant has described the premises as: An organic grocery store/
retail shop.
3.3 A copy of the application is shown in Appendix 1.
3.4 The hours applied for are as follows:
Sale of Alcohol (off sales)
Sunday - Thursday 07:00 hours – 23:00 hours
Friday – Saturday 07:00 hours – 00:00 hours (midnight)
The non-standard hours (NYE) in the application were not advertised so
cannot be included and have been removed.
Opening times
Sunday - Thursday 07:00 hours – 23:00 hours
Friday – Saturday 07:00 hours – 00:00 hours (midnight)

4.0 Location and Nature of the premises
4.1 The site plan of the venue is included as Appendix 2.
4.2 Maps showing the vicinity are included as Appendix 3.
4.3 Photographs of the premises are included in Appendix 4.
4.4 Details of other licensed venues in the immediate vicinity are included as
Appendix 5.
5.0 Licensing Policy and Government Advice
5.1 The Council has adopted a licensing policy and this is available from the
Licensing Section, and at the hearing. The revised policy came into effect
on 1st November 2018.
5.2 Relevant Sections of the policy are brought to the attention of Members
within the Licensing Officers report.
5.3 The Home Secretary has issued Guidance under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003. This is available on the Government’s website,
www.homeoffice.gov.uk. It was last revised in April 2018.
5.4 Relevant Sections of this advice are brought to Members attention within
the Licensing Officers report. Members should note however, than in some

Page 48

areas Tower Hamlets, after a proper consideration of local circumstances,
has not followed the Government’s advice, or has developed it further.
6.0 Representations
6.1 All representations have to meet basic legal and administrative
requirements. If they fail to do so they cannot be accepted. When rejected
the person sending in the representation must be written to, and an
explanation for rejection given in writing.
6.2 A responsible authority or other person can make a representation. There
are two tests for other persons and only one for a responsible authority.
The two tests are contained in Section 18 of the Act.
6.3 All representations must be “about the likely effect of the grant of the
premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.” Likely
means something that will probably happen, i.e. on balance more likely
than not.
6.4 Representations by responsible authorities do not have to meet the second
test of not being vexatious and frivolous. Other persons have to meet this
test.
6.5 The Home Office recommends that in borderline cases, the benefit of the
doubt should be given to the interested party making the representation.
6.6 Section 182 Advice by the Home Office concerning relevant, vexatious and
frivolous representations is attached as Appendix 6.
6.7 All the representations in this report have been considered by the relevant
officer (Team Leader Licensing & Safety) and determined to have met the
requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.
6.8 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because relevant
representations have been made by the following.


Laura Spenceley – Appendix 7

6.9 All of the responsible authorities have been consulted about this
application. They are as follows:
 The Licensing Authority
 The Metropolitan Police
 The LFEPA (the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority).
 Planning
 Health and Safety
 Noise (Environmental Health)
 Trading Standards
 Child Protection
 Public Heath

Page 49



Home office (Immigration Enforcement)

6.10 In addition the application was required to be advertised in a local
newspaper and by a blue poster. Only objections that relate to the
following licensing objectives are relevant:
 the prevention of crime and disorder
 public safety
 the prevention of public nuisance
 the protection of children from harm
6.11 The objections relate to:
 Public nuisance
 Crime and Disorder
 ASB

6.12 Essentially, the relevant parties oppose the application because the
applicant has not explained how within the context of the application they
will meet licensing objective of the prevention of public nuisance and the
prevention of crime and disorder.
6.13 There are strict time limits to any representations. The time limits are
contained in The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises
certificates) Regulations 2005.
6.14 The applicant has offered measures in the operating schedule of the
application that address the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. If there
were no representations, the Licensing Authority would grant the licence,
with conditions consistent with the operating schedule, which are relevant,
proportionate and enforceable. Members are asked to consider the
schedule and incorporate any conditions as necessary to address the
licensing objectives.

7.0 Conditions consistent with Operating Schedule

1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system.
All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of
every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall
continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and
during all times when customers remain on the premises. All recordings
shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and time
stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately
upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout the entire 31
day period.
2. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and be available on request
to the Police or an authorised officer. It must be completed within 24
hours of any incident and will record the following:

Page 50

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

all crimes reported to the venue;
any incidents of disorder;
any faults in the CCTV system,
any refusal of the sale of alcohol;
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

3. There will be a prominent signage near the door to the premises
reminding the customers to leave the area quietly.
4. Deliveries to the premises shall only be made during normal working
hours.
5. Rubbish from the premises shall be securely stored in a bin in a
designated area. Bins shall not be emptied outside the premises in the
late evening, night or early morning.
6. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised
photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or
proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.
7. A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The record
should include the date and time of the refused sale and the name of the
member of staff who refused the sale. The record shall be available for
inspection at the premises by the police or an authorised officer at all
times whilst the premises is open.
8. Children under the age of 14 years shall not be allowed to enter the
premises after 21:00 hours unless accompanied by a person over the
age of 18 years.

8.0 Conditions Agreed/Requested by Responsible Authority
None
9.0 Licensing Officer Comments

9.1 The following is intended to advise Members of the relevant aspects of the
Boroughs Licensing Policy, guidance from the Secretary of State,
legislation and good practice. Members may depart from the Council’s
Licensing Policy and/or Government advice, provide they consider it
appropriate to do so, and have clear reasons for their decision.

Page 51

9.2 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003


As stated in the guidance it is “provided to licensing authorities in
relation to the carrying out of their functions under the 2003 Act.” It is
a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent
application and promoting fairness equal treatment and
proportionality (1.7).



Also “as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this
Guidance, they may depart from it if they have good reason to do so
and can provide full reasons. Departure from this Guidance could
give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons given will
then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.” Therefore licensing
authorities will need to give full reasons for their actions (1.9).



Also Members should note “A Licensing Authority may depart from its
own policy if the individual circumstances of any case merit such a
decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.”
(1.12)



Also, “The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless
its discretion has been exercised following receipt of relevant
representations and it is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all
parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing
objectives.” Therefore, conditions may not be imposed for the
purpose other than promoting the licensing objectives and in some
cases no additional conditions will be appropriate. (10.8)



Necessary conditions should emerge from a risk assessment by the
applicant, which should then be reflected in the operating schedule
(10.4).



The Guidance states: “Where there are objections to an application to
extend the hours during which licensable activities are to be carried
on and the licensing authority determines that this would undermine
the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with
appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.”
(10.14)



Mandatory conditions must be imposed (10.25) and censorship
avoided (10.17).



The Guidance states: “It is still permitted to sell alcohol using
promotions (as long as they are compatible with any other licensing
condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should
ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted
price. Detailed guidance on the use of promotions is given in the
guidance document available on the Gov.uk website.” (10.58)

Page 52



Also, “Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket
conditions promoting fixed prices for alcoholic drinks to premises
licences or club licences or club premises certificates in an area.”
(10.21)

9.3 The Licensing Act 2003 permits children of any age to be on the premises
which primarily sell alcohol providing they are accompanied by an adult. It
is not necessary to make this a condition.
9.4 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden of
proof, that is “the balance of probability.”
9.5 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation is
the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already adequately
covered elsewhere.
9.6 The Government has advised that conditions must be tailored to the
individual type, location and characteristics of the premises and events
concerned. Conditions cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers
once they are beyond the direct management of the licence holder and
their staff and standardised conditions should be avoided where they
cannot be shown to be appropriate. (1.16/1.17)
9.7 The Council’s Licensing Policy generally expects applicants to address the
licensing objectives and discuss how to do this with the relevant
responsible authorities.
9.8 In Appendices 8 - 14 Members are given general advice, and also have
explanations of the Council’s Licensing Policy, Government advice and
other legislation relating to the matters previously identified.
10.0 Legal Comments
10.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing.
11.0 Finance Comments
11.1 There are no financial implications in this report.

Page 53

12.0 Appendices

Appendix 1

A copy of the application

Appendix 2

Site Plan

Appendix 3

Maps of the surrounding area

Appendix 4

Photographs of the premises

Appendix 5

Other licensed venues in the area

Appendix 6

Section 182 Advice by the DCMS- Relevant, vexatious
and frivolous representations

Appendix 7

Representations from Resident

Appendix 8

Licensing Officer comments on public nuisance

Appendix 9

S182 advice on public nuisance

Appendix 10

Licensing Officer comments on crime & disorder

Appendix 11

S182 advice on crime & disorder

Appendix 12

ASB leaving the premises

Appendix 13

Licensing Policy relating to hours of trading

Appendix 14

Planning

Page 54

Appendix 1

Page 55

Tower Hamlets
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 7364 5008

* required information

Section 1 of 21
You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.
This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

System reference

Not Currently In Use

Your reference

284-286 Poplar High Street

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?
Yes

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

No

Applicant Details
* First name

Suleyman

* Family name

Solak

* E-mail
Include country code.

Main telephone number
Other telephone number

Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Is the applicant:
Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader
Applying as an individual

Page 56
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Continued from previous page...

Address
* Building number or name

284-286

* Street

Poplar High Street

District

Tower Hamlets

* City or town

London

County or administrative area
* Postcode

E14 0BB

* Country

United Kingdom

Agent Details
* First name

Inan

* Family name

Gokcek

* E-mail
Include country code.

Main telephone number
Other telephone number
Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you:
An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader
A private individual acting as an agent

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

Agent Business
Is your business registered in
the UK with Companies
House?

Yes

No

Is your business registered
outside the UK?

Yes

No

Business name
VAT number

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.
Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Studio Anares
-

Legal status

Sole Trader

Your position in the business

Owner

Home country

United Kingdom

The country where the headquarters of your
business is located.

Page 57
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

Continued from previous page...

Agent Business Address

If you have one, this should be your official
address - that is an address required of you
by law for receiving communications.

Building number or name

City or town
County or administrative area

Country

United Kingdom

Section 2 of 21
PREMISES DETAILS
I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.
Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
Address

OS map reference

Description

Postal Address Of Premises
Building number or name

284-286

Street

Poplar High Street

District

Tower Hamlets

City or town

London

County or administrative area
Postcode

E14 0BB

Country

United Kingdom

Further Details
Telephone number
Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£)

25,000

Page 58
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Section 3 of 21
APPLICATION DETAILS
In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?
An individual or individuals
A limited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)
An unincorporated association
Other (for example a statutory corporation)
A recognised club
A charity
The proprietor of an educational establishment
A health service body
A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales
A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England
The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales
Confirm The Following
I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves
the use of the premises for licensable activities
I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function
I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative
Section 4 of 21
INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS
Applicant Name
Is the name the same as (or similar to) the details given in section one?
Yes

No

First name
Family name
Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?
Yes

No

Page 59
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as required.
Select “No” to enter a completely new set of
details.

Continued from previous page...

Current Residential Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?
Yes

No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

Building number or name

District
City or town
County or administrative area

Country

United Kingdom

Applicant Contact Details
Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?
Yes

No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

Telephone number
Other telephone number
* Date of birth
dd

* Nationality

mm

yyyy

Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
work in the UK
Right to work share code if not submitting
scanned documents

British

Right to work share code
Add another applicant

Section 5 of 21
OPERATING SCHEDULE
When do you want the
premises licence to start?

30

/

dd

If you wish the licence to be
valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end
dd

01

/

mm

/

2022
yyyy

/
mm

yyyy

Provide a general description of the premises

Page 60
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.
The premises occupies commercial units 1 and 2 on the ground floor in a mixed use building. The two units are connected
internally and are proposed as an organic grocery store/ retail shop.

If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the
premises at any one time,
state the number expected to
attend
Section 6 of 21
PROVISION OF PLAYS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing plays?
Yes

No

Section 7 of 21
PROVISION OF FILMS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing films?
Yes

No

Section 8 of 21
PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing indoor sporting events?
Yes

No

Section 9 of 21
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?
Yes

No

Section 10 of 21
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing live music?
Yes

No

Section 11 of 21
PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 61

Continued from previous page...

Will you be providing recorded music?
Yes

No

Section 12 of 21
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing performances of dance?
Yes

No

Section 13 of 21
PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?
Yes

No

Section 14 of 21
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Will you be providing late night refreshment?
Yes

No

Section 15 of 21
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL
Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?
Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

Page 62
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Continued from previous page...

FRIDAY
Start 07:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:
On the premises

Off the premises

Both

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
From 08:00 to 02:00 on New Year's Eve

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as premises supervisor
Name
First name

Suleyman

Family name

Solak

Date of birth
dd

mm

yyyy

Page 63
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Enter the contact's address
Building number or name

District
City or town
County or administrative area

Country

United Kingdom

Personal Licence number
(if known)
Issuing licensing authority
(if known)
PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT
How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?
Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor
As an attachment to this application
Reference number for consent
form (if known)

If the consent form is already submitted, ask
the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your
reference'.

Section 16 of 21
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children
Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.
None

Section 17 of 21
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 07:00
Start
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

End 23:00

PageEnd64

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY
Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 00:00

Start

End

Start 07:00

End 23:00

Start

End

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

State any seasonal variations
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.
From 07:00 until 02:00 on New Year's Eve

Section 18 of 21
LICENSING OBJECTIVES
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 65

Continued from previous page...

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
The management is to be to work in a partnership with neighbouring businesses, as well as local authorities such as police,
council, fire brigade and all the other relevant ones.The premises is to undertake all necessary fire risk assessments and
precautions. The layout of the premises provides users a quick and easy escape to the exit. All the proposed equipment is to
be installed by qualified/competent persons. An electrically operated fire alarm system that complies with BS 5839: part 1 is
to be installed to warn of any fire at its earliest stage, together with the regulated emergency lighting systems complying
with BS 52266.
The premises will open and shut at its permitted hours and the sale of alcohol or any other permitted licensing activity will
not be carried out at any other time than its permitted opening hours.
b) The prevention of crime and disorder
The management will be alert to any crime and disorder, as it is aimed to exercise the best possible management with its
trained and experienced staff.
The proposal includes coloured, high quality CCTV cameras operating in the entrance of the premises whose recordings will
be available for (at least 31 days of recording) to the police at any time.
c) Public safety
All necessary fire risk assessments and precautions are to be installed by qualified persons and the management is also to
carry out a fire risk assessment and emergency plan to reduce the fire risk/get prepared. All fire fighting equipment to be
maintained on a regular basis and all the safety certificates and inspection reports will be kept on site and made available
for inspection by relevant statutory bodies.
The management will also make sure that any control measures identified or introduced remain effective by testing and
maintaining them regularly.
An incident log shall be kept at the premises and made available on request to the Police, which will record crimes,
complaints and any other type of incidents.
d) The prevention of public nuisance
The management aims the followings:
• Whilst there is slight potential for noise nuisance to be caused as patrons leave the premises,
particularly later in the evening, the Operating Schedule includes the display of signs at the door requesting that patrons
leave the premises quietly.
• If the premises falls within the ‘Drinking Control Area’ sign shall be displayed to inform the patrons that they are in a
‘Drinking Controlled Area’. However, the premises are not able to prevent customers consuming alcohol purchased at the
premises in the street.
• Deliveries to the premises shall only be made during normal working hours.
• Bins shall not be emptied outside the premises in the late evening, night or early morning.
• Rubbish from the premises shall be securely stored in a bin in a designated area.
e) The protection of children from harm
The staff of the business is to fully comply with "Challenge25" scheme to make sure no alcohol sold to any under age
person. The practice includes asking for appropriate photographic identification. This must be either a passport;
photographic driving licenses or an identity card with the P.A.S.S logo (Proof of Age Standards Scheme).
Children under the age of 14 years shall not be allowed to enter the premises after 21:00 hours unless accompanied by a
person over the age of 18 years.
A method of documenting refused sales for example a “refusal book or diary” must be kept at the point of sale, or one at
each point of sale where necessary, or recorded electronically on the till.
Section 19 of 21
NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Page 66
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:
•
does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
•
is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work
checking service (see below).
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

•

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

•

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•
•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

•

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency
or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

Page 67
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

•

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

•

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)
of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

•

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

•

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

•
•

evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,
evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
•
evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i)
working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii)
self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii)
studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv)
self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.

Page 68
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.
Home Office online right to work checking service
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-rightto-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority
to carry out the check.
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service
should submit copy documents as set out above.
Section 20 of 21
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 69
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

•

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

•

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

•

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

•

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

•

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

o
o
o
o

o

•

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 70
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

•

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

•

Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;
any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and
any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

o
o
o
o

Section 21 of 21
PAYMENT DETAILS
This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.
Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non domestic rateable value of the premises.
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm
Band A - No RV to £4,300 = £100.00
Band B - £4,301 to £33,000 = £190.00
Band C - £33,001 to £8700 = 315.00
Band D - £87001 to £12500 = £450.00*
Band E - £125001 and over = 635.00*
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee
Band D - £7001 to £12500 = £900.00
Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00
There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required.
Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment only
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college.
If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time
Capacity 5000-9999 = £1,000.00
Capacity 10000 -14999 = £2,000.00
Capacity 15000-19999 = £4,000.00
Capacity 20000-29999 = £8,000.00
Capacity 30000-39000 = £16,000.00
Capacity 40000-49999 = £24,000.00
Capacity 50000-59999 = £32,000.00
Capacity 60000-69999 = £40,000.00
Capacity 70000-79999 = £48,000.00
Capacity 80000-89999 = £56,000.00
Capacity 90000 and over = £64,000.00
NOTE: From 1st January 2018 Licences if you are granted a Licence to permit the sale/supply of alcohol between midnight
and 6am (00:00 and 06:00 hours) on any day you will be liable to pay the Late Night Levy charge. The charge must be paid
14 days after the grant of your Licence, unless you fall within one of the exemption categories. Non-payment of the levy can
result in suspension of your licence, as per sections 55A and 92A of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended and section 229(6)
of the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011. For morePage
information
71below visit https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/
latenightlevy
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

* Fee amount (£)

190.00

DECLARATION
1

*

I/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

1

[APPLICABLE TO INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS ONLY, INCLUDING THOSE IN A PARTNERSHIP WHICH IS NOT A LIMITED
LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP] I UNDERSTAND I AM NOT ENTITLED TO BE ISSUED WITH A LICENCE IF I DO NOT HAVE THE
ENTITLEMENT TO LIVE AND WORK IN THE UK (OR IF I AM SUBJECT TO A CONDITION PREVENTING ME FROM DOING WORK
RELATING TO THE CARRYING ON OF A LICENSABLE ACTIVITY) AND THAT MY LICENCE WILL BECOME INVALID IF I CEASE TO
*
BE ENTITLED TO LIVE AND WORK IN THE UK (PLEASE READ GUIDANCE NOTE 15). THE DPS NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION
FORM IS ENTITLED TO WORK IN THE UK (AND IS NOT SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS PREVENTING HIM OR HER FROM DOING
WORK RELATING TO A LICENSABLE ACTIVITY) AND I HAVE SEEN A COPY OF HIS OR HER PROOF OF ENTITLEMENT TO
WORK, IF APPROPRIATE (PLEASE SEE NOTE 15).
Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration
This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”
* Full name

Inan Gokcek

* Capacity

Agent

* Date

24
dd

/

12
mm

/

2021
yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following:
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/tower-hamlets/apply-1 to upload this file and
continue with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.
IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED

Page 72
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number

284-286 Poplar High Street

Fee paid
Payment provider reference
ELMS Payment Reference
Payment status
Payment authorisation code
Payment authorisation date
Date and time submitted
Approval deadline
Error message
Is Digitally signed
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Page 73
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Next >

Appendix 2

Page 74

KEY
S

SMOKE DETECTOR

EL

EMERGENCY LIGHT

EES

EMERGENCY EXIT SIGN

GREEN PLANTATION

FB

FIRE ALARM BUTTON

GREEN PLANTATION
CCTV CAMERA

DP
W

DRY POWDER
EXTINGUISHER

WATER EXTINGUISHER

CYCLE STANDS

+0.0 MM

site boundary

site boundary

FB

SHELVES

COFFEE
MACH.

EES

SPIRITS DISPLAY
W
DP
EMERGENCY EXIT

STOOLS
-224 MM

-221 MM

EL

GREEN
GROCERY
STAND

GREEN
GROCERY
STAND

GREEN GROCERY
STAND

GREEN GROCERY
STAND

GREEN GROCERY
STAND

S

GREEN GROCERY
STAND

site boundary

UNIT 1

HAND
WASHING
AREA

FROZEN FOOD
DISPLAY

FRUIT AND VEG
DISPLAY

WINE DISPLAY

S

EL

GREEN GROCERY
STAND
site boundary

DELI COUNTER

Page 75

GROCERY DISPLAY

TILL / COUNTER

UNIT 2

CHILLER DISPLAY

CHILLER DISPLAY

ALCOHOL AND
BEVERAGE DISPLAY
W.C.

POST BOXES

RESIDENTIAL
ENTRANCE LOBBY
AREA: 23.36 m²
Project Title

284-286 Poplar High Street
London E14 0BB
CYCLE
STORAGE
AREA: 110.59 m²
Date

November 2021
13 PERSON
LIFT

Drawing Title

Proposed drawings
Reference

Poplar007

GROUND FLOOR PLAN / PREMISES LICENCE

Revision

This drawing is copyright and may not
be copied or altered without express
written permission from Studio Anares.

07 PROPOSED DRAWINGS

All the dimensions on this drawing design
intent only and they must be checked by
the contractors on site.

0

1m

2m

5m
Scale

1/50 at A2

Appendix 3

Page 76

Maps – 284-286 Poplar High Street

Page 77

Appendix 4

Page 78

Photos – 284-286 Poplar High Street

Page 79

Page 80

Page 81

Page 82

Appendix 5

Page 83

Name &
Address

Licensable Hours

Opening Hours

(Poplar Wines)
243 Poplar High
Street

Sale of alcohol (off sales)
On weekdays, other than
Christmas Day, 8 a.m. to 11
p.m.
b. On Sundays, other than
Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to
10.30 p.m.
c. On Christmas Day, 12 noon
to 3 p.m. and 7 p.m. to 10.30
p.m.
d. On Good Friday, 8 a.m. to
10.30 p.m.

There are no restrictions
on the hours during which
this premises is open to
the public

(Tesco)
Unit 1,
Poplar Business
Park
Poplar High Street

Sale of alcohol (off sales)
Monday to Sunday 06:00 hrs –
23:00 hrs

Monday to Sunday 06:00
hrs – 23:00 hrs

(Deliveroo)
1 Prestage Way

Sale of alcohol (off sales)
Monday to Sunday from 12:00
hours to 23:00 hours

Page 84

Appendix 6

Page 85

Section 182 Advice by the Home Office
Updated on April 2018
Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations
9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the
licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For
example, a representation from a local businessperson about the commercial
damage caused by competition from new licensed premises would not be
relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a businessperson that
nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from entering the
local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance
were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the
objectives. For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they
should be confined to the subject matter of the variation. There is no
requirement for a responsible authority or other person to produce a recorded
history of problems at premises to support their representations, and in fact
this would not be possible for new premises.
9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other
than a representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on
the basis of what might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous.
A representation may be considered to be vexatious if it appears to be
intended to cause aggravation or annoyance, whether to a competitor or other
person, without reasonable cause or justification. Vexatious circumstances
may arise because of disputes between rival businesses and local knowledge
will therefore be invaluable in considering such matters. Licensing authorities
can consider the main effect of the representation, and whether any
inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered to be
proportionate.
9.6 Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of
seriousness. Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most,
are minor and in relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or
proportionate.
9.7 Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either
of these grounds may lodge a complaint through the local authority’s
corporate complaints procedure. A person may also challenge the authority’s
decision by way of judicial review.
9.8 Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether
representations are frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing
objectives on the basis of any political judgement. This may be difficult for
councillors who receive complaints from residents within their own wards. If
consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the recommendation in this

Page 86

Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for consideration
by the sub- committee before any decision is taken that necessitates a
hearing. Any councillor who considers that their own interests are such that
they are unable to consider the matter independently should disqualify
themselves.
9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any
aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that
representation. The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for
the person or body making the representation to amplify and clarify it.
9.10
Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites
about how any person can make representations to them.

Page 87

Appendix 7

Page 88

Corinne Holland
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Laura Spenceley <
07 February 2022 13:11
Corinne Holland
Re: Alcohol License- E14 0BB

Full name : Laura Spenceley
Address :
Thanks
Laura
On Mon, 7 Feb 2022, 13:01 Corinne Holland, <

> wrote:

Dear Ms Spenceley

In order for your representation to be taken into consideration you are required to provide your
full name and address.

Please note that the applicant is entitled to a full, un-redacted copy of your representation. They
may wish to contact you to mediate an amendment of their application, in order to address your
concerns; with a view to you potentially withdrawing your objection.

Please can you provide these if you wish to proceed.

Kind regards

Corinne Holland
Licensing Officer
Environmental Health and Trading Standards
Place Directorate
London Borough of Tower Hamlets
2nd Floor, Mulberry Place

Page
89
1

5 Clove Crescent
London
E14 2BG

www.towerhamlets.gov.uk

Follow us on:
Facebook | Twitter | LinkedIn | Instagram

From: Laura Spenceley <
Sent: 06 February 2022 18:27
To: Licensing <Licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk>
Subject: Alcohol License- E14 0BB

To whom it may concern

I am writing with regards to the Licensing request that has been placed for Units 1 and 2, 384-286 Poplar
High Street.

I am a resident of Perseus Court, the residential property located above this unit and I believe that an
alcohol license beneath the residential properties raises a significant risk of anti-social behaviour, of which
the block has already experienced and would encourage the congregation of people, which puts the
safety of residents at further risk. There have been multiple instances of groups congregating and being
anti-social, and having an alcohol serving unit beneath the property would exacerbate this.

As a woman, I already feel scared walking home at night due to people congregating, and this is likely to
increase the risk of anti-social behaviour taking place.

I look forward to hearing from you,

Kind regards

Page2 90

Laura

Page
91
3

Appendix 8

Page 92

Licensing Policy Updated November 2018

Prevention of Public Nuisance
9.1

Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in the early
hours of the morning, can cause a range of nuisances impacting on people
living, working or sleeping in the vicinity of the premises.

9.2

The concerns mainly relate to noise nuisance both from the premises and
customer egress, light pollution, noxious smells and disruption from parked
vehicles and due regard will be taken of the impact these may have in
considering a licence. The Licensing Authority will expect Operating
Schedules to satisfactorily address these issues. Applicants are advised to
seek advice from the Council’s Environmental Health Officers before
preparing their plans and Schedules.

9.3

The Licensing Authority, where its discretion is engaged, will consider,
where appropriate, attaching conditions to licences and permissions to
prevent the problems identified in Section 18 of this Policy (Special
Cumulative Impact Policy for the Brick Lane and Bethnal Green Area), and
these may include conditions drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions found
in the Secretary of States Guidance.

9.4

Street Furniture – placing of street furniture, which includes advertising
boards, on the highway can cause a public nuisance by way of obstruction, or
encourage consumption of alcohol on an unlicensed area. The Licensing
Authority expects applicants to have ensured that they fully comply with the
Councils rules relating to authorisation of obstructions on the highway, and
that the required authorisations are obtained prior to submitting a licence
application. Where proportionate and appropriate, and its discretion is
engaged, the Licensing Authority will impose conditions in relation to street
furniture, including on private land.

9.5

Fly Posting – The Council has experienced problems with "fly posting" in
relation to venues that offer entertainment. Fly posting is the unauthorised
posting of posters / advertisements etc. Where it considers it proportionate
and appropriate, and its discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will
attach conditions relating to the control of fly posting to ensure that venues
clearly prohibit all fly posting in their contract terms with others and they
effectively enforce this control.

Page 93

Appendix 9

Page 94

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003
Updated April 2018

Public nuisance
2.15

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities,
through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and
what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific
premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore important
that in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing
authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable
activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including
those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may
be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern
noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.

2.16

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation.
It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad
common law meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the
reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of other
persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public
nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light,
dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

2.17

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps
appropriate to control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This
might be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that doors and
windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons are not
permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More
sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber
speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be
appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may
not be enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment activity itself
is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote
the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature
and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities.
Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate
measures that could deter events that are valuable to the community,
such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to purchase
and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.

2.18

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be
appropriate in certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation
adequately protect those living in the area of the premises. But as stated
earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing authorities and
responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers
are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant
representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

Page 95

2.19

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate
conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For
example, the most sensitive period for people being disturbed by
unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning when
residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are
sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of
live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions
relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to
address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright
lighting outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime
and disorder may itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours.
Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible authorities will need to
balance these issues.

2.21

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters
for the personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual
who engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right.
However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to
impose a condition, following relevant representations, that requires the
licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the building
encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of
outside, and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful
night.

Page 96

Appendix 10

Page 97

Licensing Policy, updated November 2018

Crime and Disorder
7.1

Licensed premises, especially those offering late night / early morning
entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people,
can be a source of crime and disorder problems and to store
prescribed information.

7.2

When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should initially
identify any particular issues (having regard to their particular type of
premises and / or activities) which are likely to adversely affect the
promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. Such steps as
are required to deal with these identified issues should be included
within the applications operating schedule. Where the Metropolitan
Police, acting as a responsible authority, makes recommendations in
respect of an application relating to the licensing objectives the
Licensing Authority would expect the applicant to incorporate these
into their operating schedule.

7.3

Applicants are recommended to seek advice from Council Officers
and the Police as well as taking into account, as appropriate, local
planning and transport policies, with tourism, cultural and crime
prevention strategies, when preparing their plans and Schedules.

7.4

In addition to the requirements for the Licensing Authority to promote
the licensing objectives, it also has duties under Section 17 of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent
crime and disorder in the Borough and to share prescribed
information.

7.5

The Licensing Authority, if its discretion is engaged, will consider
attaching Conditions to licences and permissions to deter and prevent
crime and disorder both inside and immediately outside the premises
and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model Pool of
Conditions relating to Crime and Disorder given in the Secretary of
State’s Guidance.

7.6

CCTV - The Licensing Authority, if its discretion is engaged, will attach
conditions to licences, as appropriate where the conditions reflect
local crime prevention strategies, for example the provision of closed
circuit television cameras.

Page 98

7.7

Touting – This is soliciting for custom. There has been a historic
problem with Touting in the borough, mainly in relation to restaurants,
and as such in 2006 the Council introduced a byelaw under Section 235
of the Local Government Act 1972 for the good rule and government of
the London Borough of Tower Hamlets and for the prevention and
suppression of nuisances.
As a result, in relation to premises where there is intelligence that
touting is, or has been carried out, the Licensing Authority, where its
discretion is engaged will insert a standard condition that prohibits
‘touting’ as follows:-

7.8

1)

No person shall be employed to solicit for custom or be
permitted to solicit for custom for business for the premises in
any public place within a 500 meters radius of the premises as
shown edged red on the attached plan.( marked as Appendix -)

2)

Clear Signage to be placed in the restaurant windows stating
that the premises supports the Council’s ‘No Touting’ policy.

Responsible Drinking - The Licensing Authority expects alcohol to
be promoted in a responsible way in the Borough. This should
incorporate relevant industry standards, such as the Portman Group
Code of Practice. Where appropriate and proportionate, if its
discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will apply conditions to
ensure responsible drinking. The Licensing Authority also recognises
the positive contribution to best practice that "Pubwatch" and other
similar schemes can make in promoting the licensing objectives and
is committed to working with them.
Model Pool Conditions can be found in the Secretary of State’s
Guidance.

7.9

Criminal Activity - There is certain criminal activity that may arise in
connection with licensed premises which the Licensing Authority will
treat particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:
•
for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse
of Drugs Act 1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs
crime;
•
for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
•
for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed
films and music, which does considerable damage to the
industries affected;
•
for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors
which impacts on the health, educational attainment,
employment prospects and propensity for crime of young people;
•
for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
•
by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

Page 99

•
•
•
•
•

as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly
by gangs;
for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist
attacks;
for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by
reason of their immigration status in the UK;
for unlawful gambling; and
for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

The Secretary State’s Guidance states that it is envisaged that
licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and this
Licensing Authority determines that the crime prevention objective is
being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes,
it is expected that revocation of the licence, even in the first instance,
should be seriously considered.
7.10

In particular the Licensing Authority is mindful of the Secretary of
State’s Guidance “Reviews arising in connection with crime”.

7.11

From 1 April 2017, businesses which sell alcohol (for example,
retailers of alcohol and trade buyers) will need to ensure that the UK
wholesalers that they buy alcohol from have been approved by
HMRC under the Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme (AWRS).
They will need to check their wholesalers Unique Registration
Number (URN) against the HMRC online database which will be
available from April 2017. This is an ongoing obligation and if a
business is found to have bought alcohol from an unapproved
wholesaler, they may be liable to a penalty or could even face
criminal prosecution and their alcohol stock may be seized. Any
trader who buys alcohol from a wholesaler for onward sale to the
general public (known as a ‘trade buyer’) does not need to register
unless they sell alcohol to other businesses. Examples of trade
buyers would be pubs, clubs, restaurants, cafes, retailers and hotels.
However, they will need to check that the wholesaler they purchase
alcohol from is registered with HMRC. Further information may be
found
at:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/the-alcohol-wholesalerregistration-scheme-awrs.

Page 100

Smuggled goods
7.12

The Licensing Authority will exercise its discretion to add a standard
condition as follows:1)

The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for
the purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-todoor sellers other than from established traders who provide full
receipts at the time of delivery to provide traceability.

2)

The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods
bought include the following details:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Seller’s name and address
Seller’s company details, if applicable
Seller’s VAT details, if applicable
Vehicle registration detail, if applicable

3)

Legible copies of the documents referred to in 2) shall be retained
on the premises and made available to officers on request.

4)

The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that
duty stamps are valid.

5)

Where the trader becomes aware that any alcohol may be not duty
paid they shall inform the Police of this immediately.

Olympic Park – Football Ground
7.13

Premises where Police intelligence shows that football supporters
congregate within the borough should consider in their application
form the following conditions:
1)

On Match Days for premises licensed for the supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises:
a)
Drinks shall only be supplied in polypropylene or similar
plastic and all bottled drinks shall be poured into such
drinking vessels before being handed to the customer.
These should be made of recyclable materials.
b)

Registered door staff shall be employed to control the entry
and exits to the premises and to manage any licensed
outside area(s).

Page 101

Appendix 11

Page 102

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003
Updated April 2018

Crime and disorder
2.1

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of
advice on crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local
Community Safety Partnership (CSP).

2.2

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to cooperate with the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and
consider adding relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The
SIA also plays an important role in preventing crime and disorder by
ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed and, in partnership
with police and other agencies, that security companies are not being
used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other
partner agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door
supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug
dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and
disorder including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises
(see paragraph 10.10). For example, where there is good reason to
suppose that disorder may take place, the presence of closed-circuit
television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately outside the
premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their
premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself,
its staff, or its customers. But any condition may require a broader
approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that the precise location of
cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are properly
covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the
condition.

2.4

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be
considered an appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs
operating in city and town centre leisure areas with a high density of
licensed premises. These systems allow managers of licensed premises
to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a rapid response to
any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on the
premises.

Page 103

2.5

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated
premises supervisors should not normally be attached to premises
licences. It will normally be the responsibility of the premises licence
holder as an employer, and not the licensing authority, to ensure that the
managers appointed at the premises are competent and appropriately
trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by
the premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A
condition of this kind may only be justified as appropriate in rare
circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the circumstances
associated with particular premises, poor management competency could
give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety.

2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing
authorities should work with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as
well as the police, in respect of these matters. Licence conditions that are
considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal working in licensed
premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake
right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work
check are retained at the licensed premises.

Page 104

Appendix 12

Page 105

Anti-Social Behaviour from Patrons Leaving the Premises
General Advice
Members need to bear in mind that once patrons have left a premises they are
no longer under direct control. Members will need to be satisfied that there is a
link between the way the premises is operating and the behaviour that is
complained of. An example of this would be that irresponsible drinking is being
encouraged. Before deciding that any particular licensing conditions are
proportionate, Members will also need to be satisfied that other legislation is not
a more effective route. For example, if the problem is drinking in the street it
may be that the Council should designate the area as a place where alcohol
cannot be consumed in public.
Members may also wish to consider whether the hours of opening relate to any
problems of anti-social behaviour.
If Members believe that there is a substantial problem of anti-social behaviour
and it cannot be proportionately addressed by licensing conditions they should
refuse the application.
Licensing Policy
The policy recognises that other legislation or measures may be more
appropriate but also states that licensing laws are “a key aspect of such
control and will always be part of an overall approach to the management of
the evening and night time economy” (see Section 4.15 and 4.16 of the
Licensing Policy).
The Licensing Authority expects the applicant to have addressed all crime and
disorder issues relating to the premises in their operating schedule and to
have sought appropriate advice. (See Sections 6.2 of the Licensing Policy)
The Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to deter crime and
disorder and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model Poll of
Conditions relating to Crime and Disorder. (See Appendix 3 of the Licensing
Policy). In particular Members may wish to consider (this list is not exhaustive):
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bottle Bans
Plastic containers
CCTV (outside the premises)
Restrictions on open containers for “off sales”
Proof of Age scheme
Crime prevention notices
Drinks promotions-aimed at stopping irresponsible promotions
Signage

Page 106

Cumulative Impact
There is a process by which the Licensing Authority can determine that an
area is saturated following representations. However, the process for this
involves wide consultation and cannot come from representations about a
particular application. (See Section 8 of the Licensing Policy).

Police Powers
The Licensing Act 2003, Part 8 gives a senior police officer the power to close
a premises for up to 24 hours where the officer believes there is, or is likely to
be disorder on or in the vicinity and closure is necessary in the interests of
public.
Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
The key role of the Police is acknowledged (2.1).
Conditions attached to licences cannot seek to manage the behaviour of
customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence holder,
but can relate to the immediate vicinity of the premises as they seek entry or
leave (1.16).
Conditions are best targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
(2.3) CCTV inside & out, communication, police liaison, no glasses are all
relevant
There is also guidance issued around public nuisance (2.15 – 2.21).
The pool of conditions, adopted by the Council is recommended (see
Appendix 3 of the Licensing Policy). Licence conditions should not duplicate
other legislation (1.16).
Necessary and appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most
sensitive periods and may address disturbance as customers enter or leave
the premises but it is essential that conditions are focused on measures
within the direct control of the licence holder (2.18/2.21).
Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance
and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from the licensed
premises and, therefore, beyond the direct control of the individual, club or
business holding the licence, certificate or authorisation concerned (14.13).
Other Legislation
Crime and Disorder Act 1998
The Council has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder.

Page 107

The Act also introduced a wide range of measures designed to address antisocial behaviour committed by adults and young people. These include:

•
•
•
•
•
•

Anti-Social Behaviour Orders
Child Curfew Schemes
Truancy
Parenting Orders
Reparation Orders
Tackling Racism

Page 108

Appendix 13

Page 109

Licensing Policy Relating to Hours of Trading
All applications have to be considered on their own merits.
The Council has however adopted a set of framework hours as follows:
•
•
•

Monday to Thursday, from 06:00 hrs to 23:30 hrs
Friday and Saturday, from 06:00 hrs to 00:00 hrs (midnight)
Sunday, from 06:00 hrs to 22:30 hrs

(see 14.8 of the Licensing Policy)
In considering the applicability of frame work hours to any particular
application regard should be had to the following
• Location
• Proposed hours of regulated activities, and the proposed hours the
premises are open to the public
• The adequacy of the applicant’s proposals to deal with issues of crime
and disorder and public nuisance
• Previous history
• Access to public transport
• Proximity to other licensed premises, and their hours
(See 14.9 of the licensing policy)
Subject to any representations to the contrary in individual cases the following
premises are not generally considered to contribute to late night anti-social
behaviour and will therefore generally have greater freedom
• Theatres
• Cinemas
• Premises with club premises certificates

Page 110

Appendix 14

Page 111

Planning
An application for a Premises Licence can be made in respect of a premises
even where the premises does not have relevant Planning Permission.
That application has to be considered and Members can only refuse the
application where the application itself does not promote one of more of the
Licensing Objectives. Members cannot refuse just because there is no
planning permission. Where a Premises Licence is granted and which
exceeds what is allowed by the Planning Permission and that Premises then
operates in breach of planning then the operator would be liable to
enforcement by Planning.

Page 112

Agenda Item 4.2
Committee:

Date

Classification

Licensing Sub Committee

Report No.

Agenda Item No.

Unrestricted

Report of:
David Tolley
Head of Environmental Health & Trading
Standards

Title:
Licensing Act 2003 Application for a new Premise
Licence for St Peter’s Church Crypt, St Peter’s Close,
London, E2 7AE

Originating Officer:
Corinne Holland
Licensing Officer

Ward affected:
Bethnal Green West

1.0 Summary
Applicant:

Owen Kingston

Name and
Address of Premises:

St Peter’s Church Crypt
St Peter’s with St Thomas Church
St Peter’s Close
London
E2 7AE

Licence sought:

Licensing Act 2003
Sale by retail of Alcohol
Provision of Regulated Entertainment

Objectors:

Resident

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application and objections
then adjudicate accordingly.
LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97)
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT
Brief description of "background paper"

Tick if copy supplied for
register

File
Section 182 Guidance
LBTH Licensing Policy

If not supplied, name and telephone
number of holder

Corinne Holland
020 7364 3986

Page 113

3.0 Background
3.1 This is an application for a new Premise Licence for St Peter’s Church
Crypt, St Peter’s Close, London, E2 7AE.
3.2 The applicant has described the premises as: A multi-functional event
space with a small bar. The crypt is underneath the main church building
accessible by its own entrance at the rear.
3.3 A copy of the application is shown in Appendix 1.
3.4 The hours applied for are as follows:
Sale of Alcohol (on sales)
Monday – Friday 17:00 hours – 23:00 hours
Saturday – Sunday 12:00 hours – 23:00 hours
Provision of Regulated Entertainment (indoors) consisting of
performance of plays, live & recorded music, performance of dance
Monday – Friday 17:00 hours – 23:00 hours
Saturday – Sunday 12:00 hours – 23:00 hours
Opening times
Monday – Friday 17:00 hours – 23:00 hours
Saturday – Sunday 12:00 hours – 23:00 hours

4.0 Location and Nature of the premises
4.1 The site plan of the venue is included as Appendix 2.
4.2 Maps showing the vicinity are included as Appendix 3.
4.3 Photographs of the premises are included in Appendix 4.
4.4 Details of other licensed venues in the immediate vicinity are included as
Appendix 5.
5.0 Licensing Policy and Government Advice
5.1 The Council has adopted a licensing policy and this is available from the
Licensing Section, and at the hearing. The revised policy came into effect
on 1st November 2018.
5.2 Relevant Sections of the policy are brought to the attention of Members
within the Licensing Officers report.
5.3 The Home Secretary has issued Guidance under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003. This is available on the Government’s website,
www.homeoffice.gov.uk. It was last revised in April 2018.

Page 114

5.4 Relevant Sections of this advice are brought to Members attention within
the Licensing Officers report. Members should note however, than in some
areas Tower Hamlets, after a proper consideration of local circumstances,
has not followed the Government’s advice, or has developed it further.
6.0 Representations
6.1 All representations have to meet basic legal and administrative
requirements. If they fail to do so they cannot be accepted. When rejected
the person sending in the representation must be written to, and an
explanation for rejection given in writing.
6.2 A responsible authority or other person can make a representation. There
are two tests for other persons and only one for a responsible authority.
The two tests are contained in Section 18 of the Act.
6.3 All representations must be “about the likely effect of the grant of the
premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.” Likely
means something that will probably happen, i.e. on balance more likely
than not.
6.4 Representations by responsible authorities do not have to meet the second
test of not being vexatious and frivolous. Other persons have to meet this
test.
6.5 The Home Office recommends that in borderline cases, the benefit of the
doubt should be given to the interested party making the representation.
6.6 Section 182 Advice by the Home Office concerning relevant, vexatious and
frivolous representations is attached as Appendix 6.
6.7 All the representations in this report have been considered by the relevant
officer (Team Leader Licensing & Safety) and determined to have met the
requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.
6.8 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because relevant
representations have been made by the following.


Rachel Glynn – Appendix 7

6.9 All of the responsible authorities have been consulted about this
application. They are as follows:
 The Licensing Authority
 The Metropolitan Police
 The LFEPA (the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority).
 Planning
 Health and Safety
 Noise (Environmental Health)

Page 115






Trading Standards
Child Protection
Public Heath
Home office (Immigration Enforcement)

6.10 In addition the application was required to be advertised in a local
newspaper and by a blue poster. Only objections that relate to the
following licensing objectives are relevant:
 the prevention of crime and disorder
 public safety
 the prevention of public nuisance
 the protection of children from harm
6.11 The objections relate to:
 Public nuisance
 Crime & disorder
 ASB
6.12 Essentially, the relevant parties oppose the application because the
applicant has not explained how within the context of the application they
will meet licensing objective of the prevention of public nuisance and the
prevention of crime and disorder.
6.13 There are strict time limits to any representations. The time limits are
contained in The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club premises
certificates) Regulations 2005.
6.14 The applicant has offered measures in the operating schedule of the
application that address the promotion of the Licensing Objectives. If there
were no representations, the Licensing Authority would grant the licence,
with conditions consistent with the operating schedule, which are relevant,
proportionate and enforceable. Members are asked to consider the
schedule and incorporate any conditions as necessary to address the
licensing objectives.

7.0

Conditions consistent with Operating Schedule
1. The venue has a capacity limit of 50 persons.
2. Entry to the venue is by pre-purchased ticket for events only.
3. No alcohol will be sold outside of ticketed events.
4. Alcohol will be served in plastic or toughened glasses.
5. Where glass bottles are to be used the contents will be decanted into
plastic or toughened glasses where it is not intended that the contents
are to be consumed direct from the bottle.

Page 116

6. Customers carrying open or sealed bottles or glasses will not be admitted
to the premises at any time.
7. Customers will not be permitted to take open containers of alcohol from
the premises.
8. The bar will not operate drinks promotions.
9. Crime prevention notices are displayed warning customers of the
possibility of crime which may target them.
10. A secure area for customer’s personal belongings is available.
11. Noise or vibration from the premises will be maintained at a level that will
not be audible at the façade of any neighbouring noise sensitive
premises.
12. Prominent, clear and legible notices are displayed at all exits requesting
patrons to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises
and the area quietly.
13. Disposal of empty bottles into waste receptacles outside the premises will
not be permitted to take place between the hours of 23:00 hrs and 07:00
hrs to minimise disturbance to nearby occupiers.
14. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised
photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or
proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.
15. Tickets will only be sold to children for specific child-friendly events.
Where alcohol is sold at these events, ID will be checked on entry to the
venue and those of legal age will be issued a wristband.

8.0 Conditions Agreed/Requested by Responsible Authority
Conditions agreed with the Police – Appendix 8
1. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system
as per the minimum requirements of the Tower Hamlets Police Licensing
Team. All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal
identification of every person entering in any light condition. The CCTV
system shall continually record whilst the premises is open for licensable
activities and during all times when customers remain on the premises.
All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date
and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available

Page 117

immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer throughout
the entire 31 day period.
2. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation
of the CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the
premises are open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or
authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the
absolute minimum of delay when requested.
3. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and be available on request
to the Police or an authorised officer. It must be completed within 24
hours of any incident and will record the following:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

all crimes reported to the venue;
all ejections of patrons;
any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
any incidents of disorder;
all seizures/finds of drugs or offensive weapons;
any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or
scanning equipment;
any refusal of the sale of alcohol;
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

4. A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises
where the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised
photographic identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or
proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.

9.0 Licensing Officer Comments
9.1 The Live Music Act removed licensing requirements for the following:


amplified live music and recorded music between 8am and 11pm
before audiences of no more than 500 people on premises authorised
to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises;



unamplified live music between 8am and 11pm in all venues.



Further exemptions apply see Section 16.5-16.6 of Section 182
Guidance.

9.2 The following is intended to advise Members of the relevant aspects of the
Boroughs Licensing Policy, guidance from the Secretary of State,
legislation and good practice. Members may depart from the Council’s
Licensing Policy and/or Government advice, provide they consider it
appropriate to do so, and have clear reasons for their decision.

Page 118

9.3 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003


As stated in the guidance it is “provided to licensing authorities in
relation to the carrying out of their functions under the 2003 Act.” It is
a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring consistent
application and promoting fairness equal treatment and
proportionality (1.7).



Also “as long as licensing authorities have properly understood this
Guidance, they may depart from it if they have good reason to do so
and can provide full reasons. Departure from this Guidance could
give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons given will
then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the
lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.” Therefore licensing
authorities will need to give full reasons for their actions (1.9).



Also Members should note “A Licensing Authority may depart from its
own policy if the individual circumstances of any case merit such a
decision in the interests of the promotion of the licensing objectives.”
(1.12)



Also, “The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless
its discretion has been exercised following receipt of relevant
representations and it is satisfied as a result of a hearing (unless all
parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing
objectives.” Therefore, conditions may not be imposed for the
purpose other than promoting the licensing objectives and in some
cases no additional conditions will be appropriate. (10.8)



Necessary conditions should emerge from a risk assessment by the
applicant, which should then be reflected in the operating schedule
(10.4).



The Guidance states: “Where there are objections to an application to
extend the hours during which licensable activities are to be carried
on and the licensing authority determines that this would undermine
the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it with
appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.”
(10.14)



Mandatory conditions must be imposed (10.25) and censorship
avoided (10.17).



The Guidance states: “It is still permitted to sell alcohol using
promotions (as long as they are compatible with any other licensing
condition that may be in force), and the relevant person should
ensure that the price of the alcohol is not less than the permitted

Page 119

price. Detailed guidance on the use of promotions is given in the
guidance document available on the Gov.uk website.” (10.58)


Also, “Licensing authorities should not attach standardised blanket
conditions promoting fixed prices for alcoholic drinks to premises
licences or club licences or club premises certificates in an area.”
(10.21)

9.4 The Licensing Act 2003 permits children of any age to be on the premises
which primarily sell alcohol providing they are accompanied by an adult. It
is not necessary to make this a condition.
9.5 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden of
proof, that is “the balance of probability.”
9.6 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation is
the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already adequately
covered elsewhere.
9.7 The Government has advised that conditions must be tailored to the
individual type, location and characteristics of the premises and events
concerned. Conditions cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers
once they are beyond the direct management of the licence holder and
their staff and standardised conditions should be avoided where they
cannot be shown to be appropriate. (1.16/1.17)
9.8 The Council’s Licensing Policy generally expects applicants to address the
licensing objectives and discuss how to do this with the relevant
responsible authorities.
9.9 In Appendices 9 - 15 Members are given general advice, and also have
explanations of the Council’s Licensing Policy, Government advice and
other legislation relating to the matters previously identified.
10.0 Legal Comments
10.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing.
11.0 Finance Comments
11.1 There are no financial implications in this report.

Page 120

12.0 Appendices

Appendix 1

A copy of the application

Appendix 2

Site Plan

Appendix 3

Maps of the surrounding area

Appendix 4

Photographs of the premises

Appendix 5

Other licensed venues in the area

Appendix 6

Section 182 Advice by the DCMS- Relevant, vexatious
and frivolous representations

Appendix 7

Representations from resident

Appendix 8

Conditions agreed with the police

Appendix 9

Licensing Officer comments on public nuisance

Appendix 10

S182 advice on public nuisance

Appendix 11

Licensing Officer comments on crime & disorder

Appendix 12

S182 advice on crime & disorder

Appendix 13

ASB leaving the premises

Appendix 14

Licensing Policy relating to hours of trading

Appendix 15

Planning

Page 121

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 1

Page 123

Tower Hamlets
Application for a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact
licensing@towerhamlets.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 7364 5008

* required information

Section 1 of 21
You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.
System reference

This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

Not Currently In Use

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. It
is passed to the authority.

Your reference

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?
Yes

No

Applicant Details
* First name

Owen

* Family name

Kingston

* E-mail
Include country code.

Main telephone number
Other telephone number
Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you:
Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader
Applying as an individual

Page 124
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means you are
applying so you can be employed, or for
some other personal reason, such as
following a hobby.

Continued from previous page...

Your Address

Address official correspondence should be
sent to.

* Building number or name
* Street
District
* City or town
County or administrative area
* Postcode
* Country

United Kingdom

Section 2 of 21
PREMISES DETAILS
I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.
Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
Address

OS map reference

Description

Postal Address Of Premises
Building number or name

St Peter's Church Crypt

Street

St Peter's Close

District
City or town

London

County or administrative area
Postcode

E2 7AE

Country

United Kingdom

Further Details
Telephone number
Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£)

20,250

Page 125
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Section 3 of 21
APPLICATION DETAILS
In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?
An individual or individuals
A limited company / limited liability partnership
A partnership (other than limited liability)
An unincorporated association
Other (for example a statutory corporation)
A recognised club
A charity
The proprietor of an educational establishment
A health service body
A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales
A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated
activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England
The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales
Confirm The Following
I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves
the use of the premises for licensable activities
I am making the application pursuant to a statutory function
I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative
Section 4 of 21
INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT DETAILS
Applicant Name
Is the name the same as (or similar to) the details given in section one?
Yes

No

First name

Owen

Family name

Kingston

Is the applicant 18 years of age or older?
Yes

No

Page 126
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as required.
Select “No” to enter a completely new set of
details.

Continued from previous page...

Current Residential Address
Is the address the same as (or similar to) the address given in section one?
Yes

No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

Building number or name

District
City or town
County or administrative area

Country

United Kingdom

Applicant Contact Details
Are the contact details the same as (or similar to) those given in section one?
Yes

No

If “Yes” is selected you can re-use the details
from section one, or amend them as
required. Select “No” to enter a completely
new set of details.

Telephone number
Other telephone number
* Date of birth
dd

* Nationality

mm

yyyy

Documents that demonstrate entitlement to
work in the UK
Right to work share code if not submitting
scanned documents

British

Right to work share code
Add another applicant

Section 5 of 21
OPERATING SCHEDULE
When do you want the
premises licence to start?

01

/

dd

If you wish the licence to be
valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end
dd

03

/

mm

/

2022
yyyy

/
mm

yyyy

Provide a general description of the premises

Page 127
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.
The premises is the Crypt of St Peter's Church Bethnal Green, a portion of which will be used as a multi-functional event
space with a small bar. The Crypt is underneath the main church building, accessible via its own entrance to the rear of the
building. It has an arched ceiling with pillars. The event space for which the license application is being submitted is made
up of one large space with adjacent bar and bar storage and smaller breakout rooms, as delineated on the attached plan.
If 5,000 or more people are
expected to attend the
premises at any one time,
state the number expected to
attend
Section 6 of 21
PROVISION OF PLAYS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing plays?
Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

Start

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page End
128

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY
Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Will the performance of a play take place indoors or outdoors or both?
Indoors

Outdoors

Both

Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
Theatre performances to small audiences (max 50 people) sometimes using amplified music

State any seasonal variations for performing plays
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of a play at different times from those listed in
the column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 7 of 21
PROVISION OF FILMS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing films?
Yes

No

Section 8 of 21
PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing indoor sporting events?
Yes

No

Section 9 of 21
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS
See guidance on regulated entertainment

Page
Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

129

Continued from previous page...

Section 10 of 21
PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing live music?
Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Will the performance of live music take place indoors or outdoors or both?
Indoors

Outdoors

Both

Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
Using live music for ambiance or as part of a theatre or dance performance.

Page 130
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of live music at different times from those listed
in the column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 11 of 21
PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing recorded music?
Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

Start
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

End 131
Page

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Continued from previous page...

SATURDAY
Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

SUNDAY

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or outdoors or both?
Indoors

Outdoors

Both

Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
Using recorded music for ambiance or as part of a theatre or dance performance.

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listed
in the column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 12 of 21
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing performances of dance?
Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 17:00
Start

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

End 23:00
End

Page 132

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY
Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Will the performance of dance take place indoors or outdoors or both?
Indoors

Outdoors

Both

Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.
Dance performances to small audiences (max 50 people) sometimes using amplified music

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of dance at different times from those listed in
the column on the left, list below

Page 133

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 13 of 21
PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE
See guidance on regulated entertainment
Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?
Yes

No

Section 14 of 21
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT
Will you be providing late night refreshment?
Yes

No

Section 15 of 21
SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL
Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?
Yes

No

Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

TUESDAY

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

Start
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page End
134

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Continued from previous page...

SATURDAY
Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

SUNDAY

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption:
On the premises

Off the premises

Both

If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as premises supervisor
Name
First name

Owen

Family name

Kingston

Date of birth
dd

mm

yyyy

Page 135
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Enter the contact's address
Building number or name

District
City or town
County or administrative area

Country

United Kingdom

Personal Licence number
(if known)
Issuing licensing authority
(if known)
PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT
How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?
Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor
As an attachment to this application
Reference number for consent
form (if known)

If the consent form is already submitted, ask
the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your
reference'.

Section 16 of 21
ADULT ENTERTAINMENT
Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children
Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

Section 17 of 21
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings
MONDAY
Start 17:00
Start
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

End 23:00

Page End
136

Give timings in 24 hour clock.
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY
Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 17:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

Start 12:00

End 23:00

Start

End

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

State any seasonal variations
For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below
For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 18 of 21
LICENSING OBJECTIVES
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Page 137

Continued from previous page...

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
The venue has a small capacity limit of 50 to ensure safe operation, easy evacuation in the event of an emergency, and to
limit noise and overall impact on the local area.
Entry to the venue is by pre-purchased ticket for events only. No alcohol will be sold outside of ticketed events.
b) The prevention of crime and disorder
Alcohol and soft drinks will be served in plastic or toughened glasses.
Where glass bottles are to be used the contents will be
decanted into plastic or toughened glasses where it is not
intended that the contents are to be consumed direct from the bottle.
Customers carrying open or sealed bottles or glasses will not be admitted to the premises at any time.
Customers will not be permitted to take open containers of
alcohol or soft drinks from the premises.
All bottles and glasses are to be removed from public areas as soon as the contents have been drunk or are empty.
Bottle bins for collection or empty bottles will not be accessible to members of the public.
The bar will not operate drinks promotions
Crime prevention notices are displayed warning customers of the possibility of crime which may target them, e.g. “Bags
should not be left unattended”, “Watch out for Pickpockets”.
A detailed “Customer Code of Conduct” poster is conspicuously displayed.
A secure area for customer’s personal belongings is available.
c) Public safety
We have conducted a suitable Fire Risk Assessment at the premises and implemented the necessary control measures.
All exit doors are easily operable without the use of a key, card, code or similar means.
All removable security fastenings are removed whenever the premises are open to the public or staff.
Step and stair edges are appropriately highlighted so as to be conspicuous.
Notices detailing the actions to be taken in the event of fire or other emergency are prominently displayed and maintained
in good condition.
Access is provided for emergency vehicles and kept clear andfree from obstruction at all times.
Adequate and appropriate First Aid equipment and materials are available on the premises.
Fire safety signs are adequately illuminated.
All fire exits and means of escape are signed in accordance with BS5499: Part 1: Specification for Fire Safety Signs : 1990.
No part of the premesis is further than 50ft from a fire exit

Page 138

© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

The premesis has current certificates of inspection for all portable fire fighting equipment
The premesis has a smoke detection system that is checked regularly
Free drinking water will be available at all times when the premises is open to the public
d) The prevention of public nuisance
Noise or vibration from the premises will be maintained at a level that will not be audible at the façade of any neighbouring
noise sensitive premises.
Prominent, clear and legible notices are displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of local residents and
to leave the premises and the area quietly.
Disposal of empty bottles into waste receptacles outside the premises will not be permitted to take place between the
hours of 23:00 hrs and 07:00 hrs to minimise disturbance to nearby occupiers.
e) The protection of children from harm
Alcohol is not available on the premises when only under 18’s are permitted.
Tickets for events will be checked on the door by Front of House staff who will operate a challenge 25 policy for adult-only
events. Those unable to prove their age will be refused entry.
The bar will operate a challenge 25 policy.
Tickets will only be sold to children for specific child-friendly events. Where alcohol is sold at these events, ID will be
checked on entry to the venue and those of legal age will be issued a wristband.
Section 19 of 21
NOTES ON DEMONSTRATING ENTITLEMENT TO WORK IN THE UK

Page 139
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

Entitlement to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from partnerships which are not
limited liability partnerships:
A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership who is resident in the UK who:
•
does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or
•
is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable
activity.
Any premises licence issued in respect of an application made on or after 6 April 2017 will become invalid if the holder
ceases to be entitled to work in the UK.
Applicants must demonstrate that they have an entitlement to work in the UK and are not subject to a condition preventing
them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity. They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing
with this application copies or scanned copies of the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by
providing their 'share code' to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to work
checking service (see below).
Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

•

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as the child of the
holder, is A British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the right of abode in the UK [please see
note below about which sections of the passport to copy].

•

An expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person named in the passport
as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the Home Office to a national
of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a national of a European
Economic Area country or Switzerland.

•
•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, or has no time limit on their
stay in the UK.

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control, is allowed to stay
indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.

•

A current Immigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an endorsement
indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or has no time limit on their stay in
the UK, when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National
Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, when produced in combination with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency
or a previous employer.

•

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their
name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in combination with an
official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a
Government agency or a previous employer.

Page 140
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

•

A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is currently allowed to
work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.

•

A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the Home Office to the
holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the UK and is allowed to work relation to
the carrying on of a licensable activity.

•

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office to a person who is not a national of a European Economic
Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights or
residence.

•

A current Immigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home Office to the holder
with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the UK, and is allowed to work and is not
subject to a condition preventing the holder from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

•

A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under regulation 18(3) or 20(2)
of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a person who is not a national of a
European Economic Area state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
derivative rights of residence.

•

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their permission to be in the UK
with the Home Office such as the Home Office acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or
reasonable evidence that the person has an appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration
decision, such as an appeal or administrative review reference number.

•

Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of a European Economic Area state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in exercising treaty rights in
the UK including:-

•
•

evidence of the applicant’s own identity – such as a passport,
evidence of their relationship with the European Economic Area family member – e.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and
•
evidence that the European Economic Area national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or is one
of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i)
working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the employer,
(ii)
self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iii)
studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence of sufficient funds; or
(iv)
self-sufficient e.g. bank statements.
Family members of European Economic Area nationals who are studying or financially independent must also provide
evidence that the European Economic Area national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness insurance in the
UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an S1, S2 or S3 form.
Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a passport, a copy of the
following pages should be provided:(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;
(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;
(iii) any page containing the holder’s signature;
(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and
(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in the UK and is permitted to
work.

Page 141
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.
Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve us checking your immigration
status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be
determined until you have complied with this guidance.
Home Office online right to work checking service
As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may demonstrate their right to work by
allowing the licensing authority to carry out a check with the Home Office online right to work checking service.
To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service, applicants should include in
this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon accessing the service at https://www.gov.uk/prove-rightto-work) which, along with the applicant's date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority
to carry out the check.
In order to establish the applicant's right to work, the check will need to indicate that the applicant is allowed to work in the
United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a
licensable activity.
An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an immigration status that can
be checked online. The Home Office online right to work checking service sets out what information and/or documentation
applicants will need in order to access the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service
should submit copy documents as set out above.
Section 20 of 21
NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

Page 142
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

•

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

•

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

•

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

•

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

•

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local
authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

o
o
o
o

o

•

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.
o
any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b)
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Page 143
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

•

Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the
audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

•

Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behalf of the local authority;
any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;
any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and
any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

o
o
o
o

Section 21 of 21
PAYMENT DETAILS
This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.
Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non domestic rateable value of the premises.
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm
Band A - No RV to £4,300 = £100.00
Band B - £4,301 to £33,000 = £190.00
Band C - £33,001 to £8700 = 315.00
Band D - £87001 to £12500 = £450.00*
Band E - £125001 and over = 635.00*
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee
Band D - £7001 to £12500 = £900.00
Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00
There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required.
Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment only
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college.
If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time
Capacity 5000-9999 = £1,000.00
Capacity 10000 -14999 = £2,000.00
Capacity 15000-19999 = £4,000.00
Capacity 20000-29999 = £8,000.00
Capacity 30000-39000 = £16,000.00
Capacity 40000-49999 = £24,000.00
Capacity 50000-59999 = £32,000.00
Capacity 60000-69999 = £40,000.00
Capacity 70000-79999 = £48,000.00
Capacity 80000-89999 = £56,000.00
Capacity 90000 and over = £64,000.00
NOTE: From 1st January 2018 Licences if you are granted a Licence to permit the sale/supply of alcohol between midnight
and 6am (00:00 and 06:00 hours) on any day you will be liable to pay the Late Night Levy charge. The charge must be paid
14 days after the grant of your Licence, unless you fall within one of the exemption categories. Non-payment of the levy can
result in suspension of your licence, as per sections 55A and 92A of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended and section 229(6)
of the Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011. For more
information
Page
144 below visit https://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/
latenightlevy
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Continued from previous page...

* Fee amount (£)

190.00

DECLARATION
1

*

I/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

1

[APPLICABLE TO INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS ONLY, INCLUDING THOSE IN A PARTNERSHIP WHICH IS NOT A LIMITED
LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP] I UNDERSTAND I AM NOT ENTITLED TO BE ISSUED WITH A LICENCE IF I DO NOT HAVE THE
ENTITLEMENT TO LIVE AND WORK IN THE UK (OR IF I AM SUBJECT TO A CONDITION PREVENTING ME FROM DOING WORK
RELATING TO THE CARRYING ON OF A LICENSABLE ACTIVITY) AND THAT MY LICENCE WILL BECOME INVALID IF I CEASE TO
*
BE ENTITLED TO LIVE AND WORK IN THE UK (PLEASE READ GUIDANCE NOTE 15). THE DPS NAMED IN THIS APPLICATION
FORM IS ENTITLED TO WORK IN THE UK (AND IS NOT SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS PREVENTING HIM OR HER FROM DOING
WORK RELATING TO A LICENSABLE ACTIVITY) AND I HAVE SEEN A COPY OF HIS OR HER PROOF OF ENTITLEMENT TO
WORK, IF APPROPRIATE (PLEASE SEE NOTE 15).
Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration
This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”
* Full name

Owen Kingston

* Capacity

DPS

* Date

07
dd

/

01
mm

/

2022
yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following:
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/tower-hamlets/apply-1 to upload this file and
continue with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.
IT IS AN OFFENCE LIABLE TO SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE
LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION
IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY
KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO
CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN
OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE
IS DISQUALIFIED

Page 145
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number
Fee paid
Payment provider reference
ELMS Payment Reference
Payment status
Payment authorisation code
Payment authorisation date
Date and time submitted
Approval deadline
Error message
Is Digitally signed
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21

Page 146
© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

Next >

Appendix 2

Page 147

Page 148

Page 149

Appendix 3

Page 150

Maps – St Peter’s with St Thomas Church

Page 151

Appendix 4

Page 152

Photos – St Peter’s Crypt

Page 153

Page 154

Appendix 5

Page 155

Name &
Address

Licensable Hours

None in immediate
vicinity

Below included as mentioned
in the resident representation

(Bethnal Green
Working Mens
Club)
Ground Floor
42-46 Pollards
Row

Supply of alcohol to member
and guests (on sales only)
Weekdays 10 00 hrs 23 00 hrs
Saturdays 10 00 hrs to 23 00
hrs
Sunday 12 noon to 22 30 hrs

Not restricted

(Rich Mix Cultural
Foundation)
35-47 Bethnal
Green Road

THE SALE BY RETAIL OF
ALCOHOL(on & off sales):
Ground Floor Café, Ground
Floor Visual Arts Gallery,
Cinema 1, Cinema 2, Cinema
3 and 4th Floor venue and
gallery:
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday and Thursday from
09:00 hours to midnight
Friday and Saturday from 09:00
hours to 01:00 hours the
following day

Sunday - Thursday from
09:00 hours to midnight

Basement: Visual Arts Gallery
First Floor: Mezzanine Level,
Gallery and Studio 3
Second Floor: Live Room and
two Group Teaching Spaces,
Office, Studio 1 and 2
Third Floor: Meeting Room
Fourth
Floor:
Bar
and
Rehearsal Space :
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday, Thursday, Friday
and Saturday from 09:00 hours
to 23:00 hours
PLAYS:
4th Floor Venue and gallery:
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday and Thursday from
09:00 hours to midnight
Friday and Saturday from 09:00
hours to 01:00 hours the
following day
4th Floor Rehearsal Space:
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday, Thursday, Friday

Page 156

Opening Hours

Friday and Saturday from
09:00 hours to 01:00
hours the following day

and Saturday from 09:00 hours
to 23:00 hours
FILMS:
Cinema 1, 2 and 3
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday and Thursday from
09:00 hours to midnight
Friday and Saturday from 09:00
hours to 01:00 hours the
following day
INDOOR
SPORTS
AND
BOXING OR WRESTLING
ENTERTAINMENT:
4th Floor venue and gallery
only
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday and Thursday from
09:00 hours to midnight
Friday and Saturday from 09:00
hours to 01:00 hours the
following day
LIVE MUSIC AND RECORDED
MUSIC AND FACILITIES FOR
MAKING
MUSIC
AND
ANYTHING OF SIMILAR:
Fourth Floor venue and
gallery, Cinema 1, 2 and 3,
Ground Floor Café and
Ground Floor visual arts
gallery
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday and Thursday from
09:00 hours to midnight
Friday and Saturday from 09:00
hours to 01:00 hours the
following day
Basement: Visual Arts Gallery
First Floor: Mezzanine Level,
Gallery and Studio 3
Second Floor: Live Room and
two Group Teaching Spaces,
Office, Studio 1 and 2
Third Floor: Meeting Room
Fourth
Floor:
Bar
and
Rehearsal Space

Page 157

Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday, Thursday, Friday
and Saturday from 09:00 hours
to 23:00 hours
PERFORMANCE OF DANCE
AND
PROVISION
OF
FACILITIES FOR DANCING
AND ANYTHING OF SIMILAR:
Fourth Floor venue and
gallery, Cinema 1, 2 and 3,
Ground Floor Café and
Ground Floor visual arts
gallery
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday and Thursday from
09:00 hours to midnight
Friday and Saturday from 09:00
hours to 01:00 hours the
following day
Basement: Visual Arts Gallery
First Floor: Mezzanine Level,
Gallery and Studio 3
Second Floor: Live Room and
two Group Teaching Spaces,
Office, Studio 1 and 2
Fourth
Floor:
Bar
and
Rehearsal Space
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday, Thursday, Friday
and Saturday from 09:00 hours
to 23:00 hours
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT:
4th Floor Bar
Sunday, Monday, Tuesday,
Wednesday and Thursday until
midnight
Friday and Saturday until 01:00
hours the following day
(Oxford House)
Derbyshire Street

Alcohol shall not be sold or
supplied except during
permitted hours.
In this condition, permitted
hours means:
a. On weekdays, other than
Christmas Day, Good Friday or
New Year’s Eve, 10 a.m. to 11
p.m.

Page 158

b. On Sundays, other than
Christmas Day or New Year’s
Eve, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m.
c. On Good Friday, 12 noon to
10.30 p.m.
d. On Christmas Day, 12 noon
to 3 p.m. and 7 p.m. to 10.30
p.m.
e. On New Year’s Eve, except
on a Sunday, 11 a.m. to 11
p.m.
f. On New Year’s Eve on a
Sunday, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m.
g. On New Year’s Eve from the
end of permitted hours to the
start of permitted hours on the
following day (or, if there are no
permitted hours on the
following day, midnight on 31st
December).
For conditions re. “drinking up
time” see
Annex 1 Mandatory Conditions
Note: However, New Years Eve
is subject to the Regulatory
Reform (Special Occasion
Licensing) Order 2002. Which
means that while that order is in
effect the premises may remain
open for the twelve hours
between 11pm on New Years
Eve and 11am on New Years
Day.
Regulated Entertainment
Monday to Saturday until 01 00
hrs
Sunday until 23 00 hrs
Late Night Refreshment
30 minutes after the sale of
alcohol ceases
Fevered Sheep
Unlicensed premises
15A Old Ford Road

Page 159

Appendix 6

Page 160

Section 182 Advice by the Home Office
Updated on April 2018
Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations
9.4 A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the
licence on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For
example, a representation from a local businessperson about the commercial
damage caused by competition from new licensed premises would not be
relevant. On the other hand, a representation by a businessperson that
nuisance caused by new premises would deter customers from entering the
local area, and the steps proposed by the applicant to prevent that nuisance
were inadequate, would be relevant. In other words, representations should
relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on from premises on the
objectives. For representations in relation to variations to be relevant, they
should be confined to the subject matter of the variation. There is no
requirement for a responsible authority or other person to produce a recorded
history of problems at premises to support their representations, and in fact
this would not be possible for new premises.
9.5 It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other
than a representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on
the basis of what might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous.
A representation may be considered to be vexatious if it appears to be
intended to cause aggravation or annoyance, whether to a competitor or other
person, without reasonable cause or justification. Vexatious circumstances
may arise because of disputes between rival businesses and local knowledge
will therefore be invaluable in considering such matters. Licensing authorities
can consider the main effect of the representation, and whether any
inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered to be
proportionate.
9.6 Frivolous representations would be essentially categorised by a lack of
seriousness. Frivolous representations would concern issues which, at most,
are minor and in relation to which no remedial steps would be warranted or
proportionate.
9.7 Any person who is aggrieved by a rejection of their representations on either
of these grounds may lodge a complaint through the local authority’s
corporate complaints procedure. A person may also challenge the authority’s
decision by way of judicial review.
9.8 Licensing authorities should not take decisions about whether
representations are frivolous, vexatious or relevant to the licensing
objectives on the basis of any political judgement. This may be difficult for
councillors who receive complaints from residents within their own wards. If
consideration is not to be delegated, contrary to the recommendation in this

Page 161

Guidance, an assessment should be prepared by officials for consideration
by the sub- committee before any decision is taken that necessitates a
hearing. Any councillor who considers that their own interests are such that
they are unable to consider the matter independently should disqualify
themselves.
9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any
aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that
representation. The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for
the person or body making the representation to amplify and clarify it.
9.10
Licensing authorities should consider providing advice on their websites
about how any person can make representations to them.

Page 162

Appendix 7

Page 163

Corinne Holland
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:

Rachel G
12 February 2022 10:37
Licensing
Corinne Holland
Re: Premises licence application

>

Dear Sir, Madam,
I formally oppose this application for the new licensing submitted by Owen Kingston to go through at St
Peter's Church Crypt, which involves the selling and distribution of alcohol, and live musical and theatrical
entertainment.
Firstly, the immediate area surrounding the church is entirely residential. Whilst Bethnal Green generally is
regarded as being a hub for bars, restaurants and social activities, this area surrounding St Peter's Church
is quiet and solely occupied by tenants and residents of Tower Hamlets.
The times of opening that are being proposed in this application end at 11pm, seven nights a week. This
seems hugely anti-social for anyone living within this vicinity to put up with regular disruption from events,
every single night of the week. Buildings that will be particularly impacted by this are Mary James House
and Sheppard House. How can it be appropriate to encourage noise Sun-Thurs in a residential area?
The application also states that "Noise or vibration will be maintained at a level.. that won't be audible for
..any neighbouring premises". This cannot be true. At present, local residents can hear the church services
~10.30-11am every Sunday morning. What this application will allow if the new license is obtained is this
level of noise will be heard until 11pm at the earliest every single evening (when factoring in exiting
individuals from the premises). A Church service on a Sunday morning is one thing, but booming and music
until 11pm on Tues evening for example is entirely inappropriate, and again is a public nuisance.
As mentioned above, the area is residential. Parking can already be a challenge for the neighbouring flats.
And Tower Hamlets are aware of ongoing crime and anti-social behaviour on the estate. The supply of
alcohol and encouragement of more individuals to head to the estate late at night will only exacerbate this
issue and continue to drive a huge amount of anti-social behaviour and public nuisance.
The provision of venues like what is being proposed in this application include:
- Fevered Sleep
- Oxford House
- Bethnal Green Working Men's Club
- Rich Mix
There is an abundance of similar venues elsewhere in Bethnal Green, also making this application
unnecessary to serve the local area given it's already served fairly well.
It seems Mr Kingston has not understood the local area, nor taken the time to understand how this
proposal will affect the properties of a residential, quiet estate.
I look forward to hearing your next steps on this, and if there are any questions I'm happy to respond.
Thanks,
Rachel Glynn

Page 164
1

Appendix 8

Page 165

Corinne Holland
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Licensing
04 February 2022 15:58
Corinne Holland
FW: Premises License App - St Peter's Church Crypt

From: MARK.J.Perry
Sent: 04 February 2022 15:55
To: owen.kingston
<Licensing@
Subject: Premises License App - St Peter's Church Crypt
Hi Owen,
Thanks for agreeing conditions and good luck with the venue, please feel free to contact me if you have any further
questions.
Tower Hamlets Council please see conditions agreed with the applicant.
Kind Regards
Mark

PC Mark Perry
Central East Licensing Unit
Metropolitan Police Service (MPS)
Email
A: Licensing Office, 1st Floor Stoke Newington Police Station

From: Owen Kingston <
Sent: 02 February 2022 15:35
To: Perry Mark J - CE-CU <
>
Subject: Re: Premises License App - St Peter's Church Crypt
Hi Mark Thanks for this and sorry to miss your call just now I am generally very happy with adding these conditions, but it would be useful to have a quick chat about the
recommended CCTV system - particularly regarding minimum requirements and recommended kit/providers basically any help you can give us regarding this so we can get it set up in a timely fashion with a minimum of fuss
would be very much appreciated.

Page 166
1

I’m on and off tube trains for the rest of the working day annoyingly, but will be in one place from 1pm onwards
tomorrow which would be the ideal time for a call if that’s possible for you.
Talk soon,
Owen.

On 2 Feb 2022, at 15:26,

wrote:

Hi Owen,
I am PC Mark Perry from Central east Police Licensing, I am dealing with your
application. While I have no objection in principle to your application I would like the
following conditions added to your license:
1. An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and be available on request to
the Police or an authorised officer. It must be completed within 24 hours of
any incident and will record the following:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

all crimes reported to the venue;
all ejections of patrons;
any complaints received concerning crime and disorder
any incidents of disorder;
all seizures of drugs or offensive weapons;
any faults in the CCTV system, searching equipment or scanning
equipment;
any refusal of the sale of alcohol;
any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

2. The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system as
per the minimum requirements of the Tower Hamlets Police Licensing Team.
All entry and exit points will be covered enabling frontal identification of every
person entering in any light condition. The CCTV system shall continually
record whilst the premises is open for licensable activities and during all times
when customers remain on the premises. All recordings shall be stored for a
minimum period of 31 days with date and time stamping. Viewing of
recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer throughout the entire 31 day period.
3. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the
CCTV system shall be on the premises at all times when the premises are
open. This staff member must be able to provide a Police or authorised
council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute
minimum of delay when requested.
4. Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where
the only acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic
identification cards, such as a driving licence, passport or proof of age card
with the PASS Hologram.
Please let me know if these conditions are acceptable or if you wish to discuss them.

Page
167
2

Kind Regards
Mark

PC Mark Perry
Central East Licensing Unit
Metropolitan Police Service (MPS)
Email
A: Licensing Office, 1st Floor Stoke Newington Police Station

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be
confidential. If you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it
from your system. Do not use, copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in
any attachment without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS)
communication systems are monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or
attachments may be read by monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to
conclude binding agreements on behalf of the MPS by email and no responsibility is
accepted for unauthorised agreements reached with other personnel. While reasonable
precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this email, its security and
that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.
NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be confidential. If
you have received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your system. Do not use,
copy or disclose the information contained in this email or in any attachment without the permission of the
sender. Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) communication systems are monitored to the extent permitted
by law and any email and/or attachments may be read by monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are
authorised to conclude binding agreements on behalf of the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted
for unauthorised agreements reached with other personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to
ensure no viruses are present in this email, its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be confidential. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your system. Do not use, copy or disclose the
information contained in this email or in any attachment without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police
Service (MPS) communication systems are monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or
attachments may be read by monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding
agreements on behalf of the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached
with other personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this email,
its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

Page 168
3

Appendix 9

Page 169

Licensing Policy Updated November 2018

Prevention of Public Nuisance
9.1

Licensed premises, especially those operating late at night and in the early
hours of the morning, can cause a range of nuisances impacting on people
living, working or sleeping in the vicinity of the premises.

9.2

The concerns mainly relate to noise nuisance both from the premises and
customer egress, light pollution, noxious smells and disruption from parked
vehicles and due regard will be taken of the impact these may have in
considering a licence. The Licensing Authority will expect Operating
Schedules to satisfactorily address these issues. Applicants are advised to
seek advice from the Council’s Environmental Health Officers before
preparing their plans and Schedules.

9.3

The Licensing Authority, where its discretion is engaged, will consider,
where appropriate, attaching conditions to licences and permissions to
prevent the problems identified in Section 18 of this Policy (Special
Cumulative Impact Policy for the Brick Lane and Bethnal Green Area), and
these may include conditions drawn from the Model Pool of Conditions found
in the Secretary of States Guidance.

9.4

Street Furniture – placing of street furniture, which includes advertising
boards, on the highway can cause a public nuisance by way of obstruction, or
encourage consumption of alcohol on an unlicensed area. The Licensing
Authority expects applicants to have ensured that they fully comply with the
Councils rules relating to authorisation of obstructions on the highway, and
that the required authorisations are obtained prior to submitting a licence
application. Where proportionate and appropriate, and its discretion is
engaged, the Licensing Authority will impose conditions in relation to street
furniture, including on private land.

9.5

Fly Posting – The Council has experienced problems with "fly posting" in
relation to venues that offer entertainment. Fly posting is the unauthorised
posting of posters / advertisements etc. Where it considers it proportionate
and appropriate, and its discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will
attach conditions relating to the control of fly posting to ensure that venues
clearly prohibit all fly posting in their contract terms with others and they
effectively enforce this control.

Page 170

Appendix 10

Page 171

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003
Updated April 2018

Public nuisance
2.15

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities,
through representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and
what is appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific
premises licences and club premises certificates. It is therefore important
that in considering the promotion of this licensing objective, licensing
authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable
activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including
those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may
be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern
noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.

2.16

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation.
It is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad
common law meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the
reduction of the living and working amenity and environment of other
persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. Public
nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light,
dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.

2.17

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps
appropriate to control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This
might be achieved by a simple measure such as ensuring that doors and
windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons are not
permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More
sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber
speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be
appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may
not be enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment activity itself
is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote
the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature
and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities.
Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate
measures that could deter events that are valuable to the community,
such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to purchase
and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.

2.18

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be
appropriate in certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation
adequately protect those living in the area of the premises. But as stated
earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing authorities and
responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers
are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant
representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

Page 172

2.19

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate
conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For
example, the most sensitive period for people being disturbed by
unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning when
residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are
sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of
live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions
relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to
address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright
lighting outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime
and disorder may itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours.
Applicants, licensing authorities and responsible authorities will need to
balance these issues.

2.21

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters
for the personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual
who engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in their own right.
However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing authority to
impose a condition, following relevant representations, that requires the
licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the building
encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of
outside, and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful
night.

Page 173

Appendix 11

Page 174

Licensing Policy, updated November 2018

Crime and Disorder
7.1

Licensed premises, especially those offering late night / early morning
entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people,
can be a source of crime and disorder problems and to store
prescribed information.

7.2

When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should initially
identify any particular issues (having regard to their particular type of
premises and / or activities) which are likely to adversely affect the
promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. Such steps as
are required to deal with these identified issues should be included
within the applications operating schedule. Where the Metropolitan
Police, acting as a responsible authority, makes recommendations in
respect of an application relating to the licensing objectives the
Licensing Authority would expect the applicant to incorporate these
into their operating schedule.

7.3

Applicants are recommended to seek advice from Council Officers
and the Police as well as taking into account, as appropriate, local
planning and transport policies, with tourism, cultural and crime
prevention strategies, when preparing their plans and Schedules.

7.4

In addition to the requirements for the Licensing Authority to promote
the licensing objectives, it also has duties under Section 17 of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent
crime and disorder in the Borough and to share prescribed
information.

7.5

The Licensing Authority, if its discretion is engaged, will consider
attaching Conditions to licences and permissions to deter and prevent
crime and disorder both inside and immediately outside the premises
and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model Pool of
Conditions relating to Crime and Disorder given in the Secretary of
State’s Guidance.

7.6

CCTV - The Licensing Authority, if its discretion is engaged, will attach
conditions to licences, as appropriate where the conditions reflect
local crime prevention strategies, for example the provision of closed
circuit television cameras.

Page 175

7.7

Touting – This is soliciting for custom. There has been a historic
problem with Touting in the borough, mainly in relation to restaurants,
and as such in 2006 the Council introduced a byelaw under Section 235
of the Local Government Act 1972 for the good rule and government of
the London Borough of Tower Hamlets and for the prevention and
suppression of nuisances.
As a result, in relation to premises where there is intelligence that
touting is, or has been carried out, the Licensing Authority, where its
discretion is engaged will insert a standard condition that prohibits
‘touting’ as follows:-

7.8

1)

No person shall be employed to solicit for custom or be
permitted to solicit for custom for business for the premises in
any public place within a 500 meters radius of the premises as
shown edged red on the attached plan.( marked as Appendix -)

2)

Clear Signage to be placed in the restaurant windows stating
that the premises supports the Council’s ‘No Touting’ policy.

Responsible Drinking - The Licensing Authority expects alcohol to
be promoted in a responsible way in the Borough. This should
incorporate relevant industry standards, such as the Portman Group
Code of Practice. Where appropriate and proportionate, if its
discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will apply conditions to
ensure responsible drinking. The Licensing Authority also recognises
the positive contribution to best practice that "Pubwatch" and other
similar schemes can make in promoting the licensing objectives and
is committed to working with them.
Model Pool Conditions can be found in the Secretary of State’s
Guidance.

7.9

Criminal Activity - There is certain criminal activity that may arise in
connection with licensed premises which the Licensing Authority will
treat particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:
•
for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse
of Drugs Act 1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs
crime;
•
for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
•
for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed
films and music, which does considerable damage to the
industries affected;
•
for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors
which impacts on the health, educational attainment,
employment prospects and propensity for crime of young people;
•
for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
•
by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

Page 176

•
•
•
•
•

as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly
by gangs;
for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist
attacks;
for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by
reason of their immigration status in the UK;
for unlawful gambling; and
for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

The Secretary State’s Guidance states that it is envisaged that
licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and this
Licensing Authority determines that the crime prevention objective is
being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes,
it is expected that revocation of the licence, even in the first instance,
should be seriously considered.
7.10

In particular the Licensing Authority is mindful of the Secretary of
State’s Guidance “Reviews arising in connection with crime”.

7.11

From 1 April 2017, businesses which sell alcohol (for example,
retailers of alcohol and trade buyers) will need to ensure that the UK
wholesalers that they buy alcohol from have been approved by
HMRC under the Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme (AWRS).
They will need to check their wholesalers Unique Registration
Number (URN) against the HMRC online database which will be
available from April 2017. This is an ongoing obligation and if a
business is found to have bought alcohol from an unapproved
wholesaler, they may be liable to a penalty or could even face
criminal prosecution and their alcohol stock may be seized. Any
trader who buys alcohol from a wholesaler for onward sale to the
general public (known as a ‘trade buyer’) does not need to register
unless they sell alcohol to other businesses. Examples of trade
buyers would be pubs, clubs, restaurants, cafes, retailers and hotels.
However, they will need to check that the wholesaler they purchase
alcohol from is registered with HMRC. Further information may be
found
at:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/the-alcohol-wholesalerregistration-scheme-awrs.

Page 177

Smuggled goods
7.12

The Licensing Authority will exercise its discretion to add a standard
condition as follows:1)

The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for
the purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-todoor sellers other than from established traders who provide full
receipts at the time of delivery to provide traceability.

2)

The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods
bought include the following details:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Seller’s name and address
Seller’s company details, if applicable
Seller’s VAT details, if applicable
Vehicle registration detail, if applicable

3)

Legible copies of the documents referred to in 2) shall be retained
on the premises and made available to officers on request.

4)

The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that
duty stamps are valid.

5)

Where the trader becomes aware that any alcohol may be not duty
paid they shall inform the Police of this immediately.

Olympic Park – Football Ground
7.13

Premises where Police intelligence shows that football supporters
congregate within the borough should consider in their application
form the following conditions:
1)

On Match Days for premises licensed for the supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises:
a)
Drinks shall only be supplied in polypropylene or similar
plastic and all bottled drinks shall be poured into such
drinking vessels before being handed to the customer.
These should be made of recyclable materials.
b)

Registered door staff shall be employed to control the entry
and exits to the premises and to manage any licensed
outside area(s).

Page 178

Appendix 12

Page 179

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003
Updated April 2018

Crime and disorder
2.1

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of
advice on crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local
Community Safety Partnership (CSP).

2.2

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to cooperate with the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and
consider adding relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The
SIA also plays an important role in preventing crime and disorder by
ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed and, in partnership
with police and other agencies, that security companies are not being
used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other
partner agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door
supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug
dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and
disorder including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises
(see paragraph 10.10). For example, where there is good reason to
suppose that disorder may take place, the presence of closed-circuit
television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately outside the
premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their
premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself,
its staff, or its customers. But any condition may require a broader
approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that the precise location of
cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are properly
covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the
condition.

2.4

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be
considered an appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs
operating in city and town centre leisure areas with a high density of
licensed premises. These systems allow managers of licensed premises
to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a rapid response to
any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on the
premises.

Page 180

2.5

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated
premises supervisors should not normally be attached to premises
licences. It will normally be the responsibility of the premises licence
holder as an employer, and not the licensing authority, to ensure that the
managers appointed at the premises are competent and appropriately
trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by
the premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A
condition of this kind may only be justified as appropriate in rare
circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the circumstances
associated with particular premises, poor management competency could
give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety.

2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing
authorities should work with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as
well as the police, in respect of these matters. Licence conditions that are
considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal working in licensed
premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake
right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work
check are retained at the licensed premises.

Page 181

Appendix 13

Page 182

Anti-Social Behaviour from Patrons Leaving the Premises
General Advice
Members need to bear in mind that once patrons have left a premises they are
no longer under direct control. Members will need to be satisfied that there is a
link between the way the premises is operating and the behaviour that is
complained of. An example of this would be that irresponsible drinking is being
encouraged. Before deciding that any particular licensing conditions are
proportionate, Members will also need to be satisfied that other legislation is not
a more effective route. For example, if the problem is drinking in the street it
may be that the Council should designate the area as a place where alcohol
cannot be consumed in public.
Members may also wish to consider whether the hours of opening relate to any
problems of anti-social behaviour.
If Members believe that there is a substantial problem of anti-social behaviour
and it cannot be proportionately addressed by licensing conditions they should
refuse the application.
Licensing Policy
The policy recognises that other legislation or measures may be more
appropriate but also states that licensing laws are “a key aspect of such
control and will always be part of an overall approach to the management of
the evening and night time economy” (see Section 4.15 and 4.16 of the
Licensing Policy).
The Licensing Authority expects the applicant to have addressed all crime and
disorder issues relating to the premises in their operating schedule and to
have sought appropriate advice. (See Sections 6.2 of the Licensing Policy)
The Licensing Authority will consider attaching conditions to deter crime and
disorder and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model Poll of
Conditions relating to Crime and Disorder. (See Appendix 3 of the Licensing
Policy). In particular Members may wish to consider (this list is not exhaustive):
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bottle Bans
Plastic containers
CCTV (outside the premises)
Restrictions on open containers for “off sales”
Proof of Age scheme
Crime prevention notices
Drinks promotions-aimed at stopping irresponsible promotions
Signage

Page 183

Cumulative Impact
There is a process by which the Licensing Authority can determine that an
area is saturated following representations. However, the process for this
involves wide consultation and cannot come from representations about a
particular application. (See Section 8 of the Licensing Policy).

Police Powers
The Licensing Act 2003, Part 8 gives a senior police officer the power to close
a premises for up to 24 hours where the officer believes there is, or is likely to
be disorder on or in the vicinity and closure is necessary in the interests of
public.
Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
The key role of the Police is acknowledged (2.1).
Conditions attached to licences cannot seek to manage the behaviour of
customers once they are beyond the direct management of the licence holder,
but can relate to the immediate vicinity of the premises as they seek entry or
leave (1.16).
Conditions are best targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder
(2.3) CCTV inside & out, communication, police liaison, no glasses are all
relevant
There is also guidance issued around public nuisance (2.15 – 2.21).
The pool of conditions, adopted by the Council is recommended (see
Appendix 3 of the Licensing Policy). Licence conditions should not duplicate
other legislation (1.16).
Necessary and appropriate conditions should normally focus on the most
sensitive periods and may address disturbance as customers enter or leave
the premises but it is essential that conditions are focused on measures
within the direct control of the licence holder (2.18/2.21).
Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance
and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from the licensed
premises and, therefore, beyond the direct control of the individual, club or
business holding the licence, certificate or authorisation concerned (14.13).
Other Legislation
Crime and Disorder Act 1998
The Council has a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder.

Page 184

The Act also introduced a wide range of measures designed to address antisocial behaviour committed by adults and young people. These include:

•
•
•
•
•
•

Anti-Social Behaviour Orders
Child Curfew Schemes
Truancy
Parenting Orders
Reparation Orders
Tackling Racism

Page 185

Appendix 14

Page 186

Licensing Policy Relating to Hours of Trading
All applications have to be considered on their own merits.
The Council has however adopted a set of framework hours as follows:
•
•
•

Monday to Thursday, from 06:00 hrs to 23:30 hrs
Friday and Saturday, from 06:00 hrs to 00:00 hrs (midnight)
Sunday, from 06:00 hrs to 22:30 hrs

(see 14.8 of the Licensing Policy)
In considering the applicability of frame work hours to any particular
application regard should be had to the following
• Location
• Proposed hours of regulated activities, and the proposed hours the
premises are open to the public
• The adequacy of the applicant’s proposals to deal with issues of crime
and disorder and public nuisance
• Previous history
• Access to public transport
• Proximity to other licensed premises, and their hours
(See 14.9 of the licensing policy)
Subject to any representations to the contrary in individual cases the following
premises are not generally considered to contribute to late night anti-social
behaviour and will therefore generally have greater freedom
• Theatres
• Cinemas
• Premises with club premises certificates

Page 187

Appendix 15

Page 188

Planning
An application for a Premises Licence can be made in respect of a premises
even where the premises does not have relevant Planning Permission.
That application has to be considered and Members can only refuse the
application where the application itself does not promote one of more of the
Licensing Objectives. Members cannot refuse just because there is no
planning permission. Where a Premises Licence is granted and which
exceeds what is allowed by the Planning Permission and that Premises then
operates in breach of planning then the operator would be liable to
enforcement by Planning.

Page 189

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4.3
Committee:

Date:

Classification:

Licensing Sub-Committee

Report No.

Agenda Item
No.

UNRESTRICTED

David Tolley
Head of Environmental Health & Trading
Standards

Title: Licensing Act 2003

Report of:

Application to Review the Premise Licence for (Parnell
Mini-Market) 117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Originating Officer:

Corinne Holland
Licensing Officer

Ward affected:

Bow East

1.0 Summary
Name and

Parnell Mini Market

Address of premises:

117a Parnell Road
London
E3 2RT

Licence under review:

Licensing Act 2003
 Sale by retail of alcohol (off sales
only)

Review triggered by:

Trading Standards

Representations:

Police

2.0 Recommendations
2.1 That the Licensing Committee considers the application for review and
then adjudicates accordingly.
LOCAL GOVERNMENT 2000 (Section 97)
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE DRAFTING OF THIS REPORT

Brief description of "background paper"





Tick if copy supplied for
register

Guidance Issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003
Tower Hamlets Licensing Policy
File

Page 191

If not supplied, name and telephone
number of holder

Corinne Holland
020 7364 3986

3.0 Review Application
3.1 This is an application for a review of the premises licence for Parnell Mini
Market, 117a Parnell Road, London E3 2RT. The review was triggered
by Trading Standards.
3.2 A copy of the review application is attached in Appendix 1.
3.3 Evidence supporting review is attached in Appendix 2. Showing List of
Appendices I – XII.
There is also CCTV recording of the under age test purchase and CCTV
recording showing a previous challenge by staff (both on 13/12/21)
which has been restricted to the public but Members will be able to view
prior to the Committee Hearing.
4.0 The Premises
4.1 The premises licence was issued on 5th December 2007. On the 31st
March 2019 the Premise Licence was transferred to Huq Neighbours
Limited (Director is MD Al Mamunal Huq). On 5th June 2019 MD Al
Mamunal Huq became the Designated Premises Supervisor.
4.2 A copy of the premises licence is contained in within the evidence
supporting the review (Appendix IV).
4.3 Maps showing the premises, surrounding area and vicinity of local
residents are included in Appendix 3.
5.0 Representations
5.1 This hearing is required by the Licensing Act 2003, because a review
has been triggered by Trading Standards.
5.2 The review is further supported by the following Responsible Authorities
Police – Appendix 4.
5.3 Only representations that relate to the following licensing objectives are
relevant:
 the prevention of crime and disorder
 public safety
 the prevention of public nuisance
 the protection of children from harm
5.4 In the view of the responsible authorities it is necessary to achieve the
licensing objectives of the prevention of public nuisance and prevention
of crime & disorder.

Page 192

6.0 Review Explained
6.1 The Licensing Act 2003 was described by the Government at the time as
“light touch” but as Baroness Blackstone stated in the Lords at the time
of the second reading (26 Nov 2002) “Local residents and businesses
as well as expert bodies, will have the power to request that the licensing
authority review existing licences where problems arise. Such a review
could result in the modification of the licence, its suspension, or
ultimately, revocation.”
6.2 The Home Office has issued guidance under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003 in relation to reviews and that is contained in
Appendix 5. It is available on the Government’s website,
www.homeoffice.gov.uk. It was last revised in April 2018.
6.3 Members are particularly asked to note the comments in relation Crime
and Disorder. In particular the home office advice is that “The role of the
licensing authority when determining such a review is not therefore to
establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure that the
crime prevention objective is promoted.”
6.4 In relation to its advice on representations the home office has also
advised that “there is no requirement for an interested party or
responsible authority to produce a recorded history of problems at a
premises to support their representations.” It has also issued revised
guidance about Crime and Disorder. See Appendix 6.
6.5 Members should also note the Council’s Licensing Policy in relation to
Crime and Disorder, the relevant parts of which are contained in
Appendix 7.
6.6 Guidance Issued by the Home Office concerning Protection of children
from Harm Appendix 8.
6.7 London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy in relation to the Protection of
Children from Harm Appendix 9.
6.8 The Home Office has advised that in relation to reviews “ Where
authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about
problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give
licence holders early warning of their concerns and the need for
improvement, and where possible they should advise the licence or
certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is
expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a
local level in promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged
and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-operation. ”

Page 193

6.9 An interested party or a responsible authority can trigger a review at any
time, but the grounds must be relevant to the licensing objectives. The
form of the application, and the advertisement of the review are the
subject of regulations (The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and
Club Premises Certificate) Regulations 2005). In addition, the licensing
authority has to satisfy itself of certain matters in relation to the Licensing
Act 2003. The Licensing & Safety Team Leader is the delegated officer
who deals with this on behalf of the Licensing Authority. All the matters
stated in 5.0 were considered before any representations were accepted
for inclusion in this report.
6.10 The Licensing Act 2003 requires that the Licensing Authority satisfies
itself that it should reject the grounds for a review because:
 The ground is not relevant to one or more of the licensing
objectives
 In the case of an application by a local resident that the
application is frivolous, vexatious or repetitious.
7.0 Review Advertisement
7.1 The review was advertised by a blue poster, next to the premises, by the
Licensing Section. This was periodically monitored by the Section to
ensure it was on continuous display, and replaced as necessary. It was
also advertised at Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London E14 2BG.
7.2 The party that triggers the review must notify the licence holder and
responsible authorities. The review documents were sent to the licence
holders.
7.3 The procedure for a review can be summarised as follows:
 A review is triggered by a responsible authority or interested party
 Consultation is conducted for 28 full days
 Other responsible authorities or interested parties may join in the
review
 Members conduct a hearing
 Members make a determination
 All the parties to the review have the right of appeal to the
magistrates court (i.e. the licence holder, the person who triggered
the review and those who have made a representation).
8.0 Licensing Officer Comments
8.1 When licence holders or designated premises supervisors move, leave a
premises or dispose of their premises they remain responsible in law
until they have informed the licensing authority and surrendered the
licence or arranged a transfer, which may involve notification to the
Police as well. Any licensees or designated premises supervisors who
are not sure what to do should contact the licensing authority. Please
note that should the DPS cease to work/be employed by the premises the
Licensing Authority will consider that there is no DPS for those premises.

Page 194

This consideration shall apply regardless of whether that person is still
named on the Premises Licence, or whether they have asked for their
name to be removed from it. This consideration shall apply until such time
that an application is received to nominate a new premises supervisor. In
such cases, the Licensing Authority shall expect no sales of alcohol to
take place until an application to vary the DPS has been submitted to the
Licensing Authority. (27.1 Licensing Policy)
8.2 The Governments advice in relation to reviews is contained in
Appendix 5. Members must consider all the evidence and then decide
from the following alternatives:








modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes
adding new conditions or any alteration or omission of an existing
condition), for example, by reducing the hours of opening or by
requiring door supervisors at particular times;
exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for
example, to exclude the performance of live music or playing of
recorded music (where it is not within the incidental live and
recorded music exemption);
remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because
they consider that the problems are the result of poor management;
suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
revoke the licence.

8.3 The licence should only be suspended or revoked if Members believe
that alterations to the existing licence, including imposing new conditions
does not have a reasonable prospect of ensuring that the licensing
objectives are met.
8.4 Members should bear in mind that conditions may not be imposed for
any purpose other than to meet the licensing objectives.
8.5 In all cases the Members should make their decision on the civil burden
of proof that is “the balance of probability.”
8.6 In all cases Members should consider whether or not primary legislation
is the appropriate method of regulation and should only consider licence
conditions when the circumstances in their view are not already
adequately covered elsewhere.

9.0 Legal Comments
9.1 The Council’s legal officer will give advice at the hearing.
10.0 Finance Comments
10.1 There are no financial implications in this report.

Page 195

11.0 Appendices

Appendix 1

Copy of the review application

Appendix 2

Supporting evidence (includes premises licence)
(additional appendices I-XII)

Appendix 3

Maps of the premises and surrounding area

Appendix 4

Police representation

Appendix 5

Guidance issued under Section 182 by the Home
Office for reviews

Appendix 6

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 concerning
Crime and Disorder

Appendix 7

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Licensing
Policy in relation to the prevention of Crime and
Disorder

Appendix 8

Guidance Issued by the Home Office concerning
Protection of Children from Harm

Appendix 9

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Policy in
relation to the Protection of Children from Harm

Page 196

Appendix 1

Page 197

LICENSING ACT 2003
This form should be completed and forwarded to:
London Borough of Tower Hamlets,
Licensing Service, Mulberry Place (AH),PO BOX 55739,
5 Clove Crescent, London E14 1BY

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if
necessary. You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I, Alex Brander, apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 /
apply for the review of a club premises certificate under section 87 of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as
applicable)
Part 1 – Premises or club premises details
Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description
Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road

Post town: London

Post code (if known)
E3 2RT

Name of premises licence holder or club
holding club premises certificate (if known)

Huq Neighbours Ltd

Page 198

1

Number of premises licence or club
premises certificate (if known)

29086

Part 2 - Applicant details
Please tick
I am
1) an interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)
a) a person living in the vicinity of the premises
b) a body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises
c) a person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises
d) a body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

yes

☒

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below)
3) a member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) below)

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Mr ☐

Mrs

Miss

Ms

Other title
(for example, Rev)
First names

Surname

Please tick yes
☒

I am 18 years old or over
Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address
Post Town

Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

00

E-mail address

(optional)

Page 199

2

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT
Mr

Mrs

Miss

Ms

Surname

Other title
(for example, Rev)
First names

Please tick

yes

I am 18 years old or over
Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address
Post Town

Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number
E-mail address

(optional)
(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

Alex Brander
London Borough of Tower Hamlets
Mulberry Place
5 Clove Crescent
London
E14 2BG
Telephone number (if any)
E-mail (optional)

Page 200

3

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more boxes
☐

1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance

☐

4) the protection of children from harm

☒

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note1)

The Trading Standards Service, as the Local Weights and Measures Authority, is designated a
‘responsible authority’ for the purposes of the Act and is making representations in relation to the
prevention of crime & disorder, public safety, the prevention of public nuisance and the protection of
children from harm.
The grounds for the review concerns the sale of alcohol and other age-restricted products (namely
tobacco) to people under the age of 18, contrary to the licensing objective of the protection of
children from harm.
On the 1st December 2021 LB Tower Hamlets Trading Standards service received a complaint from a
concerned parent that her 16 year old son was able to buy alcohol on a regular basis from Parnell
Mini-Market, 117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT. The complaint also contained an allegation that the
child was even provided with store credit when he did not have sufficient money on him to buy
alcohol.
The premises was subsequently included in an age-restricted goods test purchase operation on 13th
December 2021, carried out by LB Tower Hamlets Trading Standards, together with Metropolitan
Police Officers and police cadets. On this occasion two cadets (a 16 year old female and a 15 year old
male) were instructed to attempt to buy alcohol from the premises. The test purchase occurred at
approximately 18:48. The test purchase was witnessed by Senior Trading Standards Officer Alex
Brander. The cadets remained together throughout their time in the shop and managed to purchase
a single can of Stella Artois lager. The 16 year old female cadet paid for the can of Stella Artois, costing
£1.40. At no point during the transaction did the person serving challenge either cadet for proof of
age. During the time of the sale there was only one person working on the shop floor / till area.
The sale of alcohol to a person under the age of 18 constitutes an offence under Licensing Act 2003;
section 146 (1).
Following the sale, at approximately 18:07 Trading Standards Officers Alex Brander and Audrey
Dembinski entered the premises, together with a police officer. The person who sold the can of Stella
Artois was still the only person on the shop floor. After the Trading Standards Officers introduced
themselves the shop worker went to side room and came back with another male who identified
himself as Md Al Mamunul Huq. He said he said he was the Designated Premises Supervisor. He
confirmed that the premises licence was held by Huq Neighbours Ltd and that he is the director of the
company. The person who sold the alcohol was identified as Mehedi Hasan; an employee of the
business.

Page 201

4

See Appendix I – Statement of Alex Brander, Appendix II – Photograph of can of Stella Artois,
Appendix III – Still image from CCTV footage, Appendix XI – Photograph of female cadet and
Appendix XII – Photograph of male cadet.
An investigation into the offence by LB Tower Hamlets Trading Standards is in progress and is running
separately to this licence review application.
Annex 2 of the current premises licence stipulates that a recognised proof of ID is to be requested for
any person appearing to be under the age of 21. It is this Responsible Authority’s view that the cadets
that were sold the alcohol on the 13th December 2021 clearly looked under 21 and as no proof of ID
was requested the licence condition was breached on that occasion. See Appendix IV – copy of
premises licence for 117a Parnell Road.
It is a requirement under section 57 (3) of the Licensing Act 2003 that the holder of the premises
licence must secure that the summary of the licence (or a certified copy of it) be prominently displayed
at the premises. It should be noted that the licence that was on display at Parnell Mini-Market on the
13th December 2021 was not the current and valid licence for the premises. See Appendix IVa – photo
of displayed licence (number 27385).
The premises has a refusals register (which is a condition on the licence). This included four entries
made in November and two in December up to the 13th December 2021. See Appendix V –
photographs of refusals book. This suggests that the shop does have a problem with underage people
attempting to purchase age-restricted products.
Following the sale Mr Huq had provided to LB Tower Hamlets Trading Standards photographs of staff
training records for the sale of age-restricted products. These photographs were received by email on
20th December 2021 – see Appendix VI – email from Md Mamunal Huq. These photographs indicate
that staff were trained individually and on separate dates; 08/03/2021, 10/03/2021, 07/09/2021,
24/10/2021, 17/10/2021, 15/11/2021 and 29/11/2021. There does, however, appear to be some
discrepancies with these training records. On the 12th November 2021 a LB Tower Hamlets Trading
Standards Tobacco Enforcement Officer carried out an inspection at Parnell Mini-Market. On that
occasion the officer took photographs of the training records. These photographs show entries for
just three members of staff; on 08/03/2021, 10/03/2021 and 07/09/2021. – see Appendix VII –
witness statement of Kristian Dalley and photographs of training records. It would appear that at
least two of the other entries (the dates in October) were made after the 12th November 2021.
Furthermore, additional entries had been made in the columns headed “Position Held” and “Products
Covered” for the records dated 10/03/2021 and 07/09/2021. When interviewed about these records
Mr Huq could not provide a satisfactory explanation for the additions. He said the staff were left to
complete the records themselves and he did not check them. He did admit to filling in the blank boxes
for “Position Held” and “Products Covered”.
In his interview Mr Huq said that the shop operates a Challenge 25 policy and his staff should be aware
of this. In an email sent to Trading Standards on the 6th January 2022 Mr Huq wrote “On the actual
incident Mr. Prince told me when both of those customers approached the boy on the image looks like
under age and he was carrying the Beer and Mr. Prince* was approached to ask for ID . However finally
according to Mr. Prince, the boy hand over the drink to the girl next to him looks adult as she looks
physically over 20 years old.” See Appendix VIII – email dated 6th January 2022.

Page 202

5

This suggests that even if there is a Challenge 25 policy in place then Mr Hasan failed to follow it by
not challenging the purchaser for identification. It also raised concerns about the knowledge of staff
regarding the sales of alcohol to minors by proxy. When interviewed Mr Hasan had no knowledge that
it is illegal for an adult to buy alcohol on behalf of a child. Although a proxy purchase did not happen
on this occasion (nor was it the intention) it does suggest the staff at the shop would not recognise
when such an occurrence is taking place. Mr Huq has not trained his staff at all on sales by proxy.
* Mr Prince is Mr Mehedi Hasan.
In the email sent on 6th January 2022, Mr Huq provides an example of Mr Hasan challenging a
customer for ID approximately an hour before the test purchase for alcohol on the 13th December. He
included a video of CCTV footage. Whilst there is no audio to the video it does appear that Mr Hasan
did ask the customer for identification. The customer showed Mr Hasan what appears to be a photo
of some identification on a mobile phone, which Mr Hasan accepted. It is this Responsible Authority’s
view that images of identification on a mobile phone is not a suitable form of identification so should
not be accepted as such.
Mr Huq also said that his till system utilises till-prompts for age-restricted goods; to remind staff to
ask for identification. However, this system only works for products that he has programmed to go in
it using barcodes on the packaging. There was no barcode on the can of Stella Artois that was sold on
the 13th December 2021, so no prompt appeared. Mr Huq explained that the can came from a
multipack that had been split by the staff to then be sold individually. There are no barcodes on the
individual cans. He said other alcoholic products he sells have also been split from multipacks and
would not carry barcodes so they would not flag a till prompt either.
The sale of alcohol to minors undermines the licensing objective of the protection of children from
harm. Alcohol can have a serious detrimental effect on a child’s psychological and physical
development. It can also impair their decision-making ability, leaving them and others around them
vulnerable to risk of harm through serious injury.
There is a persistent recent history of selling age-restricted goods to minors at this premises. Sales of
cigarettes were made to underage people during Trading Standards test purchase operations on the
8th March 2020 and on the 29th July 2021. These constituted offences under The Children and Young
Persons Act 1933. Mr Md Al Mamunul Huq sold the cigarettes to the underage person on the 8th
March 2020. Mr Huq and Huq Neighbours Ltd (the owner of the goods is also liable) were prosecuted
for the offence. Mr Huq and Huq Neighbours Ltd pled guilty for the offences. Both Mr Huq and the
company were penalised by fines amounting to £440 each – see Appendix IX – email confirming
hearing outcome.
The sale of cigarettes that occurred on the 29th July 2021 is currently under investigation. During the
course of the investigation for that offence Mr Huq had shown Trading Standards Officers text
messages he had sent to his staff about sales of age-restricted products. In one message sent on 9th
April 2021 he wrote “Parnell Team, please be careful about kids under age in terms of selling
Chigarrate, alcohol, lighter or any Chigarrate products. If not sure please refuse. Thanks”
After the sale of cigarettes occurred on the 29th July 2021 he sent another message to his staff (almost
straight away). It read “Parnell team, sorry to inform you we failed again with under age Chigarrate

Page 203

6

sale. It may cause big problem to our license. Please be careful everyone with someone you think under
age. Please ask photo ID before you serve any Chigarrate, alcohol, lighter, Chigarrate paper or any
other restricted materials. When they come with underage they have some adult around them trying
to buy some thing. Please take extra pro curation. They will one again within the next few days.” – see
Appendix X – Photo of text message sent on 29/07/2021.
The last couple of sentences in that text message suggests that Mr Huq was more concerned with
instructing his staff on how not to get caught out by a test purchase operation rather than he was
with giving adequate training, or on operating an effective challenge policy, to avoid underage sales
from taking place.
The sale of tobacco products at licensed premises to children would also undermine the licensing
objective of the protection of children from harm as smoking can cause serious detriment to a child’s
physical development and is likely to affect their long-term health and wellbeing.

This Responsible Authority believes that the current conditions on the premises licence are
inadequate to prevent the sale of alcohol or other age-restricted products to underage
people. There is provision to add conditions to the licence, such as implementing a Challenge
25 policy, implementing an EPOS system that utilises till-prompts, carrying out staff training
on a regular basis or designating a personal licence holder to provide written authorisation
to non-personal licence holders to sell alcohol. There is also scope to remove the Designated
Premises Supervisor.
It is, however, this Responsible Authority’s view that given the recent history of this premises
(as mentioned in this application) any additional conditions and/or the removal of the
Designated Premises Supervisor will not be sufficient to ensure that the licensing objectives,
particularly the protection of children from harm, are adhered to. It is apparent that the
current licensee has a blatant disregard for the law and upholding the principles contained
within the Licensing Act 2003. This Responsible Authority has no confidence in the current
management of the business upholding the licensing protection of children from harm
objective and is, therefore, seeking a revocation of the premises licence.

Please tick ? yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before

Page 204

7

If yes please state the date of that application
Day

Month

Year

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state
what they were and when you made them
. N/A

Please tick
I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and the
premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as appropriate

Page 205

yes

☒

8

I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected

☒

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5
ON THE STANDARD SCALE UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT
2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION
Part 3 – Signatures (please read guidance note 3)
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature …………………………
………………………………………………………………………………………
Date: 25/01/2022
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
Capacity: ……………Senior Trading Standards Officer
……………………………………………………………………………………………………

Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated
with this application (please read guidance note 5)

Post town

Post code

Telephone number (if any)
If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail
address (optional)

Page 206

9

Notes for Guidance
1 1. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing
objectives.
2 Please list any additional information or details for example dates of
problems which are included in the grounds for review if available.
3

The application form must be signed.

4 An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their
behalf provided that they have actual authority to do so.
5 This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this
application.

Page 207

10

Appendix 2

Page 208

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT
List of Appendices
Appendix I – Statement of Alex Brander
Appendix II – Photo of Stella Artois can
Appendix III – CCTV image still
Appendix IV – 117a Parnell Road Premises Licence (29086)
Appendix IVa – Photo of displayed licence (27385)
Appendix V – Photo of Refusals Book
Appendix VI – Email containing photos of training records (dated
20/12/2021)
Appendix VII – Statement of Kristian Dalley and photographs of
training records
Appendix VIII – Email from Mr Huq (dated 06/01/2022)
Appendix IX – Email confirming hearing outcome (dated
19/05/2021)
Appendix X – Photo of text message
Appendix XI – Photo of Female Cadet
Appendix XII – Photo of Male Cadet

Page 209

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix I – Statement of Alex Brander

Page 210

RESTRICTED (when complete)

MG11

Witness Statement

Page 1 of 3

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9)

URN:
Statement of:
ALEX BRANDER

Age if under 18 (if over insert “over 18”):
This statement (consisting of

Over 18

Occupation:

Senior
Officer

Trading

Standards

Pages(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I make it

knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it, anything which I know to be false, or do
not believe to be true.
Name / Signature:

Alex Brander

Date:

Tick if witness evidence is visually recorded:

(Supply witness details on last page)

Statement

I am employed by London Borough of Tower Hamlets as a Senior Trading Standards Officer, based at
Tower Hamlets Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG. I have held this position
since September 2021. In the afternoon and evening of 13th December 2021 I participated in an
underage sales test purchase operation. The operation involved visiting various premises in the borough
that sell age-restricted products and instructing a person under the age of 18 to attempt to purchase an
age-restricted product from them. I was accompanied in the operation by Trading Standards Officer
Audrey DEMBINSKI and two Metropolitan Police Officers. We were assisted by four police cadets; three

Signed: ……

……………………. …………….....……….(witness)

Date: …20/12/2021………………………………………….
(To be completed if applicable: ……………… …………………………………. being unable to read the above statement I,
……………………of ……………………….., read it to him/her before he/she signed it.
Signed: ……………………….. ……………..

Date: …………………….. )

Page 211
MG 11 (08/2007)

RESTRICTED (when complete)

Witness Statement

MG11

Page 2 of 3

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9)

of whom were 16 years old and one was 15 years old. They were designated names Cadet A (16 year old
male), Cadet B (16 year old male), Cadet C (16 year old female) and Cadet D (15 year old male). At the
start of the operation I took photographs of the cadets to show their appearance on the day. I produce
two photographs of Cadet C as exhibit AB/CC/1 and two photographs of Cadet D as exhibit AB/CD/1.
At approximately 18:47 I instructed Cadets C and D to attempt to purchase an alcoholic drink from
Parnell Mini-Market, 117a Parnell Road, London Road, E3 2RT. I entered the shop first to witness the
test purchase. When I entered the premises there was one male of South Asian appearance, wearing a
button up shirt, that appeared to be re-stocking shelves on the shopfloor. There were no other people
on the shopfloor or behind the till. A few seconds later Cadets C and D entered the shop. I saw them go
to the drinks chiller cabinet and Cadet D selected a single can of Stella Artois and handed it to Cadet C.
The cadets then went towards the till area and the male in the button up shirt went behind the counter.
I stood behind and to the right of the cadets so I could witness the test purchase. The male then rang up
the sale on the till and asked for £1.40. Cadet C handed him a £10 note and he gave her the change.
Cadet C then picked up the can of Stella Artois and left the store with Cadet D. At no point during that
transaction did the shop worker ask for any proof of age from the cadets. I then paid for an item and left
the shop. I met with the cadets, Audrey Dembinski and the police vehicles at our vehicle that was parked
nearby. Cadet C handed to me the can of Stella Artois. I took two photographs of the can which I
produce as exhibit AB/SA/1. I then bagged and sealed the can in seal tag number N00078162. I produce
this can of Stella Artois as exhibit AB/PMM/1.
At approximately 19:07 I re-entered Parnell Mini-Market with Audrey Dembinski and a police officer.
The male that served the cadets was still the only person that appeared to be working in the shop. I

Signed: ……

……………………. …………….....……….(witness)

Date: …20/12/2021………………………………………….
(To be completed if applicable: ……………… …………………………………. being unable to read the above statement I,
……………………of ……………………….., read it to him/her before he/she signed it.
Signed: ……………………….. ……………..

Date: …………………….. )

Page 212
MG 11 (08/2007)

RESTRICTED (when complete)

MG11

Witness Statement

Page 3 of 3

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9)

identified myself and introduced us. I explained that we had just carried out a test purchase and that I
witnessed him sell the can of Stella Artois to a 16 year old. He then went to a side room and re-emerged
with another male who identified himself as the shop owner. The male that sold the can identified
himself as Mehedi HASAN and gave his date of birth as

he shop owner identified himself

as Md Al Mamunul HUQ. Mr HUQ said he was the Designated Premises Supervisor and director of Huq
Neighbours Ltd. The premises licence holder is Huq Neighbours Ltd. I explained to Mr Huq that we had
carried out a test purchase and that Mr HASAN had sold the can of Stella Artois to a 16 year old female.
The can of Stella Artois does not have a barcode. Mr HUQ demonstrated to me how a sale would be
made through the till; the price is entered and there is an option to select a product type as alcohol but
no prompt appears to remind a shop worker to perform an age verification check. Mr HUQ also showed
to me a refusals log. Audrey Dembinski took photographs of the till and the refusals log. I asked Mr HUQ
to provide to me within seven days a copy of CCTV footage that covered the time of the sale as well as
copies of training records for staff. At approximately 19:25 I left the premises.
On 20th December 2021 I received an email from Mr HUQ. The email contained two images of staff
training records embedded in it as well as a copy of the CCTV footage as a video attachment. I produce
this email as exhibit AB/PMM/2 as well as the CCTV footage separately as exhibit AB/PMM/3. END.

Signed: ……

……………………. …………….....……….(witness)

Date: …20/12/2021………………………………………….
(To be completed if applicable: ……………… …………………………………. being unable to read the above statement I,
……………………of ……………………….., read it to him/her before he/she signed it.
Signed: ……………………….. ……………..

Date: …………………….. )

Page 213
MG 11 (08/2007)

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix II – Photo of Stella Artois can

Page 214

Page 215

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix III – CCTV image still – SENSITIVE
DOCUMENT

Page 216

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix IV – 117a Parnell Road Premises Licence (29086)

Page 217

(Parnell Mini Market)
117a Parnell Road
London
E3 2RT

Licensable Activities authorised by the licence

The sale by retail of alcohol

See the attached licence for the licence conditions

Signed by

David Tolley
Head of Environmental Health &Trading Standards

Date: 5th December 2007
th

(Amended 7 September 2010).

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\ParnellRd117a.doc

Page 218

1

Part A - Format of premises licence

Premises licence number

29086

Part 1 - Premises details
Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description
(Parnell Mini Market)
117a Parnell Road
Post town
London
Tele hone number

Post code
E3 2RT

Where the licence is time limited the dates

N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the licence

The sale by retail of alcohol

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\ParnellRd117a.doc

Page 219

2

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 08:00
hrs to 23:00 hrs

The opening hours of the premises
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 07:00m
hrs to 23:00 hrs

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/ or
off supplies
Off sales only

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\ParnellRd117a.doc

Page 220

3

Part 2
Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of
holder of premises licence

Huq Neighbours Ltd
117a Parnell Road
London
E3 2RT

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number
(where applicable)

11858525

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

MD Al Mamunul Huq

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the
supply of alcohol

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\ParnellRd117a.doc

Page 221

4

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licencea) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or
b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended
Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised
by a person who holds a personal licence
3.
(1)

(2)

(3)

5.

The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must
ensure that an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the
premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.
The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence
must ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in
accordance with the age verification policy
The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person
to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification
bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—
(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for
consumption on or off the premises for a price which is less than the
permitted price.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule
1. CCTV shall be installed and maintained in order to be fully operational at all
times. Recordings to be kept for minimum of 30 days.
2. A recognised proof of ID to be requested for any person appearing to be
under the age of 21.
3. Signage to be displayed at the point of sale stating “No proof of Age – No
Sale”
4. Refusal book to be maintained and kept at the premises at all times.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\ParnellRd117a.doc

Page 222

5

(Conditions added by the Licensing Sub Committee following a review of the
licence on 7th September 2010).

1) The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for the
purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-to-door sellers
unless a valid receipt is supplied at the time of the purchase.
2) If stock is purchased from a door-to-door seller the premises licence
holder shall ensure that a record is kept of the seller’s vehicle registration
number.
3) The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods bought
include the following details:
a. Seller’s name and address
b. Seller’s company details, if applicable
c. Seller’s VAT details, if applicable
4) Copies of the documents referred to in 3) shall be made available to
officers on request.
5) An appropriate device for checking the authenticity of duty stamps (such
as an ultra-violet lamp) shall be installed on the premises and retained in
working order.
6) The authenticity of the duty stamp on any goods shall be checked on
receipt of those goods.
7) The premises licence holder shall inform the police in the event that they
are sold counterfeit goods or goods with a fake duty stamp.
In addition the licence is suspended for one weekend.

Annex 4 - Plans
The plans are those submitted to the licensing authority on the following date:
3rd October 2007

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\ParnellRd117a.doc

Page 223

6

Licensing Act 2003

Part B - Premises licence summary

29086

Premises licence number
Premises details

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description
(Parnell Mini Market)
117a Parnell Road

Post town
London

Post code
E3 2RT

Telephone number
None
Where the licence is time limited the
dates

N/A

Licensable activities authorised by the
licence

The sale by retail of alcohol

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\ParnellRd117a.doc

Page 224

7

The times the licence authorises the
carrying out of licensable activities

Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday,
Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 08:00
hrs to 23:00 hrs

The opening hours of the premises
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday,
Friday, Saturday and Sunday from 07:00m
hrs to 23:00 hrs

Name, (registered) address of holder
of premises licence

Huq Neighbours Ltd
117a Parnell Road
London
E3 2RT

Where the licence authorises supplies
of alcohol whether these are on and /
or off supplies

Off sales only

Registered number of holder, for
example company number, charity
number (where applicable)

11858525

Name of designated premises
supervisor where the premises licence MD Al Mamunul Huq
authorises for the supply of alcohol
State whether access to the premises
by children is restricted or prohibited

No restrictions

M:\Licensing\Word97\2003 LicAct certs & lics\Prem Lics\ParnellRd117a.doc

Page 225

8

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix IVa – Photo of displayed licence (27385)

Page 226

Page 227

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix V – Photo of Refusals Book

Page 228

Page 229

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix VI – Email containing photos of training records
(dated 20/12/2021)

Page 230

Corinne Holland
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

rikto huq
20 December 2021 02:38
Alex Brander
Video footage and training records
f45cf0ac-82f1-47fd-83d0-eb8c894808a0.MP4

Good morning Sir, please find the video footage of the incident on 13th December and training records of our staff.
Many thanks.

Page
231
1

Regards
Md Al Mamunul Huq
Parnell Mini Market
117A Parnell road
E3 2RT

Page 232
2

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix VII – Statement of Kristian Dalley and photographs
of training records

Page 233

Page 234

Page 235

Page 236

Page 237

Page 238

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix VIII – Email from Mr Huq (dated 06/01/2022)

Page 239

Corinne Holland
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

rikto huq
06 January 2022 16:05
Alex Brander
Fwd: CCTV footage of challenging a customer by Mehdi Hassan Prince on 13th
December 2021
8d34007f-aae6-4333-b788-7c4c1f2cc9ae.MOV

Regards
Md Al Mamunul Huq
Begin forwarded message:
From: rikto huq
Date: 6 January 2022 at 15:59:37 GMT
To: Katalin Morath
Subject: CCTV footage of challenging a customer by Mehdi Hassan Prince on 13th December 2021
Good afternoon dear Sir/ Madam , I would like to provide you a CCTV footage of 13/12/2021 at
18:00 as my employee Mr. Mehdi Hasan Prince is challenging a customer just 1 hour before the
incident happened on 19:00 (The cctv time is 1 hour+ as due to hour gone ahed this year). The
customer asked a Vape and he asked for photo ID , even the customer was wearing a mask and
customer also said she is over 30 years old . However Mr. Prince was not convinced and have seen
the Photo ID and also politely requested to remove her Marks to varying the face and her age. As of
my knowledge, I have trained Mr Prince several time and also monitors him while he serve many
customers and I have seen many occasions he verified the ID and also refused many customers due
to unable to show ID . He also recorded accordingly on the refusal book. On the actual incident Mr.
Prince told me when both of those customers approached the boy on the image looks like under age
and he was carrying the Beer and Mr. Prince was approached to ask for ID . However finally
according to Mr. Prince , the the boy hand over the drink to the girl next to him looks adult as she
looks physically over 20 years old. However, they left the premises and the police came back and
spoken to us both , we was shocked and surprised as I was asking mr Alex several times , is it in this
shop? as we do not serve any under age. However , mr Alex said the girl was under age. Anyway, we
are happy to see you on 20th January . Many thanks .

Regards
Md Al Mamunul Huq
Parnell Mini Market
117A Parnell Road
E3 2RT

Page 240
1

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix IX – Email confirming hearing outcome (dated
19/05/2021)

Page 241

Corinne Holland
From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Katalin Morath
06 January 2022 11:02
Alex Brander
FW: Huq Neighbours Ltd and HUQ, Mr. Mohammed-underage tobacco sale
(CEHCRS.2774)

From: David Wong <
Sent: 19 May 2021 16:44
To: Sean Rovai
Katalin Morath
Audrey Dembinski <
>; Kevin Maple <
Nazir Ali
Cc: David Tolley
Subject: Huq Neighbours Ltd and HUQ, Mr. Mohammed-underage tobacco sale (CEHCRS.2774)
Dear Trading Standards Service
Just to update the SJP results for this case. The company and Mr. Huq were both found guilty within the SJP process,
in the absence of any response by either to the prosecution, and each was fined £440 and ordered to pay £150
towards Prosecution costs by 19.4.2021, collection orders also being made in respect of each.
Kind regards
David

David Wong
Senior Enforcement Lawyer
Enforcement Team
Governance
Legal Services
Town Hall Mulberr Place 5 Clove Crescent, London E14 2BG DX: 42656 Isle Of Dogs

Page 242
1

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix X – Photo of text message

Page 243

Page 244

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix XI – Photo of Female Cadet – SENSITIVE DOCUMENT

Page 245

Huq Neighbours Ltd t/a Parnell Mini-Market
117a Parnell Road, London, E3 2RT

Appendix XII – Photo of Male Cadet - SENSITIVE DOCUMENT

Page 246

Appendix 3

Page 247

Map showing location of 117a Parnell Road

Page 248

Appendix 4

Page 249

Kathy Driver
From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Attachments:

MARK.J.Perry
07 February 2022 14:33
Licensing; Alex Brander
Tom Lewis Simmi Yesmin

Follow Up Flag:
Flag Status:

Follow up
Completed

Revew Parnell Mini Market.doc

Dear all,
Please see Central East Police Licensing’s submission in support of the review of Parnell Mini Market.
Kind Regards
Mark

PC Mark Perry
Central East Licensing Unit
Metropolitan Police Service (MPS)
Email
A: Licensing Office, 1st Floor Stoke Newington Police Station

NOTICE - This email and any attachments are solely for the intended recipient and may be confidential. If you have
received this email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your system. Do not use, copy or disclose the
information contained in this email or in any attachment without the permission of the sender. Metropolitan Police
Service (MPS) communication systems are monitored to the extent permitted by law and any email and/or
attachments may be read by monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude binding
agreements on behalf of the MPS by email and no responsibility is accepted for unauthorised agreements reached
with other personnel. While reasonable precautions have been taken to ensure no viruses are present in this email,
its security and that of any attachments cannot be guaranteed.

Page 250
1

HT - Tower Hamlets Borough
Tom Lewis
Head of Licensing
Tower Hamlets Council

Licensing Office
Stoke Newington Police Station
33 Stoke Newington High St
Email:
www.met.police.uk
07/02/2022

Dear Sir,
Central East Police Licensing formally support the review of Parnell Mini-Market, 117a
Parnell Road E3 2RT, by Tower Hamlets Council’s Trading Standards Department.
The premises has over a period of time demonstrated that they are incapable of
upholding the licensing objective of Protecting Children from Harm. They have sold both
alcohol and cigarettes to underage people.
In December 2021 initial allegations from a member of the public that her 16 year old son
was able to regularly buy alcohol from the premises. A successful test purchase by two
Police Cadets has validated the initial complaint from a member of the public. This
validation is strengthened by the premises having sold cigarettes to children, on at least
two occasions.
Annex 2, Condition 2 of the premises license requires the premises to check the ID of all
those who look under the age of 21, yet the premises has failed consistently to do this.
The premises management have shown that they are incapable of abiding by any
conditions placed upon the license. We therefore request that this license is revoked.
Kind Regards
Mark

PC Mark Perry
Central East Licensing Unit
Metropolitan Police Service (MPS)
Email
A: Licensing Office, 1st Floor Stoke Newington Police Station

Page 251

Appendix 5

Page 252

11. Reviews
The review process
11.1

The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises
licence or club premises certificate.

11.2

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the
licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any
of the four licensing objectives.

11.3

An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing
authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the application, if
the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance
that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these applications are
outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted via GOV.UK
or the licensing authority’s electronic facility.

11.4

In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it
relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or
disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its
determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the
basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.

11.5

Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises
licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply
for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene
early without waiting for representations from other persons. However, it is not expected
that licensing authorities should normally act as responsible authorities in applying for
reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These
individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their
own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to
expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls
within the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate
steps where the basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual
exploitation of children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the
area in which the premises are situated to make the application for review.

11.6

Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and applies
for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still achieved in this
process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined
previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing
authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a
separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities should
achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to
9.19 of this Guidance.

Page 253

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 89

11.7

In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in respect
of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to
the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation
of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating
to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town
centre, should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be
positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow
for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of
complaints, including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its
closing time, could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct
incidents of crime and disorder around a particular public house.

11.8

Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, the authority
may consider whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact of licensed
premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the authority may also
consider whether it would be appropriate to include a special policy relating to
cumulative impact within its licensing policy statement. Further guidance on cumulative
impact policies can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance.

11.9

Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent
hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount
to an amplification of the original representation may not be made at the hearing.
Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees
and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives
this requirement.

11.10

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning
of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise
the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a
decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing
objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this cooperation.

11.11

If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a responsible
authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local business or trade
association), before taking action the licensing authority must first consider whether the
complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance
on determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in
Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).

Repetitious grounds of review
11.12

A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:
• a ground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined; or
• representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or
certificate was granted; or
• representations which would have been made when the application for the premises

Page 254

90 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of
a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval
has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.
11.13

Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to
review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as
a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more
than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation
to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar
grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order.

11.14

The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a
licence or certificate within a 12 month period.

11.15

When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These
regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website
(www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative
has therefore been able to prepare a response.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review
11.16

The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.

11.17

The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further
steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be
issued in writing to the licence holder.

11.18

However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement – either orally or in writing
– that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account
when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been
required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

11.19

Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

Page 255

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 91

• modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the
hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;
• exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the
incidental live and recorded music exemption)10;
• remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that
the problems are the result of poor management;
• suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
• revoke the licence.
11.20

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these
causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response
to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

11.21

For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual.

11.22

Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be
an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review
hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives.

11.23

Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up
to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives
or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a
weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise
to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough
action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

10

See chapter 15 in relation to the licensing of live and recorded music.

Page 256

92 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Reviews arising in connection with crime
11.24

A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter
for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is not
therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective.

11.25

Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not
part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of
any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed
evidence before them.

11.26

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is
still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives
and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not
those of the individual licence holder.

11.27

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:
• for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;
• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which
does considerable damage to the industries affected;
• for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;
• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

Page 257

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 I 93

• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;
• for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;
• for unlawful gambling; and
• for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.
11.28

It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities,
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected
that revocation of the licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously
considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal
working compliance order
11.29

Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the
review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance order under
section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run
concurrently and are as follows:
• when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review – the determination must
be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is
received;
• the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;
• notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice
and the start of the hearing).

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol
to children
11.29

The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly
and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at
the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme).
Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very
quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and
conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing
the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due
diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of
the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing
authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate.

Page 258

94 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 6

Page 259

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003
Updated April 2018

Crime and disorder
2.1

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of
advice on crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local
Community Safety Partnership (CSP).

2.2

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to cooperate with the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and
consider adding relevant conditions to licences where appropriate. The
SIA also plays an important role in preventing crime and disorder by
ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed and, in partnership
with police and other agencies, that security companies are not being
used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other
partner agencies. Similarly, the provision of requirements for door
supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people who are drunk, drug
dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and
disorder including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises
(see paragraph 10.10). For example, where there is good reason to
suppose that disorder may take place, the presence of closed-circuit
television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately outside the
premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their
premises for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself,
its staff, or its customers. But any condition may require a broader
approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure that the precise location of
cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are properly
covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the
condition.

2.4

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be
considered an appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs
operating in city and town centre leisure areas with a high density of
licensed premises. These systems allow managers of licensed premises
to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a rapid response to
any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on the
premises.

Page 260

2.5

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated
premises supervisors should not normally be attached to premises
licences. It will normally be the responsibility of the premises licence
holder as an employer, and not the licensing authority, to ensure that the
managers appointed at the premises are competent and appropriately
trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by
the premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A
condition of this kind may only be justified as appropriate in rare
circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the circumstances
associated with particular premises, poor management competency could
give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety.

2.6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing
authorities should work with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as
well as the police, in respect of these matters. Licence conditions that are
considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal working in licensed
premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake
right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work
check are retained at the licensed premises.

Page 261

Appendix 7

Page 262

Licensing Policy, updated November 2018

Crime and Disorder
7.1

Licensed premises, especially those offering late night / early morning
entertainment, alcohol and refreshment for large numbers of people,
can be a source of crime and disorder problems and to store
prescribed information.

7.2

When addressing crime and disorder the applicant should initially
identify any particular issues (having regard to their particular type of
premises and / or activities) which are likely to adversely affect the
promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. Such steps as
are required to deal with these identified issues should be included
within the applications operating schedule. Where the Metropolitan
Police, acting as a responsible authority, makes recommendations in
respect of an application relating to the licensing objectives the
Licensing Authority would expect the applicant to incorporate these
into their operating schedule.

7.3

Applicants are recommended to seek advice from Council Officers
and the Police as well as taking into account, as appropriate, local
planning and transport policies, with tourism, cultural and crime
prevention strategies, when preparing their plans and Schedules.

7.4

In addition to the requirements for the Licensing Authority to promote
the licensing objectives, it also has duties under Section 17 of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do all it reasonably can to prevent
crime and disorder in the Borough and to share prescribed
information.

7.5

The Licensing Authority, if its discretion is engaged, will consider
attaching Conditions to licences and permissions to deter and prevent
crime and disorder both inside and immediately outside the premises
and these may include Conditions drawn from the Model Pool of
Conditions relating to Crime and Disorder given in the Secretary of
State’s Guidance.

7.6

CCTV - The Licensing Authority, if its discretion is engaged, will attach
conditions to licences, as appropriate where the conditions reflect
local crime prevention strategies, for example the provision of closed
circuit television cameras.

Page 263

7.7

Touting – This is soliciting for custom. There has been a historic
problem with Touting in the borough, mainly in relation to restaurants,
and as such in 2006 the Council introduced a byelaw under Section 235
of the Local Government Act 1972 for the good rule and government of
the London Borough of Tower Hamlets and for the prevention and
suppression of nuisances.
As a result, in relation to premises where there is intelligence that
touting is, or has been carried out, the Licensing Authority, where its
discretion is engaged will insert a standard condition that prohibits
‘touting’ as follows:-

7.8

1)

No person shall be employed to solicit for custom or be
permitted to solicit for custom for business for the premises in
any public place within a 500 meters radius of the premises as
shown edged red on the attached plan.( marked as Appendix -)

2)

Clear Signage to be placed in the restaurant windows stating
that the premises supports the Council’s ‘No Touting’ policy.

Responsible Drinking - The Licensing Authority expects alcohol to
be promoted in a responsible way in the Borough. This should
incorporate relevant industry standards, such as the Portman Group
Code of Practice. Where appropriate and proportionate, if its
discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will apply conditions to
ensure responsible drinking. The Licensing Authority also recognises
the positive contribution to best practice that "Pubwatch" and other
similar schemes can make in promoting the licensing objectives and
is committed to working with them.
Model Pool Conditions can be found in the Secretary of State’s
Guidance.

7.9

Criminal Activity - There is certain criminal activity that may arise in
connection with licensed premises which the Licensing Authority will
treat particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:
•
for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse
of Drugs Act 1971 and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs
crime;
•
for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;
•
for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed
films and music, which does considerable damage to the
industries affected;
•
for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors
which impacts on the health, educational attainment,
employment prospects and propensity for crime of young people;
•
for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
•
by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;

Page 264

•
•
•
•
•

as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly
by gangs;
for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist
attacks;
for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by
reason of their immigration status in the UK;
for unlawful gambling; and
for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

The Secretary State’s Guidance states that it is envisaged that
licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are
responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and this
Licensing Authority determines that the crime prevention objective is
being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes,
it is expected that revocation of the licence, even in the first instance,
should be seriously considered.
7.10

In particular the Licensing Authority is mindful of the Secretary of
State’s Guidance “Reviews arising in connection with crime”.

7.11

From 1 April 2017, businesses which sell alcohol (for example,
retailers of alcohol and trade buyers) will need to ensure that the UK
wholesalers that they buy alcohol from have been approved by
HMRC under the Alcohol Wholesaler Registration Scheme (AWRS).
They will need to check their wholesalers Unique Registration
Number (URN) against the HMRC online database which will be
available from April 2017. This is an ongoing obligation and if a
business is found to have bought alcohol from an unapproved
wholesaler, they may be liable to a penalty or could even face
criminal prosecution and their alcohol stock may be seized. Any
trader who buys alcohol from a wholesaler for onward sale to the
general public (known as a ‘trade buyer’) does not need to register
unless they sell alcohol to other businesses. Examples of trade
buyers would be pubs, clubs, restaurants, cafes, retailers and hotels.
However, they will need to check that the wholesaler they purchase
alcohol from is registered with HMRC. Further information may be
found
at:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/the-alcohol-wholesalerregistration-scheme-awrs.

Page 265

Smuggled goods
7.12

The Licensing Authority will exercise its discretion to add a standard
condition as follows:1)

The premises licence holder and any other persons responsible for
the purchase of stock shall not purchase any goods from door-todoor sellers other than from established traders who provide full
receipts at the time of delivery to provide traceability.

2)

The premises licence holder shall ensure that all receipts for goods
bought include the following details:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Seller’s name and address
Seller’s company details, if applicable
Seller’s VAT details, if applicable
Vehicle registration detail, if applicable

3)

Legible copies of the documents referred to in 2) shall be retained
on the premises and made available to officers on request.

4)

The trader shall obtain and use a UV detection device to verify that
duty stamps are valid.

5)

Where the trader becomes aware that any alcohol may be not duty
paid they shall inform the Police of this immediately.

Olympic Park – Football Ground
7.13

Premises where Police intelligence shows that football supporters
congregate within the borough should consider in their application
form the following conditions:
1)

On Match Days for premises licensed for the supply of alcohol for
consumption on the premises:
a)
Drinks shall only be supplied in polypropylene or similar
plastic and all bottled drinks shall be poured into such
drinking vessels before being handed to the customer.
These should be made of recyclable materials.
b)

Registered door staff shall be employed to control the entry
and exits to the premises and to manage any licensed
outside area(s).

Page 266

Appendix 8

Page 267

Guidance Issued by the Home Office under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003
Updated April 2018

Protection of children from harm
2.22

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children
from moral, psychological and physical harm. This includes not only
protecting children from the harms associated directly with alcohol
consumption but also wider harms such as exposure to strong language
and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of exposure to certain
films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also consider the
need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking
licensing functions.

2.23

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell
alcohol to children. Conditions relating to the access of children where
alcohol is sold and which are appropriate to protect them from harm
should be carefully considered. Moreover, conditions restricting the
access of children to premises should be strongly considered in
circumstances where:
• adult entertainment is provided;
• a member or members of the current management have been
convicted for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for
allowing underage drinking (other than in the context of the
exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds
consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult
during a table meal);
• it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed
access;
• there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
• in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for
the sale of alcohol for consumption on the premises.

2.24

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take
place at certain times on premises but not at other times. For example,
premises may operate as a café bar during the day providing meals for
families but also provide entertainment with a sexual content after 8.00pm.
It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what amounts to
entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants,
responsible authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this
point carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap, table- or pole-dancing, performances involving feigned violence or
horrific incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or
entertainment involving strong and offensive language.

Page 268

2.25

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities
and times at which the events would take place to help determine when it
is not appropriate for children to enter the premises. Consideration
should also be given to the proximity of premises to schools and youth
clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure that advertising
relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

2.26

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect
applicants, when preparing an operating schedule or club operating
schedule, to set out the steps to be taken to protect children from harm
when on the premises.

2.27

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable
activities taking place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory
condition regarding age verification, other conditions relating to the
protection of children from harm can include:
• restrictions on the hours when children may be present;
• restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain
ages when particular specified activities are taking place;
• restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have
access;
• age restrictions (below 18);
• restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;
• requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a
combination of requirements which provide that children under a
particular age must be accompanied by an adult); and full
exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any
licensable activities are taking place.

2.28

Please see also Chapter 10 for details about the Licensing Act 2003
(Mandatory Licensing Conditions) Order 2010.

Page 269

2.29

Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations
about child protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority
whose functions relate directly to child protection, the Director of Public
Health may also have access to relevant evidence to inform such
representations. These representations may include, amongst other
things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person,
presents evidence to the licensing authority linking specific premises with
harms to children (such as ambulance data or emergency department
attendances by persons under 18 years old with alcohol-related illnesses
or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the licensing
authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for
the grant of a licence in areas where evidence is presented on high
levels of alcohol-related harms in persons aged under 18, it is
recommended that the licensing authority considers what conditions may
be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively.

2.30

The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence or club premises
certificate authorises the exhibition of a film, it must include a condition
requiring the admission of children to films to be restricted in accordance
with recommendations given either by a body designated under section 4
of the Video Recordings Act 1984 specified in the licence (the British
Board of Film Classification is currently the only body which has been so
designated) or by the licensing authority itself. Further details are given in
Chapter 10.

2.31

Theatres may present a range of diverse activities and entertainment
including, for example, variety shows incorporating adult entertainment. It
is appropriate in these cases for a licensing authority to consider
restricting the admission of children in such circumstances.
Entertainments may also be presented at theatres specifically for children.
It will be appropriate to consider whether a condition should be attached to
a premises licence or club premises certificate which requires the
presence of a sufficient number of adult staff on the premises to ensure
the wellbeing of the children during any emergency.

Page 270

Offences relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children
2.32

Licensing authorities are expected to maintain close contact with the
police, young offenders’ teams and trading standards officers (who can
carry out test purchases under section 154 of the 2003 Act) about the
extent of unlawful sales and consumption of alcohol by minors and to be
involved in the development of any strategies to control or prevent these
unlawful activities and to pursue prosecutions. Licensing authorities,
alongside the police, are prosecuting authorities for the purposes of
these offences, except for the offences under section 147A (persistently
selling alcohol to children). Where, as a matter of policy, warnings are
given to retailers prior to any decision to prosecute in respect of an
offence, it is important that each of the enforcement arms should be
aware of the warnings each of them has given.

Table of relevant
offences under the
2003 Act Section

Offence

Prosecuting Authority

Section 145

Unaccompanied children
prohibited from certain
premises

Police and/or Licensing
Authority

Section 146

Sale of alcohol to children

Police, Licensing Authority
and/or Local Weights and
Measures Authority

Section 147

Allowing the sale of alcohol to
children

Police, Licensing Authority
and/or Local Weights and
Measures Authority

Section 147A

Persistently selling alcohol to
children

Police and/or Local Weights
and Measures Authority

Section 148

Sale of liqueur confectionery to
children under 16. (This offence
will be repealed by the
Deregulation Act 2015 on 26
May 2015).

Police and/or Licensing
Authority

Section 149

Purchase of alcohol by or on
behalf of children

Police and/or Licensing
Authority

Section 150

Consumption of alcohol by
children

Police and/or Licensing
Authority

Section 151

Delivering alcohol to children

Police and/or Licensing
Authority

Section 152

Sending a child to obtain
alcohol

Police and/or Licensing
Authority

Section 153

Prohibition of unsupervised
sales by children

Police and/or Licensing
Authority

Page 271

Appendix 9

Page 272

Licensing Policy Updated November 2018

Protection of children from harm
10.1 The wide range of premises that require licensing means that children
can be expected to visit many of these, often on their own, for food
and/or entertainment. The protection of children from harm includes
the protection of children from moral, psychological and physical
harm. This includes not only protecting children from the harms
associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms
such as exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for
example, in the context of exposure to certain films or adult
entertainment). Home Office Guidance also expects Licensing
authorities to consider the need to protect children from sexual
exploitation when undertaking licensing functions.
10.2 Tackling Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) is a key target both locally
and nationally as such the Licensing Authority expects Licence
Holders to:
•
•
•

Understand that there are criminal offences in relation to
sexual exploitation of a child,
Ensure that they and their employees have a basic
awareness of the signs of CSE and how to report it;
Report any concerns to the appropriate authorities or to the
Licensing Authority can advise them of the appropriate
authority to report concerns to.

10.3 Applicants are to consult with the Responsible Authority designated
for Child Protection listed in appendix 1 - List of Responsible
Authorities of this who this Licensing Authority recognises to be
competent body to advise on the protection of children from harm.
10.4 The Act does not prohibit children from having access to any licensed
premises; the Council recognises that limitations may have to be
considered where it appears necessary to protect children from
harm.
10.5 The Licensing Authority will judge the merits of each separate
application before deciding whether to impose conditions limiting the
access of children to individual premises. The following are examples
of premises that will raise concern:•

Where there have been convictions, Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs)
or formal cautions for serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation
for underage drinking

Page 273

•

With a known association with drug taking or dealing

•

Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises

•

Where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is provided

•

Where irresponsible drinking is encouraged or permitted.

10.6 Where its discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will consider
any of the following options when dealing with a licence application
where limiting the access of children is considered necessary to
prevent harm to children:
•

Limitations on the hours when children may be present,

•

Limitations on ages below 18,

•

Limitations or exclusion when certain activities are taking place,

•

Requirements for an accompanying adult,

•

Full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any
licensable activities are taking place.

10.7 No conditions will be imposed requiring that children must be
admitted to any premises and, where no limitation is imposed, this
will be left to the discretion of the individual licensee.
10.8 The Act details a number of offences designed to protect children in
licensed premises and the Licensing Authority will work closely with
the police to ensure the appropriate enforcement of the law,
especially relating to the sale and supply of alcohol to children.
10.9 All licence holders will be expected to comply the Portman Group
Code of Practice, and in particular the Retailer Alert Bulletin by which
the Portman Group informs licensed retailers, which products have
been found to be in breach of the code, and should be removed from
sale.
10.10 The Licensing Authority expects all licensed suppliers of alcohol to
have robust measures, effectively managed and monitored, in place
to ensure that minors are fully protected from harm. This will require
operating plans to specify these measures and management controls
taking into account paragraph 10.1 and 10.2 above. Where
appropriate a written childcare policy should be available and be
incorporated in the induction of staff.

Page 274

10.11 The Licensing Authority will take appropriate and proportionate action
where there are serious concerns in relation to the safe guarding of
children in connection with a licensed premises, which may include
consideration of applying for a review of the licence where there
significant evidence of undermining the licensing objective of the
protection of children from harm.
10.12 The sale of alcohol to a minor is a criminal offence and Trading
Standards will conduct appropriate covert test purchasing exercises
and will take account of any complaints and intelligence received.
The Act permits the use of children under the age of 18 to undertake
test purchases.
10.13 Where there are age restrictions imposed by the Act on the licensable
activities in respect of children below a certain age, then the licensee
will be required to demonstrate that they have age verification
systems in place. This Licensing Authority believes that that
Licensed Premises should have age verification policies to require
individuals who appear to the person serving alcohol to be under the
age of 25 years of age to produce on request appropriate
identification. This is commonly referred to as the “Challenge 25
Scheme”. The rationale for this is because it can often be difficult to
judge how old teenagers are and “Challenge 25 age verification
system” would provide licensed premises with margin of error to
prevent underage sales. Thus Challenge 25 can help to empower
staff to challenge customers where there is doubt about their age. In
turn this is likely to reduce the risk of the owner, or the seller of the
alcohol, committing an offence.
10.14 Training in age verification systems should be given to all persons
who might be in a position to serve or refuse the sale of alcohol to
children. The training should include a basic understanding of the
law, seeking proof of age, verifying the authenticity of proof of age
cards and handling and recording refusals.
10.15 Where proportionate and appropriate, and its discretion is engaged,
the Licensing Authority will impose the following standard conditions
in relation to age verification systems:
1) All tills shall automatically prompt staff to ask for age verification
identification when presented with an alcohol sale.
2) A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the
premises where the only acceptable forms of identification are
recognised photographic identification cards, such as a driving
licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.
3) A record shall be kept detailing all refused sales of alcohol. The
record should include the date and time of the refused sale and
the name of the member of staff who refused the sale. The record

Page 275

shall be available for inspection at the premises by the police or
an authorised officer at all times whilst the premises is open.
4) All staff whose duties include the serving of alcohol must be
trained in the requirements of this scheme including the
importance of recording any refusals.

11

Access to Cinemas

11.1 Films cover a vast range of subjects, some of which deal with adult
themes and / or contain, for example, scenes of horror or violence
that may be considered unsuitable for children within certain age
groups.
11.2 In order to prevent children from seeing such films, the Licensing
Authority will impose conditions requiring licensees to restrict children
from viewing age restricted films classified according to the
recommendations of the BBFC, or the Council itself. The Licensing
Authority will not consider reclassifying any films already classified by
the BBFC. The Council will charge for classifying films, on a full cost
recovery basis.
11.3 The Licensing Authority will classify films itself where it is satisfied
that no BBFC classification exists. It will inform relevant licensee and
require such classifications to be clearly contained in any advertising
or informative material relating to such films.

12

Children and Public Entertainment

12.1 Many children go to see and / or take part in an entertainment
arranged
substantially for them. Consequently additional
arrangements are required to safeguard them at such times.
12.2 Where 10.1 applies, and its discretion is engaged, the Licensing
Authority will require the following arrangements in order to control
their access and egress and to assure their safety:•

An adult member of staff to be stationed in the vicinity of
each of the exits from any level, subject to there being a
minimum of one member of staff per 50 children or part
thereof,

•

No child unless accompanied by an adult to be permitted in
the front row of any balcony,

•

No standing to be permitted in any part of the auditorium
during the Performance.

12.3 Where children are taking part in any regulated entertainment, and its

Page 276

discretion is engaged, the Licensing Authority will require the
operating schedule to clearly state the steps taken to assure their
safety.
12.4 Where its authority is engaged, the Licensing Authority will consider
attaching conditions to licences and permissions to prevent harm to
children, and these may include conditions drawn from the Model
Pool of. Conditions that can be found in the Secretary of State’s
Guidance.

Page 277

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 279

This page is intentionally left blank

